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preparation of accounts.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Based on a report originally issued in Korean

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Korea Development Bank

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Korea Development Bank (the “Bank™), which
comprise the separate statements of financial position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and the separate statements of
comprehensive income, the separate statements of changes in equity and the separate statements of cash flows for the
years then ended, and notes to the separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the separate
financial position of the Bank as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its separate financial performance and its separate
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
Republic of Korea (“Korean IFRS”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Korean Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Bank in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Republic of Korea that are relevant to our
audit of the separate financial statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2. (5) of the separate financial statements. As described in Note 2. (5), the pandemic of COVID-
19 in 2021 has a negative impact on the global economy and may have negative impacts on the financial position and
financial performance of the Bank. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter ‘

Auditing standards and their application in practice vary among countries. The procedures and practices used in the
Republic of Korea to audit such financial statements may differ from those generally accepted and applied in other
countries. -

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial statements in accordance
with Korean IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Korean Standards
on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Korean Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:



* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a
going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the separate financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Aé&'m W

Seoul, Korea
March 29, 2022

This report is effective as of March 29, 2022, the audit report date. Certain subsequent events or circumstances, which
may occur between the audit report date and the time of reading this report, could have a material impact on the
accompanying separate financial statements and notes thereto. Accordingly, the readers of the audit report should
understand that the above audit report has not been updated to reflect the impact of such subsequent events or
circumstances, if any.

A member of Nexia International
Nexia International is a leading worldwide network of independent accounting and consulting firms, providing
comprehensive portfolio of audit, accountancy, tax and advisory services.



Korea Development Bank

Separate Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2021 and 2020

(In millions of won)

Assets
Cash and due from banks
Securities measured at FVTPL
Securities measured at FVOCI
Securities measured at amortized cost
Loans measured at FVTPL
Loans measured at amortized cost
Derivative financial assets
Investments in subsidiaries and associates
Property and equipment, net
Investment property, net
Intangible assets, net
Defined benefit assets
Current tax assets
Assets held for sale
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Deposits
Borrowings
Debentures
Derivative financial liabilities
Defined benefit liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities
Current tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity
Issued capital
Capital surplus

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Retained earnings

(Regulatory reserve for credit losses of W.482,885 million and ¥ 1,146,038 million

as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively)

(Required reversal of regulatory reserve for credit losses of W-235,632 million and

W663,153 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively)

(Planned reversal of regulatory reserve for credit losses of W-235,632 million and

W663,153 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively)

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes to the separate financial statements.

December December

Notes 31,2021 31, 2020
4454649 W 11,975,767 10,528,978
5,45,46,49 9,818,811 8,320,631
6,39,45,46,49 37,875,136 34,141,325
7,39,45,46,49 2,968,877 785,264
8,45,46,49 644,412 1,434,514
9,45,46,49 170,763,394 155,300,178
10,45,46,47,49 5,305,572 8,329,376
11,48 28,710,062 25,553,561
12,48 872,157 811,382
13,48 82,860 81,065
14,48 147,699 188,417
21 9,353 -
2,841 3,722
16 1,371,052 1,713,347
15,45,46,49 5,873,907 4,660,285
W 276,421,900 251,852,045
17,45,46,49 W 2,067,144 1,694,957
18,45,46,49 52,792,121 45,879,419
19,45,46,49 22,063,777 18,887,611
20,45,46,49 145,365,330 138,318,728
10,45,46,47,49 4,757,841 6,305,287
' 21 - 50,546
22 1,567,530 1,515,170
37 3,957,522 1,719,100
254,882 29,691
23,45,46,49 7,092,896 7,069,006
239,919,043 221,469,515
1,24 21,886,559 20,765,729
24 2,479,010 2,484,398
24 4,773,474 2,064,371
24 7,363,814 5,068,032
36,502,857 " 30,382,530
W 276,421,900 251,852,045




Korea Development Bank

Separate Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(In millions of won, except earnings per share information)
Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Net fees and commission income

Dividend income

Net gain on securities measured at FVTPL

- Net gain on financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Net gain (loss) on securities measured at FVOCI
Net gain (loss) on derivatives

Net foreign currency transaction gain (loss)

Other operating income, net

Non-interest income, net

Provision for credit losses
General and administrative expenses
Operating income

Reversal of impairment loss (impairment loss) on investments in
subsidiaries and associates

Other non-operating income

Other non-operating expense

Non-operating expense, net

Profit before income taxes
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

(Profit for the year adjusted for regulatory reserve for credit losses:
W2,697,478 million and W1,150,683 million for the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
Net gain (loss) on securities measured at FVOCI
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Valuation gain on cash flow hedge
Net gain (loss) on hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Net gain on securities measured at FVOCI
Fair value changes on financial liabilities designated at fair value due

to credit risk
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in won)

See accompanying notes to the separate financial statements.

4

Notes 2021 2020

25 W 4,125,276 4,441,554

25 (2,466,667) (3,161,981)

48 1,658,609 1,279,573

26 346,706 333,104

27 1,259,645 670,595

28 135,448 54,757

29 149,880 29,185

30 (27,921) 80,112

31 (202,091) 397,150

32 154,367 (172,368)

33 1,738,616 227,047

3,554,650 1,619,582

34 847,357 1,215,306

3548 - 815,746 789,337

48 3,550,156 894,512

363,055 (239,492)

36 14,530 12,475

36 (272,379) (46,635)

105,206 (273,652)

3,655,362 620,860

37 1,193,516 133,330

24 2,461,846 487,530
24

(111,768) 21,056

99,912 (53,754)

1,365 326

(56,620 31,492

(67,111) (880)

2,777,436 2,117,388

6,246 (1,188)

36,106 (3,697)

2,819,788 2,112,503

2,752,677 2,111,623

W 5,214,523 2,599,153

38 W 570 124




Korea Development Bank

Separate Statements of Changes in Equity
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(In millions of won)
Balance at January 1, 2020

Profit for the year

Net gain on securities measured at
FVOCI

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Valuation gain on cash flow hedge

Net gain on hedges of net investments in
foreign operations

Fair value changes on financial
liabilities designated at fair value due
to credit risk

Remeasurements of defined benefit
liabilities

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Dividends
Paid in capital increase
Transaction with owners

Balance at December 31, 2020

Balance at January 1, 2021

Profit for the year

Net gain on securities measured at
FVOCI

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Valuation gain on cash flow hedge

Net loss on hedges of net investments in
foreign operations

Fair value changes on financial
liabilities designated at fair value due
to credit risk

Remeasurements of defined benefit
liabilities

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Dividends

Paid in capital increase
Transaction with owners

Balance at December 31, 2021

See accompanying notes to the separate financial statements.

Accumulated
other

Issued Capital comprehensive Retained Total

capital surplus income earnings equity
W 18,663,099 2,494,504 (88,092) 4,733,320 25,802,831
- - - 487,530 487,530
- - 2,179,284 (40,840) 2,138,444
- - (53,754) - (53,754)
- - 326 - 326
- . 31,492 - 31,492
- - (1,188) - (1,188)
. - (3,697) - (3,697)
- - 2,152,463 446,690 2,599,153
- - - (111,978) (111,978)
2,102,630 (10,106) - - 2,092,524
2,102,630 (10,106) - (111,978) 1,980,546
W 20,765,729 2,484,398 2,064,371 5,068,032 30,382,530
W 20,765,729 2,484,398 2,064,371 5,068,032 30,382,530
- - - 2,461,846 2,461,846
- - 2,622,094 43,574 2,665,668
- - 99,912 - 99,912
- - 1,365 - 1,365
- - (56,620) - (56,620)
. ; 6,246 - 6,246
- - 36,106 - 36,106
- - 2,709,103 2,505,420 5,214,523
- - - (209,638) (209,638)
1,120,830 (5,388) - - 1,115,442
1,120,830 (5,388) - (209,638) 905,804
W 21,886,559 2,479,010 4,773,474 7,363,814 36,502,857




Korea Development Bank

Separate Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(in millions of won)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Income tax expense
Interest income
Interest expense
Dividend income
Gain on valuation of securities measured at FVTPL
Gain on disposal of securities measured at FVTPL
Net gain on financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Loss (gain) on disposal of securities measured at FVOCI
Impairment loss on securities measured at amortized cost
Net gain on loans measured at FVTPL
Loss (gain) on valuation of derivatives
Net loss (gain) on fair value hedged items
Loss (gain) on foreign exchange translations
Gain on disposal of investments in subsidiaries and associates
Reversal of impairment loss (impairment loss) on investments in
subsidiaries and associates
Provision for loan loss allowance
Increase of provision for other assets
Increase (reversal) of provision for payment guarantees
Increase (reversal) of provision for unused commitments
Increase (reversal) of financial guarantee provision
Increase of provision for possible losses from lawsuits
Reversal of provision for restoration
Increase of other provisions
Defined benefit costs
Depreciation of property and equipment
Impairment loss on assets held for sale
Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale
Depreciation of investment property
Amortization of intangible assets
Loss on redemption of debentures

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Due from banks
Securities measured at FVTPL
Loans measured at FVTPL
Loans measured at amortized cost
Derivative financial instruments
Other assets
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Deposits
Defined benefit liabilities (assets)
Other liabilities

Income taxes refund (paid)
Interest received

Interest paid

Dividends received

Net cash used in operating activities
e

(Continued)

2020

Notes 2021

2,461,846 487,530

37 1,193,516 133,330
25 (4,125,276) (4,441,554)
25 2,466,667 3,161,981
27 (1,259,645) (670,595)
28 (144,635) (12,973)
(6,654) (19,987)

29 (149,880) (29,185)
30 27,921 (80,112)
7 149 7
33 (1,895,878) (649,267)
1,255,411 (867,763)

31 (497,269) 39,559
32 (163,901) 159,598
33 (90,009) (13,220)
(363,055) 239,492

34 855,548 1,177,027
34 1,076 19,722
22 133,641 (75,930)
22 (137,830) 52,881
22 (5,078) 41,606
22 1,408 441
22 (1,820) (839)
22 8,266 8,475
21 39,994 38,483
35 70,860 69,403
36 258,401 25,926
36 (1,482) (1,049)
36 (3,608) ‘-
36 2,209 1,381
35 53,837 53,977
- 9

(2,477,116) (1,639,176)

2,172,476) (2,257,845)

146,996 925,821

27,980 (180,867)

(16,678,716) (17,695,562)

144,735 148,700

(1,050,940) (29,447)

290,136 76,378

6,871,809 11,234,111

(50,093) (46,178)

68,970 (359,241)

(12,401,599) (8,184,130)

264,756 (286,306)

4,110,377 4,572,014

(2,556,079) - (2,935,043)

1,263,418 671,102

(9,334,397) (7,314,009)




Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

(In millions of won)

Cash flows from investing activities
Net increase of securities measured at FVTPL
Disposal of securities measured at FVOCI
Acquisition of securities measured at FVOCI
Redemption of securities measured at amortized cost
Acquisition of securities measured at amortized cost
Disposal of property and equipment
Acquisition of property and equipment
Disposal of intangible assets
Acquisition of intangible assets
Disposal of investments in subsidiaries and associates

Acquisition of investments in subsidiaries and associates

Disposal of assets held for sale
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Increase of financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Decrease of financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Proceeds from issuance of debentures
Repayment of debentures
Decrease in lease liabilities
Dividends
Paid in capital increase
Net cash provided by financing activities

Effects from changes in foreign currency exchange rate for cash

and cash equivalents held
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

See accompanying notes to the separate financial statements.

Notes 2021 2020 .
W (1,497,404) (1,389,326)
37,451,107 50,645,599

6 (36,914,523) (57,798,921)
7 700,000 1,370,003
7 (2,888,991) (657,701)
‘ 9,697 7,268

12 (36,321) (43,114)
14 858 764
14 (13,883) (11,947)
884,296 630,112

(929,733) (2,298,120)

87,502 -

(3,147,395) (9,545,383)

319,690 170,000

(79,143) (989,416)

44,507,510 41,461,011

(41,404,496) (42,701,208)

117,504,007 116,103,507

(110,135,030) (98,467,465)

(25,020) (25,329)

(209,638) (111,978)

1,115,442 2,092,524

11,593,322 17,531,646

225,411 (195,885)

(663,059) 476,369

5,729,194 5,252,825

43 W 5,066,135 5,729,194




Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

1. Reporting Entity

Korea Development Bank (the “Bank™) was established on April 1, 1954, in accordance with The Korea
Development Bank Act to finance and manage major industrial projects.

The Bank is engaged in the banking industry under The Korea Development Bank Act and other applicable statutes,
and in the fiduciary in accordance with the Financial Investment Services and Capital Markets Act.

Korea Finance Corporation (KoFC), the former ultimate parent company, and KDB Financial Group Inc.
(KDBFG), the former immediate parent company, were established by spin-offs of divisions of the Bank as of
October 28, 2009. KoFC and KDBFG were merged into the Bank, effective as of December 31, 2014. Issued capital
is W21,886,559 million with 4,377,311,768 shares of issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and 100%
of the Bank’s shares are owned by the government of the Republic of Korea.

The Bank’s head office is located in 14, Eunhaeng-ro (Yeouido-dong), Yeongdeungpo-gu, Seoul and its service
network as of December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Domestic Overseas

. Representative
Head Office Branches Branches Subsidiaries offices Total

KDB 1 61 10 7 7 86

2. Basis of Preparation

(1) Application of accounting standards
These separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Korean International Financial
Reporting Standards (“K-IFRS”) enacted by the Act on External Audit of Stock Companies.

(2) Changes and disclosures of accounting policies

(i) New and amended standards adopted
The Bank newly applied the following amended and enacted standards for the annual period beginning on January
1, 2021. The nature and the impact of each new standard or amendment are described below:

Amendments to K-IFRS 1109 ‘Financial Instruments’, K-IFRS 1039 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’, K-IFRS 1107 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure’, K-IFRS 1104 ‘Insurance Contracts' and K-IFRS
1116 ‘Lease’ — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

In relation to interest rate benchmark reform, the amendments provide a practical expedient allowing entities to
change the effective interest rate instead of changing the carrying amount and apply hedge accounting without
discontinuance although the interest rate benchmark is replaced in hedging relationship. The amendment does not
have a significant impact on the separate financial statements.



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

2.

Basis of Preparation, Continued

(ii) New standards and interpretations issued but not effective
The following new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been issued but not

. effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2021, and the Bank has not early adopted them. The nature

and the impact of each new standard, amendment and enactments are described below:

Amendments to K-IFRS 1103 ‘Business Combination’ — Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments update a reference of definition of assets and liabilities to qualify for recognition in revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting. However, the amendments add an exception for the recognition of
liabilities and contingent liabilities within the scope of K-IFRS 1037 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’, and K-IFRS 2121 ‘Levies’. The amendments also confirm that contingent assets should not be
recognized at the acquisition date. The amendments should be applied for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022, and earlier application is permitted. The Bank does not expect that these amendments have a
significant impact on the separate financial statements.

Amendments to K-IFRS 1016 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before intended use

The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, the entity
will recognize and disclose the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, as profit
or loss. The amendments should be applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022, and earlier
application is permitted. The Bank does not expect that these amendments have a significant impact on the separate
financial statements.

Amendments to K-IFRS 1037 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ — Onerous Contracts:
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments clarify that the direct costs of fulfilling a contract include both the incremental costs of fuifilling
the contract and an allocation of other costs directly related to fulfilling contracts when assessing whether the
contract is onerous. The amendments should be applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022,
and earlier application is permitted. The Bank does not expect that these amendments have a significant impact on
the separate financial statements.

Amendments to K-IFRS 1001 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current

The amendments clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or non-current, depending on the substantive
rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will
exercise right to defer settlement of the liability or the management’s expectations thereof. Also, the settlement of
liability includes the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments; however, it would be excluded if an option to
settle the liability by the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments is recognized separately from the liability
as an equity component of a compound financial instrument. The amendments should be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2023, and earlier application is permitted. The Bank does not expect that these
amendments have a significant impact on the separate financial statements.

Amendments to K- IFRS 1116 ‘Lease’ - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions etc. beyond June 30, 2021

The application of the practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a rent concession occurring as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic is a lease modification, is extended to lease payments originally
due on or before 30 June 2022. A lessee shall apply the practical expedient consistently to eligible contracts with
similar characteristics and in similar circumstances. The amendments should be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2021, and earlier application is permitted. The Bank does not expect that these
amendments have a significant impact on the separate financial statements.
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Basis of Preparation, Continued

Annual improvements to K-IFRS 2018-2020

Annual improvements of K-IFRS 2018-2020 Cycle should be applied for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022, and earlier application is permitted. The Bank does not expect that these amendments have a
significant impact on the separate financial statements. ‘

- K-IFRS 1109 ‘Financial Instruments’ — Fees related to the 10% test for derecognition of financial liabilities
The amendment clarifies that in applying the 10 per cent’ test to assess whether to derecognise a financial
liability, an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf.

- K-IFRS 1101 ‘First time Adoption of Korean International Financial Reporting Standards’ — Subsidiaries that
are first-time adopters

- K-IFRS 1116 ‘Leases’ — Lease incentives

- K-IFRS 1041 ‘Agriculture’ — Measuring fair value

Amendments to Korean IFRS No.1001 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require an entity to define and disclose their material accounting policy information. IFRS Practice
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements was amended to explain and demonstrate how to apply the concept of
materiality. The amendments should be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023,

“and earlier application is permitted. The Bank does not expect that these amendments have a significant impact on

the separate financial statements.

Amendments to Korean IFRS No.1008 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments introduce the definition of accounting estimates and clarify how to distinguish changes in
accounting estimates from changes in accounting policies. The amendments should be applied for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, and earlier application is permitted. The Bank does not expect that
these amendments have a significant impact on the separate financial statements.

Amendments to Korean IFRS No.1012 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from
a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the deferred tax recognition exemption so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The
amendments should be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, and earlier
application is permitted. The Bank does not expect that these amendments have a significant impact on the separate
financial statements.

(3) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following material items in
the statement of financial position:

- Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value

- Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

- Fair value hedged financial instruments with changes in fair value, due to hedged risks, recognized in profit or
loss ‘

- Liabilities for defined benefit plans, which are recognized as net of the total present value of defined benefit
obligations less the fair value of plan assets.

(4) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Korean won (“W”), which is the Bank’s functional currency and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Bank operates.
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(5) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with K-IFRS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Management’s estimates of outcomes may differ from actual outcomes if
management’s estimates and assumptions based on management’s best judgment at the reporting date are different
from the actual environment.

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and any change in an accounting estimate is recognized
prospectively by including it in profit or loss in the period of the change, if the change affects that period only.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

(i) Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss and other comprehensive income, and derivative
instruments are recognized and measured at fair value. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, fair
value is determined either by using a valuation technique or independent third-party valuation service. Valuation
techniques include using recent arm's length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if
available, referencing to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis and option pricing models.

Financial instruments, which are not actively traded in the market and those with less transparent market prices,
will have less objective fair values and require broad judgment on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty in market
factors and assumptions in price determination and other risks.

Diverse valuation techniques are used to determine the fair value of financial instruments, from generally accepted
market valuation models to internally developed valuation models that incorporate various types of assumptions
and variables.

(ii) Credit losses allowance

The Bank tests impairment and recognizes loss allowances on financial assets classified at amortized cost, debt
instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and recognizes provisions for payment
guarantee, financial guarantee and unused commitments. Accuracy of allowances and provisions for credit losses

"is dependent upon estimation of expected cash flows of the borrower for individually assessed allowances of loans,

and upon assumptions and methodology used for collectively assessed allowances for groups of loans, guarantees
and unused loan commitments.

The pandemic of COVID-19 in 2021 has a negative impact on the global economy despite of the Korean
government’s financial and economic stabilization packages. It may have a negative impact on the financial position
and financial performance of the Bank due to the increase of the expected credit losses on specific portfolios and
the potential losses on financial assets. The detail of credit risk exposures by industry affected by the pandemic of
COVID-19 as of December 31, 2021 is disclosed in Note 49. (2) and the exposures by industries could be changed
according to economic fluctuations.

Taking these circumstances into account comprehensively, the Bank recalculated the forward-looking information
used to estimate the expected credit loss in accordance with K-IFRS 1109 'Financial Instruments' as of December
31, 2021. During the twelve-month period since the end of the previous year, there have been changes in the
forward-looking information that affects expected credit losses, and it is predicted that major economic factors such
as the 2021 unemployment rate and economic growth rate will deteriorate due to the impact of COVID-19. To
reflect these changes, the Bank recalculated the forward-looking information by means of increasing the probability
of recession used in generating future economic scenarios and will continue to monitor the forward-looking
information on a quarterly basis.
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(iii) Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Actual income taxes in the future may not be
identical to the recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities.

(iv) Defined benefit liabilities

The Bank operates a defined benefit plan. Defined benefit liability is calculated by annual actuarial valuations as
of the reporting date. To perform the actuarial valuations, assumptions for discount rates, future salary increases
and others are required to be estimated. Defined benefit plans contain significant uncertainties in estimations due
to its long-term nature.

(6) Approval date for the separate financial statements

The separate financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on March 28, 2022, which
will be submitted for approval to the shareholders’ meeting to be held on March 31, 2022.

12



Korea Development Bank o

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements

IE

December 31, 2021 and 2020

3.

Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the Bank in preparation of its separate financial statements are
included below. The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these separate financial statements.

(1) Investments in subsidiaries and associates

The accompanying financial statements are separate financial statements in accordance with K-IFRS 1027
‘Separate Financial Statements’ and investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for at cost, not by
performance and net asset reported by the investee. Dividends received from subsidiaries and associates are
recognised as income as of the time the right to receive the dividends is established.

(2) Business combination of entities under common control

The assets and liabilities acquired under business combinations under common control are recognised at the
carrying amounts recognised previously in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent. The
difference between consideration transferred and carrying amounts of net assets acquired is recognised as part of
share premium.

(3) Operating segments

The Bank makes decisions regarding allocation of resources to segments and categorizes segments, based on
internal reports reviewed periodically by the chief operating decision maker, to assess performance. Information on
segments reported to the chief operating decision maker includes items directly attributable to segments as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise corporate assets (such as the
Bank Headquarters), head office expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities. The Bank recognises the CEO as
the chief operating decision maker.

(4) Foreign exchange

(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Bank, at exchange rates of the
dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary
items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted
for effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the
exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date
that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on transactions and translations of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss, except for differences arising on the translation of a financial instruments designated as hedges of the net
investment in foreign operations, or cash flow hedge, which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss shall be recognised in profit or
loss.

(ii) Foreign operations
If the presentation currency of the Bank is different from a foreign operation’s functional currency, the financial
statements of the foreign operation are translated into the presentation currency using the following methods:

Unless the functional currency of foreign operations is in a state of hyperinflation, assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the closing exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Revenues and expenses on
the statement of comprehensive income are translated at the exchange rates of the date of transaction. Foreign
currency differences that arise from translation are recognized as other comprehensive income, and the disposal of
a foreign operation is re-categorized as profit or loss as of the moment of the disposal profit or loss is recognized.

13



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

3.

Significant Acéounting Policies, Continued

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation, and any adjustments in fair value to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities due to such acquisition, are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation.
Therefore, such are expressed in the functional currency of the foreign operations and, alongside other assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation, translated at the closing exchange rate.

In the case of the disposal of a foreign operation, cumulative amounts of exchange difference regarding the foreign
operation, recognized separately from other comprehensive income, are re-categorized from assets to profit or loss
as of the disposal profit or loss is recognized.

(iii) Foreign exchange of net investment in foreign operations

Monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation, with none or little possibility of being settled in
the foreseeable future, are considered a part of the net investment in the foreign operation. Therefore, the exchange
difference is recognised as comprehensive income or loss in the financial statement and re-categorized to profit or
loss as of the disposal of the related net investment. -

(5) Recognition and measurement of financial instruments

(i) Initial recognition

The Bank recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its separate statement of financial position when the
Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets is recognized and derecognized using trade date accounting.

The Bank classifies financial assets as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, or financial assets at amortized cost on the basis of the Bank’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The
Bank classifies financial liabilities as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or financial liabilities
at amortized cost.

At initial recognition, a financial asset or financial liability is measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case
of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial instruments are measured at amortized cost or fair value based on classification
at initial recognition. '

Amortized cost

The amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of
any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance.

Fair value

Fair values, which the Bank primarily uses for the measurement of financial instruments, are the published price
quotations based on market prices or dealer price quotations of financial instruments traded in an active market
where available. These are the best evidence of fair value. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active
market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, an entity in the same
industry, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring ‘market
transactions on an arm's length basis.

If the market for a financial instrument is not active, fair value is determined either by using a valuation technique
or independent third-party valuation service. Valuation techniques include using recent arm's length market
transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, referencing to the current fair value of another
instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.
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The Bank uses valuation models that are commonly used by market participants and customized for the Bank to
determine fair values of common over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives such as options, interest rate swaps and
currency swaps which are based on the inputs observable in markets. For more complex instruments, the Bank uses
internally developed models, which are usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally used within
the industry, or a value measured by an independent external valuation institution as the fair values if all or some
of the inputs to the valuation models are not market observable and therefore it is necessary to estimate fair value
based on certain assumptions.

If the valuation technique does not reflect all factors which market participants would consider in setting a price,
the fair value is adjusted to reflect those factors. Those factors include counterparty credit risk, bid-ask spread,
liquidity risk and others.

The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent
with economic methodologies applied for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, the Bank calibrates the
valuation technique and tests its validity using prices of observable current market transactions of the same
instrument or based on other relevant observable market data.

(iii) Derecognition
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognized financial asset or financial liability from the statement of
financial position. The Bank derecognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when, and only when:

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or
the financial assets have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets are also transferred, or all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are neither substantially
transferred nor retained and the Bank has not retained control. If the Bank neither transfers nor disposes of
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets, the Bank continues to recognize the
financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset.

If the Bank transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Bank continues to recognize the transferred asset
in its entirety and recognize a financial liability for the consideration received.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognized from the statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the separate statements of financial position
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

(6) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, including cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other highly liquid short-term investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(7) Non-derivative financial assets

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Any non-derivative financial asset classified as held for trading or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income or financial assets measured at amortized cost is categorized under financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Bank may designate certain financial assets upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss when
the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred
to as 'an accounting mismatch') that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the
gains and losses on them on different bases.

After initial recognition, a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss is measured at fair value and gains or
losses arising from a change in the fair value are recognized in profit or loss. Interest income and dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognized in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Bank classifies financial assets as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income if they
meet the following conditions: 1) debt instruments that are a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and consistent with representing solely payments of
prmmpal and interest on the principal amount outstanding or 2) equity instruments, not held for trading with the
objective of generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer’s margin, designated as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

After initial recognition, a financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income is measured at fair
value. Gain and loss from changes in fair value, other than dividend income and interest income amortized using
effective interest method and exchange differences arising on monetary items which are recognized directly in profit
or loss, are recognized as other comprehensive income in equity.

At disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, cumulative gain or loss is
recognized as profit or loss for the reporting period. However, cumulative gain or loss of equity instrument
designated as fair value through other comprehensive income are not recycled to profit or loss at disposal.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences resulting from changes in amortized cost are recognized in profit or loss,
and other changes are recognized as equity.

(iii) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset, which are held within the business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and consistent with representing solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are classified as a financial asset at amortized cost. Financial assets at amortized cost are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method after initial recognition and interest
income is recognized using the effective interest method.
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Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(8) Expected credit loss of financial assets

The Bank measures expected credit loss and recognizes loss allowance at the end of the reporting period for
financial assets measured at amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive income with the exception
of financial asset measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The expected credit loss (“ECL”) is the weighted average amount of possible outcomes within a certain range,
reflecting the time value of money, estimates on the past, current and future situations, and information accessible
without excessive cost of effort.

The Bank uses the following three measurement techniques in accordance with K-IFRS:

- General approach: for financial assets and off-balance-sheet unused credit line that are not applied below two
approaches

- Simplified approach: for receivables, contract assets and lease receivables

- Credit-impaired approach: for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets

The general approach is applied differently depending on the significance of the increase of the credit risk. If, at the
reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, an
entity shall measure the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses. If the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, an entity
shall measure the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses
at each reporting date.

The Bank applies the simplified approach to 1) trade receivables and contract assets that do not have a significant
financing component or 2) trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables upon determining the Bank’s
accounting policies as the application of the simplified approach. The approach requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognized from initial recognition of the financial assets. Under credit-impaired approach, the Bank shall only
recognize the cumulative changes in lifetime expected credit losses since initial recognition as a loss allowance for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets.

The following non-exhaustive list of information may be relevant in assessing changes in credit risk:

- Significant changes in internal price indicators of credit risk as a result of a change in credit risk since inception

- Other changes in the rates or terms of an existing financial instrument that would be significantly different if the
instrument was newly originated or issued at the reporting date

- An actual or expected significant change in the financial instrument’s external credit rating -

- An actual or expected internal credit rating downgrade for the borrower or decrease in behavioural scoring used
to assess credit risk internally

- An actual or expected significant change in the operating results of the borrower

- Past due information

(i) Forward-looking information
The Bank uses forward-looking information, when it determines whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition and measures expected credit losses.

The Bank assumes the risk component has a certain correlation with the business cycle, and calculates the expected
credit loss by reflecting the forward-looking information with macroeconomic variables on the measurement inputs.

Forward looking information used in calculation of expected credit loss is derived after comprehensive

consideration of a variety of factors including scenario in management planning, worst-case scenario used for stress
testing, third party forecast, and others.
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(ii) Measuring expected credit losses on financial assets at amortized cost

The amount of the loss on financial assets at amortized cost is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. The Bank estimates expected future cash flows for financial assets that are individually
significant (individual assessment of impairment).

For financial assets that are not individually significant, the Bank collectively estimates expected credit loss by
grouping loans with homogeneous credit risk profile (collective assessment of impairment).

Individual assessment of impairment

Individual assessment of impairment losses is calculated using management's best estimate on present value of
expected future cashflows. The Bank uses all the available information including operating cash flow of the
borrower and net realizable value of any collateral held.

Collective assessment of impairment

Collective assessment of loss allowance involves historical loss experience along with incorporation of forward-
looking information. Such process incorporates factors such as type of collateral, product and borrowers, credit
rating, size of portfolio and recovery period and applies probability of default on a group of assets and loss given
default by type of recovery method. Also, the expected credit loss model involves certain assumption to determine
input based on loss experience and forward-looking information. These models and assumptions are periodically
reviewed to reduce gap between loss estimate and actual loss experience.

The expected credit loss for financial assets measured at amortized cost is recognized as the loss allowance, and
when the financial asset is determined to be irrecoverable, the carrying amount and loss allowance are decreased.
If financial assets previously written off are recovered, the loss allowance is increased and the difference is
recognized in the current profit or loss.

(iii) Measuring expected credit losses on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Measuring method of expected credit losses on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
is equal to the method of financial assets at amortized cost, except for changes in loss allowances that are recognized
as other comprehensive income. Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income for sale or repayment of
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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(9) Derivative financial instruments including hedge accounting

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value at the inception of the contract and re-estimated
at fair value subsequently. The recognition of profit or loss due to changes in fair value of derivative instruments is
as described below:

(i) Hedge accounting

Derivative financial instruments are accounted differently depending on whether hedge accounting is applied, and
therefore, are classified into trading purpose derivatives and hedging purpose derivatives.

Upon the transaction of hedging purpose derivatives, two different types of hedge accounting are applied; a fair
value hedge, and a cash flow hedge. A fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a
recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability
or firm commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect profit or loss. A cash flow hedge is a
hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that (i) is attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability (such as all or some future interest payments on variable rate debt) or a highly probable
forecast transaction and (ii) could affect profit or loss.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Bank formally documents the relationship between the hedged item
and the hedging instrument, including the nature of the risk, the objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge,
and the method that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship.

Fair value hedge

For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recognised
in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. Meanwhile, the change in the fair value of the hedged
item, attributable to the risk hedged, is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also
recognised in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. When the hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship is terminated. For hedged item recorded at amortized cost, the
difference between the carrying value of the hedged item on termination and the face value is amortized over the
remaining term of the original hedge using the EIR.

Cash flow hedge

For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of gain or loss on the hedging instruments is
initially recognised directly in equity. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is
recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income. When the hedged cash flow affects the profit
or loss in statement of comprehensive income, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the
corresponding income or expense line in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. When a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when the hedged forecasted transaction is ultimately recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. When a forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain and loss
that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

The Bank designates non-derivative financial instruments as hedging instruments for foreign currency risk arising
from net investments in foreign operations and recognises the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
that is determined to be an effective hedge in other comprehensive income. The cumulative amounts recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to both the foreign exchange differences arising on translation of the results
and financial position of the foreign operation and the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to
be an effective hedge of the net investment are reclassed from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment
when the Bank disposes of the foreign operation.

(ii) Trading purpose derivatives
For trading purpose derivatives transaction, changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in net income.

(10) Day one profit or loss recognition

For financial instruments classified as level 3 on the fair value level hierarchy measured using assess variables not
observable in the market, the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price, which
is equivalent to Day one profit or loss, is amortized by using the straight-line method over time.
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(11) Property and equipment

The Bank’s property and equipment are recognised at the carrying amount at historical costs less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Historical costs include the expenditures directly related to the
acquisition of assets. :

Subsequent costs are recognised in the carrying amount of assets or, if appropriate, as separate assets if the
probabilities future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow into the Bank and the costs can be
measured reliably; the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Furthermore, any other repairs or
maintenances are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to the amount of
residual value less acquisition cost over the following estimated useful lives:

: Type Useful lives (years)
Buildings ' 20~ 50
Structure 10 ~40
Movable property 4

Property and equipment are impaired when the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. The Bank assesses
residual value and economic life of its assets at each reporting date and adjusts useful lives when necessary. Any
gain or loss arising from the disposal of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in non-operating income (expense) in the statement of
comprehensive income.

(12) Investment property

The Bank classifies property held for rental income or benefits from capital appreciation as investment property.
Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
cost model is applied. Subsequent to initial recognition, an item of investment property is carried at its cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in the period of de-recognition. Reclassification to other account is made if there is a change
in use of corresponding investment property.

Depreciation of mvestment property is calculated using the straight-line method over its estimated useful lives as
follows:

Type Useful lives (years)
Buildings 20 ~-50
Structure 10 ~40
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(13) Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and the probabilities future economic
benefits from the asset will flow into the Bank are high. Separately acquired intangible assets are recognised at the
acquisition cost, and subsequently, the cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment is
recognised as the carrying amount.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the four-year to 30-year period of useful economic lives using
the straight-line method. At the end of each reporting period, the Bank reviews intangible assets for any evidence
that indicate impairment, and upon the presence of such evidence, the Bank estimates the amount recoverable and
recognises the loss accordingly.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment annually. Furthermore,
the Bank reviews such intangible assets to determine whether it is appropriate to consider these assets to have
indefinite useful lives. If in the case the Bank concludes an asset is not qualified to be classified as non-finite,
prospective measures are taken to consider such an asset as finite.

(14) Leases

The Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments at the commencement date of the lease. The Bank elected not to
apply the requirements to the short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is measured at its cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss with adjustments reflected arising from remeasurements of the lease liability. The cost of the right-of-use asset
comprise the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
and any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis from the
commencement date of the lease.

Lease liabilities .

At the commencement date, the lease liability is measured at present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lesseé exercising an option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs.

When measuring the present value, the lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If
such implicit rate cannot be readily determined, the Bank uses the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate. The lease
liability is subsequently increased by the amount of interest expenses recognized on the lease liability and reduced
by the lease payments made.

Short-term lease and lease of low-value assets .

The Bank does not apply the requirements of lessee accounting to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Bank recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as expenses on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. »
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(15) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Bank tests for any evidence of impairment in assets and reviews whether the impairment has taken place by
estimating the recoverable amount, at the end of each reporting period. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
fair value less cost and value in use of an asset.

Except for impairment losses in respect of goodwill which are never reversed, an impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years.

(16) Assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, that are expected to be recovered primarily
through sale rather than through continuing use, are classified as held for sale. To be classified as held for sale, the
asset (or disposal group) must be available for immediate sale in its present condition and its sale must be highly
probable. The assets or disposal group that are classified as assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.

The Bank recognizes an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent write-down of an asset (or disposal group) to
fair value less costs to sell, and a gain for any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell, up to the cumulative
impairment loss previously recognized.

Non-current assets that are classified as held for sale or part of a disposal group classified as held for sale are not
depreciated (or amortized).

(17) Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Bank classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or
other financial liabilities, in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of
financial liability. The Bank recognizes these financial liabilities in the statement of financial position when the
Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial liability.

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. Financial liabilities and derivatives are classified as
financial instruments held for trading if they are acquired for repurchasing soon. Financial liabilities are classified
as financial liabilities at FVTPL upon initial recognition, if the profit or loss from the liabilities indicates to be more
purpose-appropriate to be recognised as profit or loss. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are designated at fair value in
subsequent measurements, and any related un-realized profit or loss is recognised as profit or loss. In addition, for
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability, the Bank present this change in other comprehensive income, and does not recycle this other
comprehensive income to profit or loss, subsequently.

(ii) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost are recognised at fair value less cost less transaction cost upon initial
recognition, and subsequently at amortized costs. The difference between the proceeds (net of transaction cost) and
the redemption value is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the penods of the liabilities
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of a loan facility are recognised as transaction costs of the loan, if the probability
that some or all the facility will be drawn down is high. If, however, there is not enough evidence to conclude a
draw-down of some or all the facility will occur, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.
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(18) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits that are due to be settled wholly before 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. When an employee has rendered service to the
Bank during an accounting period, the Bank recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

(ii) Retirement benefits: defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Bank pays fixed contributions into a separate fund.
The Bank is no longer responsible for any foreseeable future liability after a certain amount or percentage of money
is set aside for defined contribution plans. If the pension plan allows for early retirement, payments are recognised
as employee benefits. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for service before the end of the
reporting period, the Bank recognises that excess as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to a reduction
in future payments or a cash refund.

(iii) Retirement benefits: defined benefit plans

The Bank classifies all the pensions as defined benefit plans except defined contribution plans. The Bank’s net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid and have terms to maturity like the terms of the related pension liability.

Remeasurements of the net defined henefit liabilities (assets), which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return
on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income.

(19) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation because of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

(20) Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer (the Bank) to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the original or changed terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantees are initially recognized in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of:

- The amount determined in accordance with K-IFRS 1109 ‘Financial Instruments’ and

- The initial amount recognized, less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with
K-IFRS 1115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’. ‘
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(21) Securities under resale or repurchase agreements

Securities purchased under agreements to resell are recorded as other loans and receivables and the related interest
from these securities is recorded as interest income; securities sold under agreements to repurchase are recorded as
other borrowings, and the related interest from these securities is recorded as interest expense.

(22) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The effective
interest method measures the amortized costs of financial instruments and allocates the interest income or expense
during the related period.

Upon the calculation of the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates future cash flows by taking into consideration
all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit loss. The calculation also reflects any fees or
points paid or received, transaction costs and any related premiums or discounts. In the case that the cash flow and
expected duration of a financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, the effective interest rate is calculated by
the contractual cash flow during the contract period.

Once an impairment loss has been recognized on a financial asset or a group of similar assets, subsequent interest
income is recognized on the interest rate that was used to discount future cash flow for measuring the impairment
loss.

(23) Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income and expense are classified as follows according to related regulations:

(i) Fees and commission from financial instruments

Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or
liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate. It includes those related to evaluation of the
borrowers’ financial status, guarantee, collateral, other agreements and related evaluation as well as business
transaction, rewards for activities, such as document preparation and recording and setup fees incurred during
issuance of financial liabilities. However, when financial instruments are classified as financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss, fees and commission are recognized as revenue upon initial recognition.

(ii) Fees and commission from services

Fees and commission income charged in exchange for services to be performed during a certain period of time such
as asset management fees, consignment fees and assurance service fees are recognized as the related services are
performed. When a loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan and K-IFRS 1039
‘Financial Instrument: Recognition and Measurement’ is not applied for the commitment, the related loan
commitment fees are recognized as revenue proportionally to time over the commitment period.

(iii) Fees and commission from significant transaction

Fees and commission from significant transactions, such as trading stocks and other securities, negotiation and
mediation activities for third parties, for instance business transfer and takeover, are recognized when transactions
are completed.

(24) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized upon the establishment of the Bank’s right to receive the payment.
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(25) Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Current income tax and deferred income tax are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event, which is recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, or a business combination.

The Bank recognizes deferred income tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates, except to the extent that the Bank can control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
The Bank recognizes deferred income tax assets for all deductible temporary differences arising from investments
in associates, to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the reporting
period when the assets are realized, or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred income tax assets and liabilities reflects the income tax effects that would follow
from the manner in which the Bank expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

The carrying amount of a deferred income tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or
all of that deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are off-set only if the Bank has a legally enforceable right to off-set the
related current income tax assets and liabilities, and the assets and liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same
tax authority and are intended to be settled on a net basis.

(26) Accounting for trust accounts

The Bank, for financial reporting, differentiates trust assets from identifiable assets according to the F inancial
Investment Services and Capital Markets Act. Furthermore, the Bank receives trust fees from the application,
management and disposal of trust assets, and appropriates such amounts for fees from trust accounts.

Meanwhile, in the case the fee from an unspecified principal or interests guaranteed money in trust does not meet
the principal or interest amount, even after appropriating deficit with trust fees and special reserve, the Bank fills
in the remaining deficit in the trust account and appropriates such amounts for losses on trust accounts.

(27) Regulatory reserve for credit losses

When the total sum of allowance for possible credit losses is lower than the amount prescribed in Article 29(1) of
the Regulations on Supervision of Banking Business, the Bank records the difference as regulatory reserve for credit
losses at the end of each reporting period.

In the case that the existing regulatory reserve for credit losses exceeds the amount needed to be set aside at the

reporting date, the surplus may be reversed. Furthermore, in the case that undisposed deficit exists, regulatory
reserve for credit losses is saved from the time the undisposed deficit is disposed.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(28) Earnings per share

The Bank represents its diluted and basic earnings per common share in the separate statement of comprehensive
income. Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing net profit attributable to shareholders of the Bank
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted earnings per
share is calculated by adjusting net profit attributable to common shareholders of the Bank, considering dilution
effects from all potential common shares, and the weighted average number of common shares outstanding,

(29) Corrections of errors

Prior period errors shall be corrected by retrospective restatement in the first set of financial statements authorised
for issue after their discovery except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific

effects or the cumulative effect of the error.

4. Cash and Due from Banks

(1) Cash and due from banks as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Cash W 55,083 52,240
Due from banks in Korean won:
d Due from Bank of Korea 5,673,412 4,140,277
‘ Other due from banks in Korean won 334,272 347,074
6,007,684 4,487,351
Due from banks in foreign currencies / off-
shores . 5,913,000 5,989,387
W 11,975,767 10,528,978
(2) Restricted due from banks as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
© Reserve deposit W 4,387,441 3,052,883
Deposit of monetary stabilization account 1,500,000 1,300,000
Others ' 518,886 216,549
W 6,406,327 4,569,432
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S.

Securities Measured at FVTPL

(1) Details of securities in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are

as follows:

Securities denominated in Korean won:

Stocks b 1.74

Equity investments
Beneficiary certificates
Government and public bonds
Financial bonds

Others

Securities denominated in foreign currencies/off-
shores:
Equity investments
Beneficiary certificates
Debt securities

Securities denominated in Korean won:
Stocks W
Equity investments
Beneficiary certificates
Government and public bonds

Securities denominated in foreign currencies/off-
shores:
Equity investments
Beneficiary certificates
Debt securities

December 31, 2021

Fair value

(Carrying

Face value Acquisition cost amounts)
- 1,011,501 884,330
- 451,937 490,230
- 6,559,758 6,835,319
632,000 605,809 606,007
165,000 164,048 163,787
50,470 50,659 50,436
847,470 8,843,712 9,030,109
- 37,157 62,286
- 671,071 673,050
53,348 52,985 53,366
53,348 761,213 788,702
900,818 9,604,925 9,818,811

December 31, 2020

Fair value

(Carrying

Face value Acquisition cost amounts)
- 745,860 622,918
- 233,467 291,984
- 5,726,787 5,841,059
1,024,950 1,031,165 1,023,738
1,024,950 7,737,279 7,779,699
- 21,177 19,800
- 555,149 507,518
13,600 14,532 13,614
13,600 590,858 540,932
1,038,550 8,328,137 8,320,631
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S.  Securities Measured at FYTPL, Continued

(2) Equity securities with disposal restrictions in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of December
31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

. } December 31, 2021
Number of Carrying
Company shares amount Restricted period
National Happiness Fund Co., Ltd. 34,066 W 47,647 Undecided
Shinhan Metal Co., Ltd. 7,692 - Until December 31, 2022
41,758 W 47,647
December 31, 2020
Number of Carrying .
Company shares amount Restricted period
National Happiness Fund Co., Ltd. 34,066 W 66,934 Undecided
Shinhan Metal Co., Ltd. 7,692 - Until December 31, 2021
41,758 W 66,934
6. Securities Measured at FVYOCI ,
.. (1) Details of securities measured at FVOCI as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
December 31, 2021
R Fair value
“ (Carrying
Face value Acquisition cost amounts)
y.  Securities denominated in Korean won:
Stocks and equity investments W - 10,202,849 10,473,759
“ Government and public bonds 1,160,000 1,158,713 1,157,222
Financial bonds 1,820,000 1,820,839 1,817,298
Corporate bonds 8,444,966 8,445,272 8,343,980
Others 2,137,849 2,137,850 8,399,919
13,562,815 23,765,523 30,192,178
Securities denominated in foreign currencies/off-
shores:
Equity securities - 7,594 6,955
Debt securities 7,179,340 7,393,555 7,258,363
7,179,340 7,401,149 7,265,318
Loaned securities:
Debt securities 420,000 416,002 417,640
W 21,162,155 31,582,674 37,875,136
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6.

Securities Measured at FVOCI, Continued

December 31, 2020
Fair value
(Carrying
Face value Acquisition cost amounts)
Securities denominated in Korean won:
Stocks and equity investments - 9,964,039 10,060,520
Government and public bonds 1,900,000 1,923,926 1,918,765
Financial bonds 4,230,000 4,236,741 4,237,990
Corporate bonds 7,570,541 7,570,748 7,558,145
Others 2,141,115 2,137,849 4,803,611
15,841,656 25,833,303 28,579,031
Securities denominated in foreign currencies/off-
shores: ;
Equity securities - 1,640 984
Debt securities 5,104,050 5,206,146 5,271,504
5,104,050 5,207,786 5,272,488
Loaned securities: '
Debt securities 290,000 289,641 289,806
W 21,235,706 31,330,730 34,141,325

Equity instruments that are acquired due to debt-to-equity swap, investment in kind and investment in ventures and
small and medium-sized enterprises are designated as measured at FVOCI. The realized pre-tax income and loss
on disposal of equity securities for the years ended December 31,2021 and 2020 are the amount of W:60,102 million
of gain and W56,331 million of loss, respectively, which is directly recognized in retained earnings.

(2) Changes in securities measured at FVOCI for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020
Beginning balance W 34,141,325 24,249,160
Acquisition 36,914,523 57,798,921
Disposal (37,413,898) (50,600,127)
Change due to amortization (46,622) (47,692)
Change in fair value 3,559,286 3,046,042
Foreign exchange differences 574,339 . (318,693)
Others (*) 146,183 © 13,714
Ending balance W 37,875,136 34,141,325

(*) For the year ended December 31, 2021, others represent the increase in securities measured at FVOCI including

shares of DAE SUN SHIPBUILDING & ENGINEERING CO., LTD., HEUNG-A SHIPPING CO., LTD. and
others acquired in accordance with the workout plan decided by the Council of Financial Creditors, shares of
Woongjin Energy Co., Ltd. and others acquired in accordance with the rehabilitation plan under the Debtor
Rehabilitation and Bankruptcy Act. and shares of L&F CO., LTD., NKMAX Co., Ltd., KASANETWORK PTE.
LTD. and others acquired through exercise of conversion rights of the convertible bonds. For the year ended
December 31, 2020, others represent the increase in securities measured at FVOCI including shares of SOLUM
CO., LTD. acquired through exercise of conversion rights of the convertible bonds, shares of POSCO PLANTEC
CO., LTD. and High Gain Antenna Co., Ltd. acquired pursuant to decision of the Council of Financial Creditors
under the Corporate Restructuring Promotion Act, and shares of Barun Electronics Co., Ltd., STEELLIFE Co.,
C-PRO ELECTRONICS CO., LTD., Dong-A Tanker Co., SEOKJIN E&T CO.,LTD., Sung Chang Inter Fashion
Co., Ltd. and others acquired in accordance with the rehabilitation plan under the Debtor Rehabilitation and
Bankruptcy Act. r '
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6. Securities Measured at FVOCI, Continued

(3) Equity securities with disposal restrictions in securities measured at FVOCI as of December 31, 2021 and 2020
are as follows:

) December 31, 2021
Number of Carrying
Company (*1) shares amount Restricted period

UAMCO., Ltd. 113,050 W 176,628 Undecided
High Gain Antenna Co., Ltd. 18,138 273 Undecided
DNGYV.,, Co. Ltd. (*2) 500,000 1 Undecided
HEUNG-A SHIPPING CO.,LTD. 3,019,800 8,153 Until July 11, 2022
K Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. 1,115,242 1,258 Until August 3, 2022
WOOJEON CO., LTD. 591,118 1 Until November 12, 2022
Kumbho Tire Co., Inc. 21,339,320 98,374 Until July 6, 2023 (*3)
POSCO Plantec Co., Ltd. 1,838,744 1,806  Until December 31, 2023 or

listing date

28,535,412 W 286,494

(*1) For the year ended December 31, 2021, shares of Taihan Electric Wire Co., Ltd., CREA IN Co., Ltd. held as of
December 31, 2020 have been sold.
(*2) For the year ended December 31, 2021, the name of Engine Tech Co., Ltd. has been changed to DNGV.,, Co.
5 Ltd. :
(*3) From July 6, 2021, 50% of the shares may be sold every year.

December 31, 2020
Number of Carrying
Company shares amount Restricted period

UAMCO.,, Ltd. 113,050 W 150,244 Undecided
High Gain Antenna Co., Ltd. 18,138 - Undecided

. Engine Tech Co., Ltd. 500,000 1 ‘Undecided

" Taihan Electric Wire Co., Ltd. 15,892,055 21,772 Undecided
POSCO Plantec Co., Ltd. 1,838,744 2,468 Until June 9, 2021
CREA IN Co., Ltd. 14,383 140 Until December 21, 2021
Kumho Tire Co., Inc. 21,339,320 80,769 Until July 6, 2023 (*)

39,715,690 255,394

(*) From July 6, 2021, 50% of the shares méy be sold every year.
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6. Securities Measured at FYOCI, Continued
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(4) Changes in the loss allowance in relation to securities measured at FVOCI for the years ended December 31,

2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021
Lifetime expected credit loss
. 12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss Impaired impaired Total -
Beginning balance W 9,671 1,209 70,398 81,278
Transfer to 12-month expected credit .
loss 400 (400) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses:
Transfer to non credit-impaired ‘
debt securities ' (1,786) 1,786 - -
Transfer to credit-impaired
debt securities - - - -
Provision for loss allowance 2,472 1,469 822 4,763
Disposal (423) - - (423)
Foreign currency translation, etc. 1,327 (944) 448 831
Ending balance W 11,661 3,120 71,668 86,449
2020
Lifetime expected credit loss
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss ‘ Impaired impaired Total
Beginning balance W 2,354 116 71,336 73,806
Transfer to 12-month expected credit
loss 3 3) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses:
- Transfer to non credit-impaired
debt securities (361) 361 - -
Transfer to credit-impaired
debt securities - - - -
Provision for loss allowance 8,177 300 60 8,537
Disposal (130) .- - (130)
Foreign currency translation, etc. (372) 435 (998) (935)
Ending balance W 9,671 1,209 70,398 81,278
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7.  Securities Measured at Amortized Cost
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(1) Securities measured at amortized cost as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Securities denominated in Korean won:

Government and public bonds W
Financial bonds

Corporate bonds
Less: loss allowance

h1.14
Securities denominated in Korean won:

Government and public bonds W
Financial bonds
Less: loss allowance

. W

Beginning balance W
Acquisition

Redemption

Change due to amortization

Impairment loss

Ending balance

<,

December 31, 2021
Amortized cost Fair value
1,437,496 1,437,496
1,079,249 1,079,204
452,290 452,177
2,969,035 2,968,877
(158) -
2,968,877 2,968,877
December 31, 2020
Amortized cost Fair value
665,183 665,183
120,090 120,081
785,273 785,264
®) -
785,264 785,264

(2) Changes in securities measured at amortized cost for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020
785,264 1,501,947
2,888,991 657,701

(700,000) . (1,370,003)

(5,229) (4,374)

(149 ()]
2,968,877 785,264
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8. Loans Measured at FVTPL

(1) Loans measured at FVTPL as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Fair value Fair value
(Carrying (Carrying
Amortized cost amounts) Amortized cost amounts)
Loans in Korean won:
Privately placed corporate bonds W 471,645 644,412 795,871 1,429,258
Loans in foreign currencies/off-shores: '
Privately placed corporate bonds - - 5,440 5,256
. W 471,645 644,412 801,311 1,434,514

(2) Gains (losses) related to loans measured at FVTPL for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as

follows:
. 2021 2020
Transaction gains (losses) on loans measured at FVTPL
Transaction gains W 1,860,411 4,568
Transaction losses (9,692) (29,155)
: 1,850,719 (24,587
Valuation gains (losses) on loans measured at FVTPL
Valuation gains 83,760 676,776
Valuation losses (4,349) (27,509)
79,411 649,267
W 1,930,130 624,680
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9.

Loans Measured at Amortized Cost

Loans in Korean won:

Loans for working capital
Loans for facility development
Loans for households

Inter-bank loans

Loans in foreign currencies:

Loans
Inter-bank loans
Off-shore loans

Other loans:
Bills bought in foreign currency
Advances for customers on '
acceptances and guarantees
Privately placed corporate bonds

Others

Less:
Loss allowance for loan
Present value discount
Deferred loan origination costs

and fees

(1) Loans measured at amortized cost and loss allowance for loan as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

34

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Amortized cost Fair value Amortized cost Fair value
64,913,903 63,346,107 63,711,135 62,132,170
56,414,412 55,263,451 51,237,311 50,692,553
206,579 204,895 238,011 240,468
2,827,972 2,639,400 2,710,868 2,589,344
124,362,866 121,453,853 117,897,325 115,654,535
22,276,205 21,974,270 17,196,875 16,860,390
2,391,409 2,390,650 1,636,589 1,636,166
16,990,941 16,581,263 14,697,580 14,387,438
41,658,555 40,946,183 33,531,044 32,883,994
2,581,399 2,579,637 2,198,964 2,198,079
17,416 7,068 49,908 10,776
1,039,406 1,022,432 1,182,436 969,648
5,257,538 5,130,169 4,223,895 4,102,454
8,895,759 8,739,306 7,655,203 7,280,957
174,917,180 171,139,342 159,083,572 155,819,486
(4,154,330) (3,776,491)
(15,881) (15,906)
16,425 9,003
170,763,394 155,300,178
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9.

Loans Measured at Amortized Cost, Continued

(2) Changes in loss allowance for loan for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total

Beginning balance W 640,094 1,398,461 1,737,936 3,776,491
Transfer to 12-month expected credit

loss 629 (629) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected

credit losses:

Transfer to non credit-impaired

loans (2,108,521) 2,108,521 - -

Transfer to credit-impaired loans (1,400,818) (3,526) 1,404,344 -
Provision for (reversal of) loss

allowance 3,235,702 (1,312,045) (1,068,109) 855,548
Write-offs - - (33,671) (33,671)
Recovery - - 57,778 57,778
Sale - - (195,397) (195,397)
Debt-to-equity swap - - (402,680) (402,680)
Foreign currency translation 15,036 7,947 39,620 62,603
Other (39,163) 43,770 29,051 33,658
Ending balance W 342,959 2,242,499 1,568,872 4,154,330

2020
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total

Beginning balance W 169,293 1,045,942 1,890,547 3,105,782
Transfer to 12-month expected credit

loss , 60,305 (60,305) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected

credit losses:

Transfer to non credit-impaired

loans (256,809) 279,451 (22,642) -

Transfer to credit-impaired loans (90,489) (124,895) 215,384 -
Provision for (reversal of) loss

allowance 775,958 116,607 284,462 1,177,027
Write-offs - - (158,616) (158,616)
Recovery - - 54,239 54,239
Sale - - (272,431) (272,431)
Debt-to-equity swap - - (415,141) (415,141)
Foreign currency translation (2,105) (11,221) (5,862) (19,188)
Other (16,059) 152,882 167,996 304,819
Ending balance W 640,094 1,398,461 1,737,936 3,776,491
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9.

Loans Measured at Amortized Cost, Continued

(3) Gains (losses) related to loans measured at amortized cost for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are
as follows: '

2021 2020

Provision for allowance for loan losses W (855,548) (1,177,027)
Gains (losses) on disposal of loan 32,025 (109,719)

W - (823,523) (1,286,746)
(4) Changes in net deferred loan origination costs and fees for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as

follows:
2021 2020

Beginning balance W 9,003 7,188
New deferrals 21,189 14,609
Amortization (13,767) (12,794)
Ending balance W 16,425 9,003
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10.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Bank’s derivative financial instruments consist of trading derivatives and hedging derivatives, depending on
the nature of each transaction. The Bank enters into hedging derivative transactions mainly for the purpose of
hedging risk related to changes in fair values of the underlying assets and liabilities and future cash flows.

The Bank enters into trading derivative transactions such as futures, forwards, swaps and options for arbitrage
transactions by speculating on the future value of the underlying asset. Derivatives held-for trading transactions
include contracts with the Bank’s clients and its liquidation position.

For the purpose of hedging the exposure to the variability of fair values and cash flows of funds in Korean won by
changes in interest rate, the Bank mainly uses interest swaps or currency swaps. The main counterparties are foreign
financial institutions and local banks. In addition, to hedge the exposure to the variability of fair values of bonds in
foreign currencies by changes in interest rate or foreign exchange rate, the Bank mainly uses interest swaps or
currency swaps.

The Bank applies net investment hedge accounting by designating non-derivative financial instruments as hedging
instruments and any gain or loss on the hedging instruments relating to the effective portion of the hedge is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal or partial disposal of the foreign operation.
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10. Derivative Financial Instruments, Continued

3
'“]l

3

(1) The notional amounts outstanding for derivative contracts and the carrying amounts of the derivative financial
instruments as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Trading purpose derivative financial
instruments: '
Interest rate
Futures W
Swaps
Options

Currency
Futures
Forwards
Swaps
Options

Stock
Options
Allowance and other adjustments

Hedging purpose derivative financial
instruments:
Interest rate (*)
Swaps
Currency
Swaps
Allowance and other adjustments

W

December 31, 2021
Notional amounts Carrying amounts

Buy Sell Asset Liability
- 702,640 - -
244,579,384 244,578,686 864,321 488,956
8,369,912 14,664,094 305,022 377,850
252,949,296 259,945,420 1,169,343 866,806
17,783 - - -
'68,100,960 53,060,246 1,771,579 1,134,731
57,834,161 70,349,339 | 1,919,679 2,499,896
377,494 375,834 889 578
126,330,398 123,785,419 3,692,147 3,635,205
53,753 50,736 10,068 221

- - (94,686) (854)
379,333,447 383,781,575 4,776,872 4,501,378
23,795,059 23,795,059 330,758 45,989
9,073,004 9,076,498 198,077 214,502
- - (135) (4,028)

32,868,063 32,871,557 528,700 256,463
412,201,510 416,653,132 5,305,572 4,757,841

(*) The expected maximum period for which derivative contracts, applied the cash flow hedge accounting, are
exposed to risk of cash flow fluctuation is until April 29, 2025.
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10. Derivative Financial Instruments, Continued

Trading purpose derivative financial
instruments:
Interest rate
Futures w
Swaps
Options

Currency
Futures
Forwards
-Swaps
Options

Stock
Options
Allowance and other adjustments

Hedging purpose derivative financial
instruments:
Interest rate (*)
Swaps
Currency
Swaps
Allowance and other adjustments

W

Loonud
December 31, 2020
Notional amounts Carrying amounts
Buy Sell Asset Liability
55,000 151,200 - -
187,095,329 187,096,172 1,493,796 811,643
9,055,649 12,890,976 291,068 329,946
196,205,978 200,138,348 1,784,864 1,141,589
16,320 - - -
58,129,120 49,012,225 1,807,677 2,251,316
50,228,615 56,919,490 3,285,228 2,808,945
422,146 403,029 2,909 5,299
108,796,201 106,334,744 5,095,814 5,065,560
53,571 7,315 8,214 661
- - (7,921) (908)
305,055,750 306,480,407 6,880,971 6,206,902
18,877,120 18,877,120 : 885,364 19,567
8,308,800 7,985,902 563,558 83,201
- - (517) (4,383)
27,185,920 26,863,022 1,448,405 98,385
332,241,670 333,343,429 8,329,376 6,305,287

(*) The expected maximum period for which derivative contracts, applied the cash flow hedge accounting, are
exposed to risk of cash flow fluctuation is until April 29, 2025.

(2) The notional amounts outstanding for the hedging instruments by period as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are

as follows:

December 31, 2021
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5 Over 5
month months months years years Total
Interest rate:
Notional amounts
outstanding W 224,896 1,271,477 1,279,617 17,395,158 3,623,911 23,795,059
Currency:
Notional amounts .
outstanding W - 17,178 2,412,941 5,159,516 1,483,369 9,073,004
December 31, 2020
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5 Over 5
month months months years years Total
" Interest rate:
Notional amounts :
outstanding W 47,200 154,043 3,015,053 10,843,135 4,817,689 18,877,120
Currency:
Notional amounts )
outstanding W 77,504 290,040 - 1,851,289 5,711,249 378,718 8,308,800
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10. Derivative Financial Instruments, Continued

(3) Details of the balances of the hedging instruments by risk type as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 -
Notional amounts Balances Changes
in fair value
Buy Sell Assets Liabilities for 2021
Cash flow hedge
accounting:
Interest rate risk
Swaps 82,985 82,985 - - 2,035
Fair value hedge
accounting:
Interest rate risk ,
Swaps 23,712,074 23,712,074 330,758 45,989 (599,697)
Currency risk
Swaps 9,073,004 9,076,498 198,077 214,502 (494,535)
32,785,078 32,788,572 528,835 260,491 (1,094,232)
32,868,063 32,871,557 528,835 260,491 (1,092,197)
December 31, 2020
Notional amounts Balances Changes
in fair value
Buy Sell Assets Liabilities for 2020
Cash flow hedge
accounting:
Interest rate risk
- Swaps 76,160 76,160 - - 23
3 Fair value hedge
b accounting:
) Interest rate risk
Swaps 18,800,960 18,800,960 885,364 19,567 358,347
Currency risk
Swaps 8,308,800 7,985,902 563,558 83,201 502,957
27,109,760 26,786,862 1,448,922 102,768 861,304
27,185,920 26,863,022 1,448,922 102,768 861,327
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10.

Derivative Financial Instruments, Continued

(4) Details of the balances of the hedged items by risk type as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Cash flow hedge

accounting:

Interest rate risk
Debt debentures
Fair value hedge

accounting:

Interest rate risk
Securities measured at

FVOCI

Debt debentures
Other liabilities
(Deposits, etc.)

Currency risk
Debt debentures

Cash flow hedge

accounting:

Interest rate risk
. Debt debentures
Fair value hedge

accounting:

Interest rate risk
Securities measured at

FVOCI

Debt debentures
Other liabilities
(Deposits, etc.)

Currency risk
Debt debentures

December 31, 2021
Change in value of Changes Cash flow
Carrying amounts the hedged item in fair value hedge
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities for 2021 reserve
- 82,985 - - - 1,930
2,779,027 - (125,411) - (52,225) -
- 21,621,572 - (2,068) 643,184 -
- 121,593 - 3,043 9,589 -
2,779,027 21,743,165 (125,411) 975 600,548 -
- 9,012,029 - 170,860 504,818 -
2,779,027 30,755,194 (125,411) 171,835 1,105,366 -
2,779,027 30,838,179 (125411) 171,835 1,105,366 1,930
December 31, 2020
Change in value of Changes Cash flow
Carrying amounts the hedged item in fair value hedge
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities for 2020 reserve
- 76,160 - - - 47
1,922,565 - 18,217 - 47,606 -
. - 18,549,949 - 628,869 (396,922) -
- 120,394 - 11,594 (8,770) -
1,922,565 18,670,343 18,217 640,463 (358,086) -
- 8,413,087 - 24,675 (503,895) -
1,922,565 27,083,430 18,217 665,138 (861,981) -
1,922,565 27,159,590 18,217 665,138 (861,981) 47

(5) Details of hedge ineffectiveness recognized in profit or loss from derivatives for the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020 is as follows:

Interest rate risk
Currency risk

2021 2020

W 851 261
10,283 (938)

W 11,134 677
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10. Derivative Financial Instruments, Continued

(6) The summary of the amounts that have affected the statement of comprehensive income as a result of applying
cash flow hedge accounting for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

2021
Change in the value of the
hedging instrument Hedge ineffectiveness ~ Amount reclassified from
recognized in other recognized in profit or other comprehensive
comprehensive income loss (*) income to profit or loss (*)
Interest rate risk W 1,883 152 -
(*) Recognized in gains or losses related to hedging purpose derivatives. .
2020
Change in the value of the
. hedging instrument Hedge ineffectiveness Amount reclassified from
recognized in other recognized in profit or other comprehensive
comprehensive income loss (*) income to profit or loss (*)
Interest rate risk W 47 24) 403

(*) Recognized in gains or losses related to hedging purpose derivatives.
(7) Details of net investments in foreign operations for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021

, Other comprehensive income for hedges of
b ' Changes in fair value net investments in foreign operations
Currency (foreign exchange risk) W 78,095 (29,120)
2020
Other comprehensive income for hedges of
Changes in fair value net investments in foreign operations
Currency (foreign exchange risk) W (43,437) ‘ 48,975

(8) Details of hedging instruments in hedge of net investments in foreign operations as of December 31, 2021 and
2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021
Change in the value of Hedge
the hedging instrument  ineffectiveness
recognized in other recognized in
Changes in fair  comprehensive income  profit or loss for
Carrying amount _ value for 2021 for 2021 2021
Debentures in foreign
currencies W 1,006,263 (78,095) (78,095) -
December 31, 2020
Change in the value of =  Hedge
the hedging instrument  ineffectiveness
recognized in other recognized in
Changes in fair  comprehensive income  profit or loss for
Carrying amount  value for 2020 for 2020 2020
Debentures in foreign
currencies W 732,566 43,437 43,437 -
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11.

Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates

Subsidiaries: (*1)
KDB Asia Ltd. ‘ W

KDB Bank Europe Ltd. (*2)

KDB Ireland Ltd.

KDB Bank Uzbekistan Ltd.

Banco KDB Do Brazil S.A. (*3)

KDB Indonesia Ltd.

KDB Silicon Valley LLC

KDB Investment Co., Ltd.

KDB Biz Co., Ltd.

KDB Capital Corporation

Korea BTL Financing 1

Korea Railroad Financing 1

Korea Education Financing

KDB Infrastructure Investment Asset
Management Co., Ltd.

Korea Infrastructure Financing Co. (*4)

KDB Investment PEF No.1 (*5)

KDB Consus Value PEF (*6)

KDB Sigma PEF II (*7)

KDB Value PEF VII (*8)

KDB-IAP OBOR PEF (*9)

KDB Asia PEF

KDB Small Medium Mezzanine PEF

Corporate Liquidity Assistance Agency Co., Ltd.

Associates: . .

Korea Electric Power Co., Ltd.

Korea Tourism Organization

Korea Infrastructure Financing 2 Co.
Korea Ocean Business Corporation
Korea Real Estate Board

HMM Co., Ltd.

GM Korea Company (*10)

HANJIN KAL |

Multi Asset Electronic Power PEF (*11)
Shinbundang Railroad Co., Ltd. (*12)
Troika Resources Investment PEF (*13)
Others (*14)
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(1) Investments in subsidiaries and associates as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
332,907 332,907
137,452 144,659

62,389 62,389
47,937 47,937
36,234 31,270
85,288 40,233
118,615 -
70,000 70,000
1,500 1,500
597,290 597,290
142,782 156,109
84,553 - 90,316
45,553 50,274
16,843 16,843

- 2,313
1,448,893 977,570
157,388 157,759

- 18,468

- 9,231

- 6,086

62,597 26,326
49,540 81,740
1,000,000 1,000,000
4,497,761 3,921,220
16,921,067 16,921,067
337,286 337,286
212,991 219,902
631,777 631,777
58,492 58,492
2,736,835 78,835
382,736 436,930
500,000 500,000

- 19,464

30,999 - 30,999
2,304 2,336
2,397,814 2,395,253
24,212,301 21,632,341
28,710,062 25,553,561
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11.

Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, Continued

(*1) The Bank acquired an additional 172,732 of common shares of Daehan Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. and recognized
W1,727 million of impairment losses for the year ended December 31, 2020, considering the impaired capital
of Daehan Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. as objective evidence of impairment.

(*2) For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Bank recognized W7,207 million of impairment losses considering
decrease in value in use due to the decline in expected cash flows from the shares held by the Bank, while for
the year ended December 31, 2020, the Bank recognized W58,965 million of impairment losses.

(*3) For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Bank recognized W-4,965 million of reversal of impairment losses
considering increase in value in use due to enhancement of expected cash flows from the shares held by the
Bank, while for the year ended December 31, 2020, the Bank recognized W14,279 million of impairment
losses. .

(*4) For the year ended December 31, 2021, Korea Infrastructure Financing Co. was liquidated and excluded from
the Bank’s subsidiaries.

(*S) The Bank selected JUNGHEUNG-led consortium as the preferred bidder for Daewoo Engineering &
Construction Co., Ltd., the Bank’s sub-subsidiary on July 5, 2021. The Bank recognized W444,642 million
and W2,153 million of reversal of impairment losses for the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, based on the expected cash flows distributed to the Bank through the disposal of Daewoo
Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd.

(*6) The Bank made a stock purchase agreement with JC Partners on the December 31, 2020 to sell the Bank’s
shares of KDB Life Insurance Co., Ltd., the Bank’s sub-subsidiary. The Bank recognized W-372 million and
176,327 million of impairment losses for the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, based
on the expected cash flows distributed to the Bank through the disposal of KDB Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

(*7) For the year ended December 31, 2021, the book value of KDB Sigma PEF II decreased due to the capital
reduction with compensation.

(*8) The Bank recognized W2,200 million of impairment losses for the year ended December 31, 2021, considering
the decline in net asset values due to the decrease in fair value of assets held as objective evidence of
impairment.

(*9) The Bank recognized W6,086 million and W28,054 million of impairment losses for the year ended December
*31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, considering the decline in net asset values due to the decrease in fair value of
"assets held as objective evidence of impairment.

(*10) For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Bank recognized W54,194 million of impairment losses
considering decrease in value in use due to deterioration of operating cash flows, while for the year ended
December 31, 2020 the Bank recognized W35,417 million of reversal of impairment losses.

(*11) For the year ended December 31, 2021, Multi Asset Electronic Power PEF was liquidated and excluded from
the Bank’s associates.

(*12) The Bank recognized W21,577 million of reversal of impairment losses for the year ended December 31,
2020, respectively, considering increase in recoverable amount due to improvement of expected dividend cash
flows from the shares held by the Bank.

(*13) The Bank recognized W-32 million and W1,222 million of impairment losses for the year ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively, considering the decline in recoverable amount due to the decrease in expected
cash flow of assets held as objective evidence of impairment.

(*14) The Bank recognized W16,461 million of impairment losses for AJU PRIVATE EQUITY FUND NO.2 and
19 other companies for the year ended December 31, 2021. The Bank recognized W29,503 million of
impairment losses for KBS KDB PEF and 19 other companies for the year ended December 31, 2020.

44



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(In millions of won)

11. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, Continued

(2) The market value of marketable investments in subsidiaries and associates as of December 31, 2021 and 2020
are as follows:

Market value Carrying amounts
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020
Korea Electric Power Co., Ltd. W 4,668,299 5,787,846 16,921,067 16,921,067
HMM Co., Ltd. 2,722,261 574,730 2,736,835 78,835
HANIJIN KAL 433,616 445,621 500,000 500,000
KG Dongbu Steel Co., Ltd. ' 15,966 127,359 9,268 67,599
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11. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, Continued

(3) The key financial information of subsidiaries and associates invested and ownership ratios as of December 31,
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021
Total
compre-
hensive  Owner-
Fiscal Operating  Net income income ship
Country  year end Industry Assets Liabilities Equity revenue (loss) (loss) (%)
Subsidiaries:
KDB Asia (HK) Ltd. Hong Kong December Finance 3,958,732 3,402,497 556,235 130,854 42,651 84,868 100
KDB Bank Europe
Ltd. Hungary December Finance 1,113,228 993,801 119,427 46,211 4,333 8,031 100
KDB Ireland Ltd. Ireland  December Finance 698,808 585,918 112,890 22,318 5,156 13,790 100
KDB Bank
Uzbekistan Ltd. Uzbekistan December Finance 838,100 755,286 82,814 28,400 10,340 16,928 86.32
Banco KDB Do
Brazil S.A. Brazil December Finance 369,396 308,057 61,339 49,441 1,649 2,773 100
KDB Indonesia Ltd. Indonesia December Finance 116,553 30,437 86,116 9,137 169 2,657 84.65
KDB Silicon Valley
LLC USA  December Finance 119,648 1,669 117,979 24 (552) (552) 100
Daewoo
Shipbuilding &
Marine Engineering
Co., Ltd. Korea  December Manufacturing 10,623,210 8,405,627 2,217,583 4,486,586 (1,699,829) (1,650,289) 55.68
Sam Woo Heavy
Industries Co., Ltd.
(*1) Korea  December Manufacturing 253,430 240,028 13,402 87,589 (9,176) (8,939) 100
Daehan Shipbuilding
Co., Ltd. (*1) Korea  December Manufacturing 701,881 991,844 (289,963) 763,270 (136,391)  (135,624) 70.04
KDB Capital Specialized
Corporation Korea  December Credit Finance 7,513,809 6,217,165 1,296,644 555,801 232,376 183,742  99.92
Korea BTL Semi- Financial
Financing 1 (*2) Korea annually investment 361,684 237 361,447 12,709 10,819 10,819 41.67
Korea Railroad Semi- Financial
Financing 1 (*2) Korea annually investment 178,399 110 178,289 7,172 3,806 3,806 50
Korea Education Semi- Financial
Financing (*2) Korea annually investment 98,376 6 98,370 3,877 2,039 2,039 50
KDB Infrastructure
Investment Asset
Management Co., Asset
Ltd. Korea December management 68,612 11,373 57,239 37,483 18,851 18,936 84.16
KDB Investment
Co., Ltd. Korea  December Finance 81,468 2,687 78,781 10,535 4,084 4,177 100
KDB Biz Co., Ltd. Korea  December Services 7,478 4,441 3,037 25,580 260 737 100
KDB Investment Financial
PEF No.1 Korea  December investment 11,017,597 8,043,123 2,974,474 - 205,231 232,737 99.40
KDB Consus Value Financial
PEF Korea December investment 19,680,738 19,633,413 47,325 5 14,301 (385,890) 68.20
KDB Sigma PEF II Financial
Korea  December investment 629 12 617 39 (2,314) 2,314) 60
KDB-IAP OBOR Financial
PEF (*3) Korea  December investment 55,046 55,235 (189) - (74,212) (70,569) 33.52
KDB Asia PEF (*3) Financial
Korea  December investment 130,757 102 130,655 - (2,669) 11,441 50
KDB Small Medium Financial
Mezzanine PEF Korea  December ~investment 105,256 144 105,112 81,216 69,808 70,597 66.67
Corporate Liquidity
Assistance Agency Financial
Co., Ltd. Korea  December investment 3,947,608 2,915,271 1,032,337 83,857 29,628 29,628 100
Components and
Materials M&A Financial
PEF Korea  December investment 793 25 768 2 (15,695) (15,695) 83.33
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11. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, Continued

Associates:
Korea Electric
Power Co., Ltd.

Korea Tourism
Organization

Korea Infrastructure
Financing 2 Co.
Korea Ocean
Business
Corporation

Korea Real Estate
Board

GM Korea Company
(*4)

HMM Co., Ltd. (*5)

HANJIN KAL (*4)

Shinbundang
Railroad Co., Ltd.
(*6)

Troika Resources
Investment PEF

*7

December 31, 2021

Fiscal

Country _year end

Assets

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

Korea

December

December

December

December
December
December
December

December
December

December

Manufacturing

211,108,870

1,130,031

851,153

15,040,759
275,447
5,013,939
17,876,100

3,754,742
637,906

5,745

47

65,311,849 60,574,819

Owne:

ship
%

329

43.5

26.6

221
30.6
17.0
20.6

10.6

10.9

54.9



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

(In millions of won)

11. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, Continued

December 31, 2020 .
' Total
compre-
hensive  Owner-
Fiscal Operating. Net income income ship
Country _year end Industry Assets Liabilities Equity revenue (loss) (loss) (%)
Subsidiaries:
KDB Asia (HK) Ltd. Hong Kong December Finance W 2,693,398 - 2,222,031 471,367 132,319 12,603 (18,151) 100
KDB Bank Europe

Ltd. Hungary December  Finance 1,191,023 1,079,628 111,395 55,804 (15,780) (26,355) 100
KDB Ireland Ltd. Ireland December Finance 468,754 369,654 99,100 23,062 4,572 (1,828) " 100
KDB Bank ’

Uzbekistan Ltd. Uzbekistan December Finance 628,874 562,988 65,886 24,028 8,401 (4,776) 86.32
Banco KDB Do :

Brazil S.A. Brazil December Finance 315,666 257,100 58,566 96,007 1,917 (19,812) 100
KDB Indonesia Ltd.  Indonesia December Finance 87,891 57,455 30,436 12,345 1,831 1,831 84.65
Daewoo

Shipbuilding &

Marine Engineering

Co., Ltd. Korea  December Manufacturing 10,320,775 6,451,804 3,868,971 7,030,175 86,573 114,107 55.68
Sam Woo Heavy .

Industries Co., Ltd.

*1) Korea  December Manufacturing 253,735 231,394 22,341 135,932 1,037 1,104 100
Dachan Shipbuilding

Co., Ltd. (*1) Korea  December Manufacturing 636,255 790,594  (154,339) 765,204 (5,518) (5,704) 70.04
KDB Capital ) Specialized

Corporation Korea  December Credit Finance 6,607,724 5,518,888 1,088,836 431,722 173,681 171,657 99.92
Korea BTL Semi- Financial
-Financing:1 (*2) Korea annually investment 395,038 259 394,779 14,120 6,822 6,822 41.67
Korea Railroad Semi- Financial .

Financing 1 (*2) Korea annually investment 190,706 9 190,697 9,681 9,201 9,201 50
Korea Education Semi- Financial

Financing (*2) Korea annually investment 108,656 7 108,649 7,275 6,994 6,994 50
KDB Infrastructure

Investment Asset

Management Co., Asset

Ltd. Korea  December management 59,818 10,715 49,103 35,072 17,972 17,951 84.16
KDB Investment

Co., Ltd. Korea  December Finance 77,601 2,997 74,604 9,420 3,042 3,054 100
KDB Biz Co., Ltd. Korea  December Services 8,207 5,907 2,300 25,468 1,149 603 100
Korea Infrastructure Financial

Financing Co. Korea  December investment - 2,777 12 2,765 191 (22) 22) 85
KDB Investment Financial

PEF No.1 Korea  December investment 9,701,074 7,233,393 2,467,681 8,361,795 58,745 23,799  99.40
KDB Consus Value Financial

PEF Korea  December investment 19,548,528 19,015,550 532,978 8 (140,754)  (172,013) 68.20
KDB Sigma PEF I Financial

Korea December investment 39,432 1 39,431 51,694 51,465 52,715 60
KDB Value PEF VII Financial

(*3) . Korea  December investment 27,294 82 27,212 763 (154) (154) 50
KDB-IAP OBOR Financial

PEF (*3) Korea December investment 119,687 49,307 70,380 - (23,969) (28,026) 33.52
KDB Asia PEF (*3) Financial

Korea December investment 46,847 175 46,672 - 4,910 (5,606) 50
KDB Small Medium ' Financial

Mezzanine PEF Korea  December investment 120,692 377 120,315 9,416 (4,740) (5,655). 66.67
Corporate Liquidity

Assistance Agency Financial

Co., Ltd. Korea  December investment 2,992,986 1,990,277 1,002,709 20,419 2,709 2,709 100
Components and ’ '

Materials M&A Financial .

PEF Korea December investment 1,076 1,827 (751) 2 13) (13) 83.33
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Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(In millions of won)

Associates:

Korea Electric
Power Co., Ltd.

Korea Tourism
Organization

Korea Infrastructure
Financing 2 Co.
Korea Ocean
Business

. Corporation

Korea Real Estate
Board (formerly
known as Korea
Appraisal Board)

GM Korea Company
*4)

HMM Co., Ltd. (*S5)

HANJIN KAL (*4)

Multi Asset
Electronic Power
PEF
Shinbundang
Railroad Co., Ltd.
(*6)

Troika Resources
Investment PEF

. i f : 3 ~
11. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, Continued
December 31, 2020
Total
compre-
: hensive = Ownei
Fiscal Operating Net income income ship
Country  year end Industry Assets Liabilities Equity revenue (loss) (loss) %
Electricity .
Korea December Generation 203,142,111 132,475,265 70,666,846 58,569,314 1,991,347 1,802,824 329
Culture and
Tourism
Korea December administration 1,351,779 388,854 962,925 488,285 (56,712) (60,819) 435
Financial
Korea December investment 874,470 31,518 842,952 68,022 47,318 47,318 26.6
Korea  December Finance 8,826,068 3,842,127 4,983,941 3,597,982 2,689,659 2,690,496 223
Korea December  Appraisal 263,852 52,438 211,414 177,955 5,540 3,093 306
Korea  December Manufacturing 5,415,322 3,739,509 1,675,813 8,504,588 (302,847) (302,847) 17.0
Foreign cargo
Korea  December transportation 9,373,360 7,684,812 1,688,548 6,413,270 123,889 (33,766) 12.6
Holding .
Korea  December compnay 3,488,569 1,824,304 1,664,265 408,827 (269,846)  (222,157) 10.6
~ Financial
Korea December investment 70,913 213 70,700 36,330 36,218 36,218 5
Korea  December Other 679;1 76 999,986 (320,810) 76,427 (50,329) (50,329) 109
Financial
Korea December investment 5,496 1,286 4210 312 (131) (131) 549

*N
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Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(In millions of won)

11.

Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, Continued

(*1) The Bank consolidates the investees which were subsidiaries of Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering
Co., Ltd. as the Bank has had control over the investees through the commencement of the administrative
proceeding since the past.

(*2) The investees are financed by the Bank and managed by KDB Infrastructure Investments Asset Management
Co., Ltd. They were included in the scope of consolidation even though the Bank holds less than half of the
voting rights because the Bank is exposed to variable returns and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee.

(*3) Although the Bank’s shareholding in the investee is less than 50%, it controls the investee since it is exposed,
or has right to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. ’

(*4) Although the Bank’s shareholding is less than 20%, the Bank has significant influence considering the right to

elect the investees’ directors and the Bank classifies the companies as associates.

(*5) Although the Bank’s shareholding is less than 20%, the Bank is considered to have significant influence as the

principal creditor bank for the year ended December 31, 2020. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the
Bank exercised the conversion right and hold more than 20% of the shares.

(*6) The shareholding is above 20% upon the consideration of shares owned by the Bank’s subsidiaries. Therefore,
the Bank exercises significant influence over the associate.

(*7) Although the Bank’s shareholding in Troika Resources Investment PEF is above 50%, the Bank as joint
managing member does not have the ability to direct the relevant activities unilaterally.
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Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(In millions of won)

12.

Property and Equipment

Acquisition cost:

Land

Buildings and structures

Leasehold improvements

Vehicles

Equipment

Construction in progress

Right-of-use assets (Real
estate)

Right-of-use assets (Vehicles)

Right-of-use assets (Others)

Others

Accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and structures (*)

Leasehold improvements

Vehicles

Equipment

Right-of-use assets (Real
estate)

Right-of-use assets (Vehicles)

Right-of-use assets (Others)

Others

Accumulated impairment losses:

Land
Buildings and structures

W

W

Changes in property and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021
Foreign .
January 1, Acquisition/ Reclassifi- exchange December 31,
2021 depreciation Disposal cation differences 2021
305,836 - (62) (2,815) - 302,959
600,627 3,024 (693) 25,435 - 628,393
42,180 3,296 (5,614) 54 721 40,637
734 - - - 35 769
54,528 6,966 - (2,653) 851 120 59,812
13,615 15,058 - (28,639) - 34
81,203 113,480 (24,847) - (7,747) 162,089
5,989 2,106 (705) - 57 7,447
27 - - - 2 29
179,109 1,977 (33,238) - 204 154,052
1,283,848 151,907 (67,812) (5,114) (6,608) 1,356,221
200,349 18,077 (289) (1,110) - 217,027
36,025 3,030 (5,085) - 651 34,621
533 64 . - - 19 616
44,197 3,178 (2,125) - 145 45,395
39,533 27,208 (18,667) - 427 48,501
2,604 2,087 447) - 35 4,279
24 4 - - 1 29
143,817 17,212 (32,984) - 167 128,212
467,082 70,860 (59,597) (1,110) 1,445 478,680
3,023 - - - - 3,023
2,361 - - - - 2,361
5,384 - - - - 5,384
811,382 81,047 (8,215) (4,004) (8,053) 872,157

(*) The amounts include government grants.
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Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(In millions of won)

12.

Property and Equipment, Continued

Acquisition cost:

Land

Buildings and structures
Leasehold improvements
Vehicles

~ Equipment

Construction in progress

Right-of-use assets (Real
estate)

Right-of-use assets (Vehicles)

Right-of-use assets (Others)

Others:

Accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and structures (*)

Leasehold improvements

Vehicles

Equipment

Right-of-use assets (Real
estate)

Right-of-use assets (Vehicles)

Right-of-use assets (Others)

Others

Accumulated impairment losses:

Land
Buildings and structures

<

W

W

2020
Foreign
January 1, Acquisition/ Reclassifi- exchange December 31,
2020 depreciation Disposal cation differences 2020
318,940 537 (186) (13,455) . - 305,836
607,036 5,739 (1,052) (11,096) - 600,627
43,058 2,336 (4,151) - 937 42,180
740 - (126) - 120 734
53,170 3,779 (2,607) - 186 54,528
1,588 16,546 - 4,519) - 13,615
74,792 28,162 (19,954) - (1,797) 81,203
5,007 3,337 (2,624) - 269 5,989
29 - - - ) 27
165,032 14,447 (890) - 520 179,109
1,269,392 74,883 (31,590) (29,070) 233 1,283,848
191,473 16,590 271) (7,443) - 200,349
36,078 2,930 (3,124) - 141 36,025
596 58 (113) - ®) 533
43,348 2,954 (2,006) - 99) 44,197
29,059 29,153 (18,139) - (540) 39,533
1,997 2,033 (1,462) - 36 2,604
13 13 - - ) 24
128,593 15,942 - (256) - (462) 143,817
431,157 69,673 (25,371) (7,443) (934) 467,082
3,023 - - - - 3,023
2,361 - - - - 2,361
5,384 - - - - 5,384
832,851 5,210 (6,219) (21,627) 1,167 811,382

(*) The amounts include government grants.
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Notes to the Separate Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020
(In millions of won)

13. Investment Property

Changes in investment property for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Acquisition cost:
Land
Buildings and structures

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and structures

Accumulated impairment losses:

Land
Buildings and structures

Acquisition cost:
Land
Buildings and structures

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and structures

Accumulated impairment losses:

Land
Buildings and structures

2021
Acquisition/ December 31,
January 1, 2021 depreciation Reclassification 2021
57,778 - 2,815 60,593
56,089 - 2,299 58,388
113,867 - 5,114 118,981
29,827 2,209 1,110 33,146
1,197 - - 1,197
1,778 - - 1,778
2,975 - - 2,975
81,065 (2,209) 4,004 82,860
2020
Acquisition/ December 31,
January 1, 2020 depreciation Reclassification 2020

49,913 - 7,865 57,778
40,474 - 15,615 56,089
90,387 - 23,480 113,867
21,003 1,381 7,443 29,827
1,197 - - 1,197
1,778 - - 1,778
2,975 - - 2,975
66,409 (1,381) 16,037 81,065

The fair value of the Bank’s investment property, as determined based on valuation by an independent appraiser,
amounts to W97,983 million and-W96,959 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Additionally,
fair value of investment in property is classified as level 3 according to the fair value hierarchy in Note 45.

53



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(In millions of won)

14. Intangible Assets

2021
Foreign
January 1, exchange December
2021 Acquisition Disposal  Amortization _differences 31,2021
Development
expense W 155,479 8,293 - (44,011) 14 119,775
Equipment usage
right 482 - - (45) 35 472
Other deposits
provided 11,940 818 (858) - 22 11,922
Others 20,516 4,772 - (9,781) 23 15,530
W 188,417 13,883 (858) (53,837 94 147,699
2020
Foreign
January 1, : exchange December
2020 Acquisition Disposal  Amortization differences 31,2020
Development
expense W 194,680 4,893 - (44,213) 119 155,479
Equipment usage .
right 553 - - (46) (25) 482
Other deposits
provided 10,984 1,728 (764) - (8) 11,940
Others 24,712 5,326 - (9,718) 196 20,516
W 230,929 11,947 (764) (53,977) 282 188,417
15. Other Assets
Other assets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Accounts receivable W 3,460,334 2,662,879
Unsettled domestic exchange receivables 1,794,806 1,313,958
Accrued income 408,168 343,901
Guarantee deposits 217,682 193,003
Financial guarantee asset 20,127 22,982
Prepaid expenses 15,969 14,121
Advance payments 8,889 7,953
Others 29,635 182,484
5,955,610 4,741,281
Allowance for credit losses (80,071) (79,474)
Present value discount (1,632) (1,522)
W 5,873,907 4,660,285

Changes in intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

The carrying amounts of financial assets included in other assets above amounted to W5,836,048million and
W4,463,726 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and their fair value amounted to W5,835,448

million and W4,461,117 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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December 31, 2021 and 2020
(In millions of won)

16. Assets Held for Sale

Assets held for sale as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021

Acquisition cost

Fair value less

costs to sell Carrying amount Impairment loss

Assets held for sale:

Investments in subsidiaries (*1) W 2,244,664 1,371,052 1,371,052 258,428
Investments in associates (*2) - - - 27
b4 2,244,664 1,371,052 1,371,052 258,401
2020

Acquisition cost

Fair value less

costs to sell Carrying amount Impairment loss

Assets held for sale:

Investments in subsidiaries (*1) W 2,244,664 1,629,479 1,629,479 25,926
Investments in associates (*2) 78,278 78,278 78,278 -
Property and equipment 5,590 5,590 5,590 -

W 2,328,532 1,713,347 1,713,347 25,926

(*1) As the Bank and Hyundai Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. (“Hyundai Heavy Industries”) made the investment
contract (hereinafter, “the contract”) with an investment in kind on March 8, 2019 and proceeded with the sale
for attracting investment in Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Daewoo Shipbuilding &
Marine Engineering”) of the Bank’s subsidiary, the Bank classified the shares of Daewoo Shipbuilding &
Marine Engineering as assets held for sale. After December 31, 2021, the European Commission did not
approve the merger between Korea Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering Co., Ltd. and Daewoo Shipbuilding &
Marine Engineering. As a result of the disapproval, the contract’s precondition including governmental
permission of different countries was not satisfied and the Bank and Korea Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering
Co., Ltd. cancelled this contract on March 8, 2022.

(*2) For the year ended December 31, 2021, the sale of the share of Hanjin Heavy Industries & Construction Co.,

Ltd., the Bank’s associate, has been completed.
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(In millions of won)

17. Financial Liabilities Measured at FVTPL

N

(1) Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Debentures W 1,636,163 1,510,793
Deposits 430,981 184,164
’ W 2,067,144 1,694,957

Changes in fair value of structured debentures and deposits which hedge accounting are applied, are recognized in
profit or loss, but structured debentures with no hedge accounting applied to, are measured at amortized costs.
Therefore, such structured debentures and deposits, not applied to hedge accounting, have been de51gnated at
FVTPL to eliminate mismatch in measurements of accounting profit and loss.

(2) The difference between the carrying amount and contractual cash flow amount of financial liabilities measured
at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Carrying amount W 2,067,144 1,694,957
Contractual cash flow amounts 2,110,955 1,580,800
Difference W (43,811) 114,157
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18. Deposits

Deposits as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Amortized cost Fair value Amortized cost Fair value
Deposits in Korean won:
Demand deposits W 86,428 86,428 109,570 109,570
Time and savings deposits 41,041,409 41,005,081 37,097,869 37,110,866
Certificates of deposit 342,105 341,901 467,329 467,342
41,469,942 41,433,410 37,674,768 37,687,778
Deposits in foreign currencies: .
Demand deposits 1,536,950 - 1,536,950 1,534,717 1,534,717
Time and savings deposits 4,411,690 4,410,697 2,775,150 2,774,425
Certificates of deposit 4,341,640 4,322,711 3,289,651 3,271,530
10,290,280 10,270,358 7,599,518 7,580,672
Off-shore deposits in foreign
currencies:
Demand deposits 670,777 670,777 605,133 605,133
Certificates of deposit 361,122 360,884 - -
1,031,899 1,031,661 605,133 605,133
W 52,792,121 52,735,429 45,879,419 45,873,583
19. Borrowings
(1) Borrowings as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
December 31, 2021
Minimum Maximum
interest rate (%)  interest rate (%) Amortized cost Fair value
Borrowings in Korean won - 3.15 W 4,329,798 4.318,893
Borrowings in foreign currencies - 5.31 13,265,326 13,260,468
Off-shore borrowings in foreign -
currencies 335 2,300,131 2,298,068
Others 0.01 3.29 2,168,670 2,167,736
22,063,925 22,045,165
Deferred borrowing costs (148)
W 22,063,777
December 31, 2020
Minimum Maximum .
interest rate (%) interest rate (%) Amortized cost Fair value
Borrowings in Korean won - 3.15 W 4,216,659 4,210,221
Borrowings in foreign currencies - 3.86 9,996,208 9,988,337
Off-shore borrowings in foreign
currencies - 2.50 1,790,665 1,791,294
Others 0.01 2.55 2,884,139 2,884,301
18,887,671 18,874,153
Deferred borrowing costs 60
W 18,887,611
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19. Borrowings, Continued

(2) Borrowings in Korean won before adjusting for gains and losses on deferred borrowing costs as of December
31,2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Annual December 31, December 31,
) Lender Classification interest rate (%) 2021 2020
Ministry of Economy and  Borrowings from
Finance ~ government fund (*) 098~1.19 W 108,932 125,101
Korea SMEs and Startups ~ Borrowings from small and . : :
Agency ' medium enterprise :
' promotion fund 0.51 ~2.76 61,240 64,892
Ministry of Culture, Sports Borrowings from tourism ' :
and Tourism | promotion fund 0.50 ~2.00 3,005,749 2,934,681
Korea Energy Agency Borrowings from fund for )
rational use of energy 0.25~2.30 282,178 295,088
Local governments Borrowings from local
small and medium ,
enterprise promotion fund 0.00~2.70 27,658 37,198
The Bank of Korea Borrowings from Bank of
Korea . 0.25 378,160 373,881
Others ' Borrowings from -
petroleum enterprise fund
and others 0.00~3.15 465,881 385,818
: W 4,329,798 4,216,659

(*) Borrowings from government fund are subordinated borrowings.

58



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(In millions of won)

19. Borrowings. Continued

(3) Borrowings and off-shore borrowings in foreign currencies before adjusting for gams and losses on deferred
borrowing costs as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Annual December 31, December 31,
Lender Classification interest rate (%) _ 2021 2020
Mizuho and others Bank loans from foreign 3M Libor + 0.29 ~
funds 6M Libor +0.24 W 355,650 435,200
Ministry of Strategy and Exchange equalization
Finance fund borrowings in 3M Libor + 0.65 ~ :
foreign currencies 3M Libor + 0.74 199,792 183,360
Central Bank of the
Republic Uzbekistan and  Off-shore short term
others borrowings 0.16 ~0.36 1,292,571 1,487,973
China Development Bank  Off-shore long term
and others borrowings 2.68~3.36 1,007,560 302,692
Others Short-term borrowings
in foreign currencies 0.07~531 - 11,775,597 8,567,852
Long term borrowings
in foreign currencies 0.10~1.00 934,287 809,796
W 15,565,457 11,786,873
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20. Debentures

Debentures as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Debentures in Korean won:
Debentures
Discount on debentures
Valuation adjustment for
fair value hedges

Debentures in foreign
currencies:
Debentures
Discount on debentures
Premium on debentures
Valuation adjustment for
fair value hedges

Off-shore debentures:
Debentures
Discount on debentures
Valuation adjustment for
fair value hedges

Debentures in Korean won:
Debentures
Discount on debentures
Valuation adjustment for
fair value hedges

Debentures in foreign
currencies:
Debentures
Discount on debentures
Premium on debentures
Valuation adjustment for
fair value hedges

Off-shore debentures:
Debentures
Discount on debentures
Premium on debentures
Valuation adjustment for
fair value hedges

December 31, 2021

Minimum
interest rate (%)

Maximum

interest rate (%) Amortized cost

Fair value

0.75

6.60 W 109,608,752

(75,224)

(89,080)
109,444,448

1087 19,488,365
(40,580)

1,338

143,805

19,592,928

7.00 16,242,288

(28,401)

114,067
16,327,954

109,390,833

20,634,957

16,420,828

W 145,365,330

146,446,618

December 31, 2020

Minimum
interest rate (%)

Maximum

interest rate (%) Amortized cost

Fair value

0.55

60

660 W 107,480,364

(57,255)

49,070
107,472,179

6.90 15,799,118
(31,438)

1,677

: 452,330

16,221,687

7.00 14,496,508
(23,869)

79

152,144
14,624,862

108,542,792

16,883,195

14,662,046

W 138,318,728

140,088,033




Korea Development Bank e

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements .
December 31, 2021 and 2020
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21. Defined Benefit Liabilities (Assets)

The Bank implements a defined benefit retirement pension plan based on employee compensation benefits and

service periods. The plan assets are in trusts with Kookmin Bank, Samsung Life Insurance'Co., Ltd., etc.

(1) Details of defined benefit liabilities (assets) as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Present value of defined benefit liabilities W 391,015 415,529
Fair value of plan assets (400,368) (364,983)
W (9,353) 50,546

(2) Changes in defined benefit liabilities (assets) for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021
Present value of
defined benefit Fair value of plan Defined benefit
obligation assets liabilities (assets)
Beginning balance 415,529 (364,983) 50,546
Current service costs 39,382 - 39,382
Interest expense (income) 9,850 (9,238) 612
Remeasurements of defined
benefit liabilities:
Demographic assumption - - -
Financial assumption (44,008) 5,540 (38,468)
Experience adjustment (11,332) - (11,332)
- (55,340) 5,540 (49,800)
Payments from the plan (18,406) 18,313 93)
Contributions to the plan - (50,000) (50,000)
Ending balance 391,015 (400,368) (9,353)
2020
Present value of :
defined benefit Fair value of plan Defined benefit
obligation assets liabilities
Beginning balance 379,728 (326,587) 53,141
Current service costs 37,564 - 37,564
Interest expense (income) 8,786 (7,867) 919
Remeasurements of defined
benefit liabilities:
Demographic assumption 3,840 - 3,840
Financial assumption (1,011) 2,646 1,635
Experience adjustment (375 - (375)
2,454 2,646 5,100
Payments from the plan (13,003) 12,825 (178)
Contributions to the plan - (46,000) (46,000)
Ending balance 415,529 (364,983) 50,546
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21. Defined Benefit Liabilities (Assets), Continued

(3) Fair value of plan assets for each type as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 ’ December 31, 2020
Quoted market Unquoted Quoted market Unquoted
prices market prices prices market Prices
Due from banks W - ' 400,368 - 364,983

(4) Defined benefit costs recognized in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020
Current service costs ' W ) 39,382 37,564
Interest expense, net 612 919
W : 39,994 38,483

(5) The principal actuarial assumptions used as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Discount rate (%) 3.03 : 2.54
Future salary increasing rate (%) 5.54 6.08

(6) The present value sensitivity of defined benefit obligation as changes in principal actuarial assumptions as of
December 31, 2021 is as fo!lows:

i Sensitivity

' : _ 1% increase in assumption 1% decrease in assumption
Discount rate 9.47% decrease 11.15% increase
Future salary increasing rate 10.75% increase 9.34% decrease

(7) The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 11.63 years and 12.15 years as of December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively. There are no expected contributions to the plans for the next reporting period as of
December 31, 2021, while the expected contributions to the plan for the next annual reporting period amounted
to W52,203 million as of December 31, 2020.
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22. Provisions

(1) Details of provisions as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Provision for unused commitments W 667,101 770,760
Provision for financial guarantee 72,420 77,498
Provision for payment guarantees 757,621 603,648
Provision for possible losses from lawsuits 1,731 441
Provision for restoration 14,620 15,365
Other provision ‘ 54,037 47,458

W 1,567,530 1,515,170

(2) Changes in provision for unused commitments for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total
Beginning balance W 479,933 290,827 - 770,760
‘Transfer to 12-month expected credit
loss 267,476 (267,476) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses:
Transfer to non credit-impaired
exposures (34,669) 34,669 ' - -
Transfer to credit-impaired .
exposures (3,793) (3,513) 7,306 , -
Provision for (reversal of) unused
commitments (410,437) 272,136 471 . (137,830)
Foreign currency translation 33,641 442 88 , 34,171
Ending balance W 332,151 327,085 7,865 667,101
2020
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total
Beginning balance W 428,388 314,204 - 742,592
Transfer to 12-month expected credit
loss 287,107 (287,057) (50) -
Transfer to lifetime expected .
credit losses:
Transfer to non credit-impaired
exposures (15,148) 15,148 - -
Provision for (reversal of) unused
commitments (196,824) 249,655 50 52,881
Foreign currency translation (23,590) (1,123) - (24,713)
Ending balance W 479,933 290,827 - 770,760
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22. Provisions, Continued

(3) Changes of financial guarantee provision for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total
Beginning balance W 45,567 26,007 5,924 77,498
Transfer to 12-month expected credit
loss 86 (14) (72) -
Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses: -
Transfer to non credit-impaired .
exposures (1,518) 1,523 ) -
Transfer to credit-impaired
exposures (9,227) 93) 9,320 -
Provision for unused commitments (32,187) 4,004 23,105 (5,078)
Ending balance W 2,721 31,427 38,272 72,420
2020
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total
Beginning balance W 1,123 23,121 11,648 35,892
Transfer to 12-month expected credit
loss 23,874 (1,051) (22,823) -
Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses: -
Transfer to non credit-impaired
exposures (2,240) 2,348 (108) -
Transfer to credit-impaired
exposures (179) (49) 228 -
Provision for unused commitments 22,989 1,638 16,979 41,606
Ending balance W 45,567 26,007 5,924 77,498
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22. Provisions, Continued

(4) Changes in provision for payment guarantees for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total
Beginning balance W 183,963 155,646 264,039 603,648
Transfer to 12-month expected credit
loss _ 105,507 (105,507) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected '
credit losses: -
Transfer to non credit-impaired :
exposures ’ (90,952) 90,952 - -
Transfer to credit-impaired
exposures (4,090) (1,552) 5,642 -
Provision for (reversal of) unused
commitments (20,070) 54,942 98,769 133,641
Foreign currency translation 4,874 5,213 10,245 20,332
Ending balance W 179,232 199,694 378,695 757,621
2020
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired ~ impaired Total
Beginning balance W 170,320 167,939 336,669 674,928
Transfer to 12-month expected credit
loss 44,036 (44,036) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses: -
Transfer to non credit-impaired
exposures (9,487) 9,487 - -
Transfer to credit-impaired
exposures : (5,988) - ‘ 5,988 -
Provision for (reversal of) unused
commitments : (15,616) 20,642 (80,956) (75,930)
Foreign currency translation 698 1,614 2,338 4,650
Ending balance 4 183,963 155,646 264,039 603,648

(5) Changes of lawsuit provision and other provision for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021
Lawsuit provision Provision for restoration Other provision
Beginning balance W 441 15,365 47,458
Increase (reversal) of provision 1,408 (1,820) 6,596
Provision used and others (118) 1,075 a7
Ending balance W 1,731 14,620 54,037
2020
Lawsuit provision Provision for restoration Other provision
Beginning balance W 12,302 15,167 38,983
Increase (reversal) of provision 441 (839) 8,475
Provision used and others - (12,302) 1,037 -
Ending balance W 441 15,365 47,458
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22. Provisions, Continued

(6) Provision for payment guarantees and financial guarantee provision

Confirmed acceptances and guarantees, unconfirmed acceptances and guarantees and bills endorsed are not
recognized on the statement of financial position, but are disclosed as off-statement of financial position items in
the notes to the financial statements. The Bank provides a provision for such off-statement of financial position
items, applying a Credit Conversion Factor (“CCF”) and provision rates under the Bank’s expected credit loss model,
and records the provision as a reserve for expected credit losses on acceptances and guarantees.

In the case of financial guarantee contracts, when the amount calculated using the same method as above is greater
than the initial amount less amortization of fees recognized, the difference is recorded as a financial guarantee
provision.

(7) Provision for unused commitments ‘
The Bank records a provision for a certain portion of unused credit lines which is calculated using a CCF as
provision for unused commitments applying provision rates under the Bank’s expected credit loss model.

(8) Provision for possible losses from lawsuits

As of December 31, 2021, the Bank is involved in 23 lawsuits as a plaintiff and 28 lawsuits as a defendant. The
aggregate amounts of claims as a plaintiff and a defendant amounted to W194,706 million and W153,802 million,
respectively. The Bank provided a provision against contingent loss from pending lawsuits as of December 31, 2021
and additional losses may be incurred depending on the result of pending lawsuits.

Major lawsuits in progress as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021
Contents Amounts Status of lawsuit
Plaintiff:

Korea Trade Insurance Claim for guarantee W 136,538 1% trial ruled against the
Corporation and one other insurance . Bank; 2% trial in progress
KAMCO 1stJV Transfer of claim : 8,792 1% trial ruled partially in

Securitization Specialty favor of the Bank; 2% trial
Co., Ltd. in progress
Hana Bank and 6 others Claim for undue benefit 1,647 1% trial in progress
Kappa Korea and one other  Claim for loans 1,000 1%t trial in progress
Defendant:
Shinhan Bank and one " Claim for damages 58,474 1% trial in progress
other
Dongbu Corporation Claim for nullity of table of 33,997 1% trial ruled in favor of the
rehabilitation creditor Bank; 2™ trial ruled
against the Bank; 3™ trial
in progress
Dongbu Corporation Claim for objection of 19,658 1% trial in progress
request (participation to
support)
Hana Bank Claim for settlement money 7,500 1%, 2% trial ruled in favor of
and others the Bank; 3™ trial in
progress
KAMCO 1stJV Claim for transaction 7,000  1* trial in progress
Securitization Specialty amount
Co., Ltd.
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22. Provisions, Continued

December 31, 2020
Contents Amounts Status of lawsuit
Plaintiff:
Korea Trade Insurance Claim for guarantee W 136,538 1 trial ruled against the
Corporation and one other insurance Bank; 2% trial in progress
KAMCO 1stJV Transfer of claim 8,792 1% trial in progress
Securitization Specialty
Co., Ltd.
Dadae Construction Absence of liens 2,900 1%t trial ruled in favor of the
Co., Ltd. Bank; 2™ trial in progress
Korea Technology Finance  Claim for guarantee 872  1%trial ruled partially in
Corporation favor of the Bank; 27 trial
in progress
Defendant:
Shinhan Bank and one Claim for damages 58,474 1% trial in progress
other
Defense Acquisition Claim for guaranteed debt 56,977 1%, 2% trial ruled partially
Program Administration against the Bank; 3™ trial
in progress
Dongbu Corporation Claim for nullity of table of 33,997 1% trial ruled in favor of the
rehabilitation creditor Bank; 2™ trial ruled
against the Bank; 3™ trial
in progress

Dongbu Corporation Claim for objection of 19,658 1% trial in progress

request (participation to
support)

Woori Bank Claim for disposal of debt 12,470 1%, 2% trial ruled in favor of
the Bank; 3™ trial in
progress

(9) Other provision

The Bank recognised other provision as a reserve for other miscellaneous purpose.
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23. Other Liabilities

(1) Other liabilities as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Accounts payable W
Lease liabilities
Accrued expense
Advance received
Unearned income
Deposits withholding tax
Guarantee money received
Foreign exchanges payable
Domestic exchanges payable
Borrowing from trust accounts
Financial guarantee liability

_ Others

Present value discount

W

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
3,418,503 2,623,207
274,797 75,523
1,444,423 1,657,438
- 920
39,182 45,344
24,111 22,019
173,264 720,932
77,692 307,935
617,446 587,194
1,049,712 973,885
23,093 25,347
113,396 64,153
7,255,619 7,103,897
(162,723) . (34,891)
7,092,896 7,069,006

The carrying amount of financial liabilities included in other liabilities above amounted to W6,817,630 million and
W6,896,581 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and their fair value amounted to W6,807,462
million and W6,889,375 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

(2) Details of lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021
Face value Discount Carrying amounts
Real estate W 270,736 (160,112) 110,624
Vehicles 4,061 (802) 3,259
W 274,797 (160,914) 113,883
December 31, 2020
: Face value Discount Carrying amounts
Real estate W 71,207 (31,964) 39,243
Vehicles 3,923 (639) 3,284
Others 393 197 196
W 75,523 (32,800) 42,723
(3) The amount related to lease recognized in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as
follows:
2021 2020
Depreciation of right-of-use assets W
Real estate 27,208 29,153
Vehicles 2,087 2,033
Others 4 13
29,299 31,199
Interest expenses on the lease liabilities 483 818
Expense relating to short-term leases - 66
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets 7,988 312
W 37,770 32,395
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23. Other Liabilities, Continued

(4) Cash flows used in lease liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Decrease in lease liabilities

Lease payments relating to short-term leases

Lease payments relating to leases of low-value
assets

2021 2020
W 25,020 25,329
- 66
7,988 312
W 33,008 25,707

(5) Maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments relating to lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021 and 2020

are as follows:

December 31, 2021
Within 3 months 1 year Over )
3 months ~ 1 year ~ 5 years 5 years Total

Lease payments W 15,287 33,295 200,737 25,478 274,797

. December 31, 2020

Within 3 months 1 year Over

3 months ~ 1 year ~ 5 years 5 years Total
Lease payments W 10,659 26,225 38,639 - 75,523
24. Equity
(1) Issued capital
The Bank is authorized to issue up to 6,000 million shares of common stock and has 4,377,311,768 shares issued
and 4,153,145,768 shares issued as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and outstanding with a total par
value (W 5,000 of par value per share) of W21,886,559 million and W20,765,729 million as of December 31, 2021
and 2020, respectively.
(2) Capital surplus
Capital surplus as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
| December 31, 2021 . December 31, 2020
Paid-in capital in excess of par value W 44,142 49,530
Surplus from capital reduction (*1) 44,373 44373
Other capital surplus (*2) 2,390,495 2,390,495
' W 2,479,010 2,484,398

(*1) The Bank reduced W5,178,600 million of its issued capital in 1998 and 2000 to offset its accumulated deficit
amounting to W-5,134,227 million. As the result of the capital reduction, W44,373 million of surplus exceeding
accumulated deficit was recorded in capital surplus in equity.

(*2) The difference in the amount of shares issued and the carrying value of net asset acquired occurring from the
merger of the Bank with KDB Financial Group Inc. and Korea Finance Corporation are recognized as other

capital surplus.
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24. Equity, Continued

(3) Accumulated other comprehensive income

(i) Accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Net gain on securities measured at FVOCI
Valuation gain on securities measured at . :
" FVOCI (before tax) W 6,399,029 2,787,519
Loss allowance for securities measured at '
FVOCI (before tax) ’ 86,449 81,278
Income tax effect ' (1,783,506) ] (788,919)
4,701,972 2,079,878
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations (before tax) ) 39,000 (60,912)
Income tax effect - -
39,000 (60,912)
Valuation gain on cash flow hedge:
Valuation gain on cash flow hedge (before tax) 1,930 47
Income tax effect (531) (13)
1,399 34
Net gain (loss) on hedges of net investments in
foreign operations:
Net gain (loss) on hedges of net investments in
foreign operations (before tax) (29,120) 48,975
A Income tax effect 8,008 (13,468)
. . (21,112) 35,507
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities:
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities )
(before tax) 71,362 ' 21,562
Income tax effect (19,623) : (5,928)
51,739 15,634
Fair value changes on financial liabilities
designated at fair value due to credit risk:
Valuation gain (loss) on financial liabilities
designated at fair value due to credit risk
(before tax) _ 657 (7,959)
Income tax effect _ (181) 2,189
476 (5,770)
W 4,773,474 2,064,371
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24. Equity, Continued

(ii) Changes in accumulated other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as

follows:

Gain on securities measured at
FVOCI

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Valuation gain on cash flow hedge

- Net gain (loss) on hedges of net

investments in foreign operations

Remeasurements of defined benefit
liabilities '

Valuation gain (loss) on financial
liabilities designated at fair value
due to credit risk

Gain on securities measured at
FVOCI

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations ,

Valuation gain (loss) on cash flow
hedge

Net gain on hedges of net
investments in foreign operations

Remeasurements of defined benefit
liabilities

Valuation loss on financial
liabilities designated at fair value
due to credit risk

2021
January 1, Increase December 31,
2021 (Decrease) Tax Effect 2021

W 2,079,878 3,616,681 (994,587) 4,701,972

(60,912) 99,912 - 39,000

34 1,883 (518) 1,399
35,507 (78,095) 21,476 (21,112)

15,634 49,800 (13,695) 51,739

(5,770) 8,616 (2,370) 476

W 2,064,371 3,698,797 (989,694) 4,773,474

2020
January 1, Increase December 31,
2020 (Decrease) Tax Effect 2020

W (99,406) 3,005,909 (826,625) 2,079,878
(7,158) (53,754) - (60,912)

(292) 450 (124) 34

4,015 43,437 (11,945) 35,507

19,331 (5,100) 1,403 15,634
(4,582) (1,639) 451 (5,770

W (88,092) 2,989,303 (836,840) 2,064,371
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Equity, Continued
(4) Retained earnings

In accordance with the Korea Development Bank Act, the Bank is required to appropriate at least 40% of net income
as a legal reserve. This reserve can be transferred to paid-in capital or offset an accumulated deficit.

In accordance with the Korea Development Bank Act, the Bank offsets an accumulated deficit with reserves. If the
reserve is insufficient to offset the accumulated deficit, the Korean government is responsible for the deficit.

(i) Retained earnings as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Legal reserve W 1,551,154 1,356,142
Voluntary reserve
Regulatory reserve for loan losses 482,885 1,146,038
Unappropriated retained earnings . 5,329,775 2,565,852
W 7,363,814 5,068,032

(ii) Changes in legal reserve for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 , 2020
Beginning balance W 1,356,142 1,177,851
Transfer from retained earnings 195,012 178,291
Ending balance W 1,551,154 1,356,142

(iii) Changes in unappropriated retained earnings for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

: 2021 ' 2020

Beginning balance W 2,565,852 2,327,769
Contribution to legal reserve (195,012) (178,291)
Transfer from regulatory reserve for credit losses 663,153 81,662
Dividends (209,638) (111,978)
Reclassification of gain or loss on equity

securities measured at FVOCI 43,574 (40,840)
Profit for the year 2,461,846 487,530
Ending balance W 5,329,775 2,565,852
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24.

Equity, Continued

(iv) Statements of appropriation of retained earnings for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020
1. Unappropriated retained earnings:
Unappropriated retained earning carried _
forward from the prior year W 2,824,355 2,119,162
Gain on disposal of securities measured at
FVOCI 43,574 (40,840).
Profit for the year 2,461,846 487,530
5,329,775 2,565,852
II. Transfers such as discretionary reserves
. Transfer from to regulatory reserve for credit
losses » 235,632 663,153
' 235,632 663,153
II. Appropriation of retained earnings: '
Contribution to legal reserve 984,739 195,012
Dividends (W190 for 2021 and W50 for ‘
2020 per share) 833,089 209,638
1,817,828 404,650
III. Unappropriated retained earnings to be
carried over to subsequent year W 3,747,579 2,824,355
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Equity, Continued

(5) Regulatory reserve for credit losses

The Bank is required to provide a regulatory reserve for credit losses in accordance with Regulations on Supervision
of Banking Business 29(1) and (2). The details of regulatory reserve for credit losses are as follows:

(i) Regulatory reserve for credit losses as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Beginning balance W 482,885 1,146,038
Planned reversal of reserve for credit losses (235,632) (663,153)
Ending balance W 247,253 482,885

(ii) Required reversal of regulatory reserve for credit losses and profit after adjusting regulatory reserve for loan
losses for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020

Profit for the year W 2,461,846 487,530
Obligated amount of reversal of

regulatory reserve for credit losses 235,632 663,153
Profit after adjusting regulatory

reserve for credit losses W 2,697,478 1,150,683
Earnings per share after adjusting

regulatory reserve for credit losses :

(in won) W 625 292
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25. Net Interest Income

Net interest income for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Interest income:
Due from banks

Securities measured at FVTPL
Securities measured at FVOCI
Loans measured at amortized cost
Loans measured at FVTPL

Loans measured at amortized cost

Interest expense:

Financial liabilities measured at

FVTPL
Deposits
Borrowings
Debentures

26. Net Fees and Commission Income

W

Net fees and commission income for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Fees and commission income:

Loan commissions

Underwriting and investment
consulting commissions
Brokerage and agency

commissions

Trust and retirement pension plan

commissions

Fees on asset management

Other fees

Fees and commission expenses:
Brokerage and agency fees

Other fees

2021 2020
27,254 57,984
23,736 26,615

347,468 394,410
21,913 14,394
17,042 21,939

3,687,863 3,926,212
4,125,276 4,441,554

(82,058) (79,318)

(370,202) (497,910)

(137,662) (266,728)

(1,876,745) (2,318,025)
(2,466,667) (3,161,981)
1,658,609 1,279,573

2021 2020

120,414 128,701

103,131 101,889

7,317 7,357
34,561 32,961
2,502 1,725

112,398 95,143

380,323 367,776
(7,635) (9,010)

(25,982) (25,662)

(33,617) (34,672)

346,706 333,104
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27. Dividend Income

Dividend income for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Securities measured at FVTPL W

Securities measured at FVOCI

Investments in subsidiaries and
associates

2021 2020
218,475 178,905
112,366 122,994
928,804 368,696
1,259,645 670,595

28. Net Gain (Loss) on Securities Measured at FVTPL

Net gain (loss) related to securities measured at FVTPL for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as

follows:

Gains on securities measured at FVTPL:
Gains on sale W
Gains on valuation

Losses on securities measured at FVTPL:
Losses on sale
Losses on valuation
Purchase related expense

2021 2020
66,358 86,491
271,999 139,442
338,357 225,933
(75,374) (44,658)
(127,364) (126,469)
(171) (49)
(202,909) (171,176)
135,448 54,757

29. Net Gain (Loss) on Financial Liabilities Measured at FVTPL

Net gain (loss) related to financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss for the years ended

December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020
Gains on financial liabilities
measured at FVTPL:
Gains on redemption W 625 471
Gains on valuation 152,243 44,720
: 152,868 45,197
Losses on financial liabilities
measured at FVTPL:
Losses on redemption (309) (14,230)
Losses on valuation (2,679) (1,782)
(2,988) (16,012)
W 149,880 29,185
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30. Net Gain (Loss) on Securities Measured at FVOCI

Net gain (loss) related to securities measured at FVOCI for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as

follows:
2021 2020
Gains on securities measured at FVOCI:
~ Gains on sale W 14,495 102,432
Losses on securities measured at FVOCI:
Losses on sale (37,653) (13,783)
Impairment losses (4,763) (8,537)
(42,416) (22,320)
W (27,921) 80,112
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31. Net Gain (1.oss) on Derivatives

Net gain (loss) on derivatives for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows: *

2020
Net gain (loss) on trading purpose
derivatives:
Gains on trading purpose derivatives:
Interest W 2,485,586 2,205,066
Currency 11,370,394 13,435,618
Stock 13,801 13,372
Gains on adjustment of derivatives 4,336 13,493
13,874,117 15,667,549
Losses on trading purpose derivatives:
Interest (2,378,834) (2,274,718)
Currency (10,910,300) (13,551,073)
Stock ’ (4,194) (18,329)
Losses on adjustment of derivatives (92,276) (5,953)
(13,385,604) (15,850,073)
488,513 (182,524)
Net gain (loss) on hedging purpose .
derivatives:
Gains on hedging purpose derivatives:
Interest 70,831 449,971
Currency 163,829 666,696
- Gains on adjustment of derivatives 362 23
‘ 235,022 1,116,690
Losses on hedging purpose derivatives: :
Interest . (705,149) (107,767)
Currency (717,324) (388,944)
Losses on adjustment of derivatives (422) (746)
(1,422,895) (497,457
(1,187,873) 619,233
Net gain (loss) on fair value hedged
items:
Gains on fair value hedged items:
Gains on valuation 773,826 - 294,219
Gains on redemption 184,599 356,886
958,425 651,105
Losses on fair value hedged items: i
Losses on valuation (255,932) (598,107)
Losses on redemption (205,224) (92,557)
(461,156) (690,664)
497,269 (39,559)
\Y% (202,091) 397,150

Related with cash flow hedge, the Bank recognized W152 million of gain and W24 million of loss in the statements
of comprehensive income as the ineffective portion for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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32.

Net Foreign Currency Transaction Gain (L.oss)

WS

Net foreign currency transaction gain (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021

2020

Net loss on foreign exchange

transactions: :
Gains on foreign exchange
transactions W 567,692 604,366
Losses on foreign exchange
transactions (577,226) (617,136)
. (9,534) (12,770)
Net gain (loss) on foreign currency .
translations:
Gains on foreign currency
translations 8,839,001 8,385,283
Losses on foreign currency .
translations (8,675,100) (8,544,881)
163,901 - (159,598)
W 154,367 (172,368)
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33. Other Operating Expense, net

Other operating income and expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

- 2021 2020
Other operating income:
Gains on sale of loans - W 60,323 ‘ 15,820
Gains on disposal of loans
measured at FVTPL 1,860,411 4,568
Gains on valuation of loans ) . :
measured at FVTPL 83,760 676,776
Gains on disposal of investments
in subsidiaries and associates 90,601 14,095
Reversal of provisions 3,687 1,015
Others 16,586 18,149
) 2,115,368 A 730,423
Other operating expenses:
Losses on sale of loans (28,298) (125,539)
Losses on disposal of loans )
measured at FVTPL (9,692) (29,155)
Losses on valuation of loans
measured at FVTPL . (4,349) (27,509)
Losses on disposal of investments : '
in subsidiaries and associates , (592) (875)
Increase in provisions (9,872) (9,092)
Insurance expenses : (75,121) (66,988)
Credit guarantee fund salary (189,504) (178,196)
Educational taxes : (33,842) (32,231)
Foreign security contributions (5,384) (8,928)
Others (20,098) (24,863)
(376,752) (503,376)
W 1,738,616 ' 227,047
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34.

3s.

Provision for Credit Losses

NI

Provision for credit losses for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 . 2020
Provision for loan loss allowance W 855,548 1,177,027
Provision for other assets 1,076 19,722
Provision for (reversal of) unused
commitments (137,830) 52,881
Provision for (reversal of) financial
guarantee provision (5,078) 41,606
Provision for (reversal of) payment
guarantees 133,641 (75,930)
W 847,357 . 1,215,306
General and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
2021 2020
* Payroll costs: .
Short-term employee benefits W 388,800 376,582
Defined benefit costs 39,995 38,483
Defined contribution costs 7,085 7,393
435,880 422,458
Depreciation and amortization:
Depreciation of property and
equipment : 70,860 69,403
Amortization of intangible assets 53,837 53,977
124,697 123,380
Other: . -
Employee welfare benefits 33,955 32,203
Rent expenses 5,078 6,388
Taxes and dues 35,228 32,595
Advertising expenses 17,465 16,752
Electronic data processing
expenses : 83,418 72,214
Fees and charges . 36,442 36,029
Others ‘ 43,583 47,318
255,169 243,499
W 815,746 789,337
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36. Other Non-Operating Income and Expense

IR

Other non-operating income and expense for the years ended December 3 1,2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Other non-operating income:

Gain on disposal of assets held fo_r.

sale

Reversal of impairment loss on
assets held for sale

‘Gain on disposal of property and
equipment

Rental income on investment
property

Others

Other non-operating expense:

Losses of disposal of assets held
for sale

Impairment loss on assets held for
sale

Losses on disposal of property
and equipment

Depreciation of investment

. property

Donations

Others

W

2021 2020
3,610 -
27 -
2,074 1,254
2,877 2,216
5,942 9,005
14,530 12,475
(2 -
(258,428) (25,926)
(592) (205)
(2,209) (1,381)
(6,594) (15,142)
(4,554) (3,981)
(272,379) (46,635)
(257,849) (34,160)
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37.

Income Tax Expense

(1) Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020

Current income tax (*) W 312,034 166,947
Changes in income tax before the :

prior years : (350,718) -
Changes in deferred income taxes on

temporary differences ‘ 2,238,422 787,732
Deferred income tax recognized

directly to equity ,

Other comprehensive income (989,694) (836,840)

Retained earnings (16,528) 15,491
Income tax expense W 1,193,516 133,330

(*) Includes changes such as those that arise from final tax returns.

(2) Profit before income taxes and income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as

follows:
2021 2020
Profit before income taxes W 3,655,362 620,860
Income taxes calculated using ’ _
enacted tax rates 1,005,224 170,736
Adjustments: :
Non-deductible losses and tax-free gains (45,570) (12,508)
Non-recognition effect of deferred income
taxes ' 258,005 (21,653)
Net adjustments for prior years (34,694) (9,423)
Others ) 10,551 6,178
188,292 (37,406)
Income tax expense W 1,193,516 133,330
Effective tax rate (%) 32.65 21.48

\]
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Income Tax Expense, Continued

(3) Changes in temporary differences and deferred tax assets (liabilities) for the years ended December 31, 2021 and

2020 are as follows:

Derivatives

Investments in subsidiaries and
associates

Losses on fair value hedged items
valuation

Losses on foreign exchange
translation for hedged liabilities

Impairment losses on debt
securities

Impairment losses on equity
securities _

Defined benefit obligation

Plan assets

Financial assets held for trading

Available-for-sale financial assets

Write-off

Provisions

Property impairment losses

Dividends Receivable

Loan origination fees

Gains on sales of loans

Others

Temporary differences from
unrecognized deferred tax assets
and liabilities:

Investments in subsidiaries and
associates, etc.

W

312

2021
. Deferred tax
January 1, December 31, assets
2021 (%) Decrease Increase 2021 (liabilities)
(1,478,054) (1,478,054) (484,588) (484,588) (133,262)
(6,936,110) 55,644 (2,461,274)  (9,453,028) (3,248,672)
680,195 680,195 123,404 123,404 33,936
(18,376) (18,376) (162,252) (162,252) (44,619)
65,933 - - 65,933 18,132
60,351 7,021 - 53,330 14,666
385,405 18,313 - 367,092 100,950
(336,831) (18,313) (24,514) (343,032) (94,334)
(43,634) 7,407 407 (50,634) (13,924)
(146,364) - - (146,364) 185
3,443,577 277,227 293,107 3,459,457 939,146
923,130 1,429,831 1,574,419 1,067,718 293,622
6,457 173 - 6,284 1,728
8,365 8,365 5,245 5,245 1,442
(9,063) (9,063) (16,573) (16,573) (4,558)
(63,311) (242) (2,332,979)  (2,396,048) (658,913)
(825,857) 4,672,829 1,604,388 (3,894,298) (1,163,047)
(4,284,187) 5,632,957 (1,881,210) (11,798,354)  (3,957,522)
1,886,720 626,007 - 2,512,727 -
(2,397,467) 6,258,964 (1,881,210) (9,285,627)  (3,957,522)

(*) Temporary differences as of January 1, 2021 reflected previous year’s additional tax adjustment after the

financial statements were issued.
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37. Income Tax Expense, Continued

2020
Deferred tax
January 1, December 31, assets
2020 (%) Decrease Increase 2020 (liabilities)
Derivatives W (777,801) (777,801) (1,478,054) (1,478,054) (406,465)
Investments in subsidiaries and
associates (7,130,082) 3,970 265,418 (6,868,634) (2,196,801)
Losses on fair value hedged items
valuation 268,983 268,983 680,195 680,195 187,054
Losses on foreign exchange
translation for hedged liabilities 45211 45,211 73,159 73,159 20,119
Impairment losses on debt
securities 65,933 - - 65,933 18,132
Impairment losses on equity
securities 65,372 7,669 2,647 60,350 16,596
Defined benefit obligation 349,443 12,987 48,787 385,243 105,942
Plan assets (306,175) (12,987) (12,987) (306,175) (84,198)
Financial assets held for trading (58,070) 2,742 17,178 (43,634) (11,999)
Available-for-sale financial assets (145,452) 912 - (146,364) 185
Write-off 3,135,237 72,950 381,290 3,443,577 791,472
Provisions 994,450 1,501,151 1,429,831 923,130 253,861
Property impairment losses 6,630 173 - 6,457 1,776
Dividends Receivable - - 8,365 8,365 2,300
Loan origination fees (7,293) (7,293) (9,063) (9,063) (2,492)
Gains on sales of loans (63,554) (318) (75) (63,311) (17,411)
Others . 2,086,454 3,802,202 620,561 (1,095,187) (397,171)
(1,470,714) 4,920,551 2,027,252 (4,364,013)  (1,719,100)
Temporary differences from
unrecognized deferred tax assets
and liabilities:
Investments in subsidiaries and
associates, etc. 1,912,607 (25,887) - 1,886,720 -
W 441,893 4,894,664 2,027,252 (2,477,293)  (1,719,100)

(*) Temporary differences as of January 1, 2020 reflected previous year’s additional tax adjustment after the

financial statements were issued.
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37. Income Tax Expense, Continued

(4) Changes in income tax expense recognized directly to equity for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

are as follows:

2021
December 31, 2021 January 1, 2021
Amounts Amounts Changes in
before tax Tax effect before tax Tax effect tax effect
Net gain (loss) on securities '
measured at FVOCI W 4,701,972 (1,783,506) 2,079,878 (788,919) (994,587)
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations 39,000 (60,912) - -
Net gain (loss) on valuation of
cash flow hedge 1,399 34 ) (13) (518)
Net gain on hedges of net
investments in foreign operations (21,112) 8,008 35,507 (13,468) 21,476
Remeasurements of defined
benefit liabilities 51,739 (19,623) 15,634 (5,928) (13,695)
Fair value changes on financial
liabilities designated at fair value
due to credit risk 476 (5,770) 2,189 (2,370)
W 4773474 (1,795,833) 2,064,371 (806,139) (989,694)

Income tax benefit recognized direct to retained earnings amounting to ¥16,528 million is the tax effect of realized
income amounting to W.60,102 million from disposal of equity securities measured at FVOCL

2020
. December 31, 2020 January 1, 2020
Amounts Amounts Changes in
before tax Tax effect before tax Tax effect tax effect
Net gain (loss) on securities
measured at FVOCI W 2,079,878 (788,919) (99,406) 37,706 (826,625)
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations (60,912) (7,158) - -
Net gain (loss) on valuation of
cash flow hedge 34 (292) 111 (124)
Net gain on hedges of net
investments in foreign operations 35,507 (13,468) 4,015 (1,523) (11,945)
Remeasurements of defined
benefit liabilities 15,634 (5,928) 19,331 (7,331) 1,403
Fair value changes on financial
liabilities designated at fair value
due to credit risk (5,770) 2,189 (4,582) 1,738 451
W 2,064,371 (806,139) (88,092) 30,701 (836,840)

Income tax expense recognized direct to retained earnings amounting to W15,491 million is the tax effect of
realized loss amounting to W-56,331 million from disposal of equity securities measured at FVOCIL.
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38.

Earnings per Share

(1) Basic earnings per share

The Bank’s basic earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are computed as follows:

(i) Basic earnings per share

2021

2020

Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Bank (A) (in
won) W
Weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding (B)

2,461,845,944,398
4,319,226,656

487,529,927,945
3,938,857,211

Basic earnings per share (A/B) (in
won) W

570

124

(ii) Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding

Number of ordinary shares outstanding at the
beginning of the year (A)

Increased paid-in capital (B)

Increased paid-in capital (C)

Cumulative shares (D = A+B+C)

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding (D/365)

Number of ordinary shares outstanding at the
beginning of the year (A)

Increased paid-in capital (B)

Increased paid-in capital (C)

Cumulative shares (D = A+B+C)

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding (D/366)

(2) Diluted earnings per share

2021
Number of ordinary shares Days Cumulative shares
4,153,145,768 365 1,515,898,205,320
102,000,000 338 34,476,000,000
122,166,000 214 26,143,524,000
1,576,517,729,320
4,319,226,656
2020
Number of ordinary shares Days Cumulative shares
3,732,619,768 366 1,366,138,835,088
90,100,000 273 24,597,300,000
330,426,000 154 50,885,604,000

1,441,621,739,088

3,938,857,211

Diluted and basic earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are equal because there

is no potential dilutive instrument.
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39. Pledged Assets
Assets pledged by the Bank as collateral as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
: Related Related
Pledged assets liabilities Pledged assets liabilities
Securities measured at FVOCI(*) =~ W 4,369,781 5,701,903
Securities measured at amortized cost (*) 2,455,324 1,685,428 313,631 2,249,385
W 6,825,105 1,685,428 . 6,015,534 2,249,385

(*) Pledged as collateral related to bonds sold under repurchase agreements and borrowings.

40. Guarantees and Commitments
Guarantees and commitments as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Confirmed acceptances and guarantees:
~ Acceptances in foreign currency W 276,041 408,155
Guarantees for bond issuance 2,224,142 . 2,281,329
Guarantees for loans 611,091 485,483
Letter of guarantee 37,292 ) 42 965
. Guarantees for on-lending debt 6,794 11,127
Others 4,593,406 3,734,283
7,748,766 6,963,342
Unconfirmed acceptances and guarantees:
Letter of credit 1,979,841 1,252,411
Z Others . 4,224,656 1,882,381
K 6,204,497 3,134,792
»  Commitments: .
. Commitments on loans 46,591,132 42,787,113
Others 2,020,595 2,075,621
' 48,611,727 44,862,734
Bills endorsed:
With recourse - 971
' W 62,564,990 54,961,839
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41,

Trust Accounts

(1) Trust accounts as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

. ‘ December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Accrued trust fee W 8,585 - ) 8,010
Borrowings from trust accounts ' 965,733 906,843
Accrued interest on deposits . 686 909

(2) Transactions with trust accounts for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020
Trust management fee W 31,729 30,356
Interest expenses on deposits - 3
Interest expenses of borrowings from ‘
trust accounts 7,167 8,103

(3) The carrying amounts of principals guaranteed money trust and principals and interest guaranteed money trust
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

. December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Principals guaranteed money trust W 236,858 251,006
Principals and interest guaranteed money trust 234,697 238,320

w 471,555 489,326
Principal of money and property trust W 436,299 450,445
Accrued trust profit 35,256 38,881
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42.

Related Party Transactions

(1) The Bank’s related parties as of December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Classification

Corporate name

Subsidiaries

Associates

Others

KDB Capital Corporation, Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering Co.,
Ltd., KDB Infrastructure Investment Asset Management Co., Ltd., KDB Asia
Ltd., KDB Ireland Ltd., KDB Bank Europe Ltd., Banco KDB Do Brazil S.A.,
KDB Bank Uzbekistan, KDB Indonesia and 8 others, KDB Investment PEF No.
1, KDB Consus Value PEF, Components and Materials M&A PEF and 5 others,
Principals guaranteed trust accounts of KDB, Principals and interests guaranteed
interest trust accounts of KDB, UBest 5th Securitization Specialty Co., Ltd. and
9 others, KIAMCO Road Investment Private Fund Special Asset Trust 2 and 21
others

Korea Electric Power Co., Ltd., Korea Tourism Organization, KOREA REAL
ESTATE BOARD, GM Korea Company, HMM Co., Ltd., HANJIN KAL, Korea
Ocean Business Corporation and 74 others, Troika Resources Investment PEF
and 100 others, KIP Overseas Expansion Platform Fund and 117 others

Key management personnel

(2) Significant balances with related parties as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Subsidiaries:
KDB Capital Corporation

KDB Infrastructure Investment
Asset Management Co., Ltd.

KDB Ireland Ltd.

KDB Bank Europe Ltd.

Banco KDB Do Brazil S.A.

KDB Indonesia Ltd.

December 31, December 31,
Account 2021 2020

Loans W 74,158 7,188
Allowance for loan losses (36) A3)
Derivative financial assets 1,463 293
Other assets : 4 _ 7
Deposits 447 2,762
Derivative financial liabilities - 3,756
Other liabilities 35,539 35,513
Deposits 9,028 17,767
Other liabilities 34 162
Loans 543,636 358,393
Allowance for loan losses (158) (94)
Derivative financial assets 5,141 9,673
Other assets ] 114 ] 179
Derivative financial liabilities 1,510 -
Cash and due from banks 353,575 264,697
Derivative financial assets 2,202 552
Other assets : - 47
Derivative financial liabilities - 278
Other liabilities 1,872 762
Cash and due from banks 59,275 48,960
Loans 210,426 60,384
Allowance for loan losses (78) (30)
Other assets 317 85
Loans 23,710 21,760
Allowance for loan losses @) (6)
Other assets 12 12
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42. Related Party Transactions, Continued

December 31, December 31,
Account 2021 2020
KDB Silicon Valley LLC Deposits 86,542 -
Other liabilities 20 -
KDB Asia Ltd. Cash and due from banks 1,344,965 783,360
Loans 450,474 . 261,120
Allowance for loan losses (130) (68)
Derivative financial assets 26 1,051
Other assets 1,237 825
Deposits 2 2
Borrowings 43,707 10,736
Derivative financial liabilities 2,408 370
Other liabilities 167 23
KDB Investment PEF No.1 Loans 600,000 732,640
‘ Allowance for loan losses (2,554) (3,443)
Derivative financial assets 800 3,109
Other assets 8,758 8,985
Allowance of other assets (32) (35)
Deposits 215,203 4,553
Derivative financial liabilities 3,550 585
Other liabilities 140 31
Other provisions 1,630 1,003
KDB Consus Value PEF Securities 40,101 40,857
Derivative financial assets 8,633 243
Other assets « 345 345
Deposits 62 104
Derivative financial liabilities 1,083 9,923
Other liabilities 702 703
Daewoo Shipbuilding &
Marine Engineering Co., Ltd. Loans 1,432,973 1,322,265
Allowance for loan losses (599,475) (437,867)
Derivative financial assets 194,696 6,533
Other assets 1,488 3,406
Deposits 473,357 593,439
Derivative financial liabilities 2,731 153,516
Other liabilities 30,802 238,642
Other provisions 781,272 769,944
Corporate Liquidity Assistance
Agency Co., Ltd. Loans 440,000 220,000
Allowance for loan losses (142) (64)
Other assets 24,331 4,452
Allowance of other assets ®) )]
Deposits 610,416 696,350
Other liabilities 190 90
. : Other provisions 135 168
Others Loans 1,015,470 1,032,466
Allowance for loan losses (432,829) (368,449)
Derivative financial assets 10,697 738
Other assets 11,853 13,142
Allowance of other assets (5,384) (5,190)
Deposits 93,295 86,364
Borrowings 95,565 42,527
Derivative financial liabilities 205 25,090
Other liabilities 16,927 15,675
Other provisions 246,239 170,380
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42,

Associates:
Korea Electric Power Co., Ltd.

KG Dongbu Steel Co., Ltd.

HMM Co., Ltd.

Hanjin Heavy Industries &

Construction Co., Ltd. (*)

HANJIN KAL

Korea Ocean Business
Corporation

Others

Related Party Transactions, Continued

December 31,

December 31,

Account 2021 2020
Securities 10,759 5,779
Loans 236,223 197,539
Allowances for loan losses (1,428) (1,778)
Derivative financial assets 2,409 80,203
Other assets 2,074 20,631
Deposits 400,963 135,837
Borrowings : 2,649 53,107
Derivative financial liabilities 149,969 41,212
Other liabilities 3,434 10,599
Other provisions 12 10
Loans 783,695 614,062
Allowances for loan losses (4,093) (55,321
Other assets 375 622
Deposits 12,294 3,871
Other liabilities 76 129
Other provisions 682 15,320
Securities 7,315,547 3,866,467
Loans 202,509 1,040,638
Allowances for loan losses (30,614) (93,017)
Other assets 7,236 7,302
Deposits 1,876,483 440,127
Other liabilities 9,145 2,536
Other provisions . - 8,200
Loans - 213,052
Deposits - 110,914
Other liabilities - 1,464
Other provisions - 128,819
Securities - 20,098
Loans 449252 390,902
Other assets 518 616
Loans 15,237 15,464
Allowances for loan losses 1)) 1)
Other assets 16 17
Deposits 40,000 -
Other liabilities 237 4
Securities | 1,454 -
Loans 445,904 803,266
Allowances for loan losses (8,250) (355,141)
Other assets 6,900 6,390
Deposits 470,808 439,113
Other liabilities 2,307 2,169
Other provisions 76,500 60,070

(*) For the year ended December 31, 2021, the sale of the share of Hanjin Heavy Industries & Construction Co.,

Ltd., the Bank’s associate, has been completed and excluded from the Bank’s related party
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- 42. Related Party Transactions, Continued

(3) Significant profit or loss with related parties for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Subsidiaries:

KDB Capital Corporation

KDB Infrastructure Investments
Asset Management Co., Ltd.

KDB Ireland Ltd.

KDB Bank Europe Ltd.

Account 2021 2020

Interest income 92 137
Dividend income 27,956 42,866
Reversal of allowance for loan

losses - 1
Fees and commission income,

other income 6,018 4,165
Interest expenses 417) (148)
Provision for loan losses (33) -
Other operating expenses (513) (7,786)
Dividend income 9,089 12,287
Interest expenses (121) (331)
Interest income 1,186 3,506
Fees and commission income,

other income 5,176 9,662
Interest expenses 0)) . @)
Provision for loan losses 67N (61)
Other operating expenses (8,028) (2,868)
Interest income 712 5,003
Reversal of allowance for loan

losses - 12
Fees and commission income,

other income 2,760 495
Provision for loan losses ) -
Other operating expenses (596) (2,281)
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42. Related Party Transactions, Continued

Account 2021 2020
Banco KDB Do Brazil S.A. Interest income 1,016 2,509
Provision for loan losses (45) O]
KDB Indonesia Ltd. Interest income 160 12
Provision for loan losses 1) 6)
KDB Silicon Valley LLC Interest expenses 22) -
KDB Asia Ltd. Interest income 8,258 11,910
Fees and commission income,
other income 2,386 3,933
Interest expenses (426) (50)
Provision for loan losses (57) (43)
Other operating expenses (6,412) (760)
KDB Investment PEF No.1 Interest income 22,780 28,533
Fees and commission income,
other income 2,567 12,201
Interest expenses (230) (386)
: Other operating expenses (4,805) (3,496)
KDB Consus Value PEF Interest income 1,600 1,600
Fees and commission income,
other income 21,087 8,005
Interest expenses ©) (10)
Other operating expenses (1,094) (15,887)
Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine
Engineering Co., Ltd. Interest income 21,470 30,033
Reversal of allowance for loan
losses - 47914
Fees and commission income,
other income 696,230 320,474
Interest expenses (4,988) (5,939)
Provision for loan losses (117,849) -
Other operating expenses (247,919) (380,139)
Corporate Liquidity Assistance
Agency Co., Ltd. Interest income 19,880 4,452
33 -
Interest expenses (7,226) (2,847)
Provision for loan losses (78) (64)
Other operating expenses N (169)
Others Interest income 44,048 23,280
Dividend income 74,548 103,474
. Reversal of allowance for loan
losses 72,674 28,870
Fees and commission income,
other income 195,228 148,144
Interest expenses (639) (914)
Provision for loan losses (118,800) (80,030)
Other operating expenses (216,888) (153,704)
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42. Related Party Transactions, Continued

Associates:
Korea Electric Power Co., Ltd.

KG Dongbu Steel Co., Ltd.

HMM Co., Ltd.

Hanjin Heavy Industries &
Construction Co., Ltd. (*)

HANIJIN KAL

Korea Ocean Business
Corporation

Others

Account 2021 2020

Interest income 2,994 4,125
Dividend income 256,862 -
Reversal of allowance for loan

losses 351 -
Fees and commission income,

other income 19,298 178,140
Interest expenses (1,006) (2,180)
Provision for loan losses - (934)
Other operating expenses (254,043) (46,166)
Interest income 11,889 12,687
Dividend income 1,101 -
Reversal of allowance for loan

losses 51,228 62,035
Fees and commission income,

other income 27,840 33,704
Interest expenses (13) 41
Other operating expenses (10,866) (14,044)
Interest income 43,330 41,080
Reversal of allowance for loan

losses 62,402 4,761
Fees and commission income,

other income 1,830,596 558,057
Interest expenses (3,377) (2,107)
Other operating expenses (85,660) (11,334)
Interest income 2,962 5,704
Fees and commission income,

other income 133,190 12,226
Interest expenses (177) (346)
Provision for loan losses (3,514) -
Other operating expenses (2,930) (22,460)
Interest income 7,012 -
Fees and commission income,

other income 58,399 -
Interest income 213 380
Fees and commission income,

other income 1,338 3
Interest expenses (237) (19)
Provision for loan losses - )
Other operating expenses . - (969)
Interest income 20,066 13,853
Dividend income 606,017 243,044
Reversal of allowance for loan

losses 348,053 380,524
Fees and commission income,

other income 23,393 73,290
Interest expenses (2,332) (3,481)
Provision for loan losses (641) (3,320)
Other operating expenses (31,566) (17,095)

(*) The amounts are profit or loss recognized until the Hanjin Heavy Industries & Construction Co., Ltd. was
excluded from the related parties due to the Bank’s sale of shares for the year ended December 31,2021.
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42.

Related Party Transactions, Continued

(4) Details of guarantees and commitments to the related parties as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Account 2021 2020
Subsidiaries:
KDB Capital Corporation Commitments W 250,000 320,000
KDB Investment PEF No.1 Unconfirmed acceptances and
guarantees 4,386 7,854
Commitments 413,874 298,706
Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine Confirmed acceptances and
Engineering Co., Ltd. guarantees 1,457,948 1,226,351
Unconfirmed acceptances and
guarantees 1,818,741 557,377
Commitments 4,047,436 5,084,798
Corporate Liquidity Assistance
Agency Co., Ltd. Commitments 560,000 780,000
Others Confirmed acceptances and
guarantees 464,349 337,604
Unconfirmed acceptances and
guarantees 192,627 175,716
Commitments 501,800 178,200
Associates:
KG Dongbu Steel Co., Ltd. Unconfirmed acceptances and
guarantees 32,487 20,265
Commitments 186,021 339,823
HMM Co., Ltd. Confirmed acceptances and
guarantees - 13,056
Hanjin Heavy Industries & Confirmed acceptances and
Construction Co., Ltd. guarantees - 414,630
' - Unconfirmed acceptances and '
guarantees - 3,337
Commitments - 22,614
Others Confirmed acceptances and
guarantees - 76,628
Unconfirmed acceptances and
guarantees - 28,431
Commitments 221,182 244,384
W 10,150,851 10,129,774

(5) Details of compensation to key management personnel for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as
follows:

2021 2020
Short-term employee benefits W 1,213 1,130
Post-employment benefits 33 42
W 1,246 1,172

(6) The Bank are not pledged any assets as collaterals to the related parties and from the related parties as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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43. Statements of Cash Flows

(1) Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Cash and due from banks:
Cash and foreign currencies
Due from banks in Korean won
Due from banks in foreign currencies
/ off-shores

Less: Restricted due from banks, others
Add: Financial instruments reaching maturity
within three months from date of
acquisition
Call-loans
Inter-bank loans

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
55,083 52,240
6,007,684 4,487,351
5,913,000
5,989,387
11,975,767 10,528,978
(7,796,870) (5,624,394)
653,340 465,485
233,898 359,125
887,238 824,610
5,066,135 5,729,194

(2) Significant transactions not involving cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Decrease in loans due to write-offs

Increase in securities measured at FVOCI due to
debt-to-equity swap, etc

Increase in investments in subsidiaries and
associates due to debt-to-equity swap, etc.

Increase in accumulated other comprehensive
income due to securities valuation

Deferred income tax effect due to securities
valuation

Reclassification of investments in subsidiaries
and associates to assets held for sale

Transfer from investment property to property
and equipment

Transfer from property and equipment to
investment property

Recognition of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities

2021 2020

33,671 158,616

146,183 13,714

2,658,000 -
.3,616,681 3,005,909
(994,587) (826,625)

- 78,278

- 16,037

4,004 5,590

115,586 31,499

97



- Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(In millions of won)

44,

45.

Transfers of Financial Instruments

Details of financial assets and liabilities related to repurchase agreements and loaned securities sold and loaned
debt securities that do not qualify for derecognition as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amounts for amounts for amounts for amounts for
transferred related transferred related
Characteristics of transactions assets liabilities assets liabilities
Repurchase agreements W 3,349,080 1,307,268 2,762,065 1,875,504
Loaned securities 417,640 - 289,806 -
W 3,766,720 1,307,268 3,051,871 1,875,504

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Bank classifies and discloses fair value of the financial instruments into the following three-level hierarchy:

- Level 1: Financial instruments measured at quoted prices from active markets are classified as level 1.
- Level 2: Financial instruments measured using valuation techniques where all significant inputs are observable

market data are classified as level 2.

- Level 3: Financial instruments measured using valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs are
not based on observable market data are classified as level 3.

(1) Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value

(i) The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are

as follows:

December 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets: .
Securities measured at FVTPL W 606,008 1,348,367 7,864,436 9,818,811
Securities measured at FVOCI 1,819,791 17,419,641 18,635,704 37,875,136
Loans measured at FVTPL - - 644,412 644,412
Derivative financial assets ‘ 1 5,295,504 10,067 5,305,572
W 2,425,800 24,063,512 27,154,619 53,643,931
Financial liabilities: '
Financial liabilities measured at
FVTPL ’ W : - 2,067,144 - 2,067,144 .
Derivative financial liabilities 2 4,746,616 11,223 4,757,841
W 2 6,813,760 11,223 6,824,985
December 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets: '
Securities measured at FVTPL. W 1,023,738 1,064,829 6,232,064 8,320,631
Securities measured at FVOCI 2,439,145 17,067,639 14,634,541 34,141,325
Loans measured at FVTPL - - 1,434,514 1,434,514
Derivative financial assets - 8,321,162 8,214 8,329,376
W 3,462,883 26,453,630 22,309,333 52,225,846
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured at
FVTPL W - 1,694,957 - 1,694,957
Derivative financial liabilities - 6,298,836 6,451 6,305,287
W - 7,993,793 6,451 8,000,244
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45,

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

(i) Changes in the fair value of level 3 financial instruments for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are

as follows:

2021
Financial assets Financial liabilities
Securities Securities Loans Derivative
measured at measured at measured at  financial Derivative
FVTPL FVOCI FVTPL assets Total financial liabilities
January 1, 2021 W 6,232,064 14,634,541 1,434,514 8,214 22,309,333 6,451
Profit or loss 172,327 - 79,411 8,547 260,285 4,772
Other ‘
comprehensive ‘
income - 3,691,901 - - 3,691,901 -
Acquisition / Issue 1,857,647 494,015 52,450 - 2,404,112 -
Sale / Settlement (397,602)  (157,861)  (921,963) (6,694) (1,484,120) -
Transfer out (*) - (26,892) - - (26,892) -
Transfer in (*) - - - - - -
December 31,2021 W 7,864,436 18,635,704 644,412 10,067 27,154,619 11,223
2020
Financial assets Financial liabilities
Securities Securities Loans Derivative .
measured at measured at measuredat  financial Derivative
FVTPL FVOCI FVTPL assets Total financial liabilities
January 1, 2020 W 4,804,158 10,865,012 604,380 10,007 16,283,557 75
Profit or loss (10,627) - 649,450 (1,793) 637,030 6,376
Other
comprehensive
income - 2,944,874 - - 2,944,874 -
Acquisition / Issue 1,899,130 990,310 349,940 - 3,239,380 -
Sale / Settlement | (476,894)  (168,778)  (169,256) - (814,928) -
Transfer out (*) - (24,556) - - (24,556) -
Transfer in (*) 16,297 27,679 - - 43,976 -
December 31, 2020 W 6,232,064 14,634,541 1,434,514 8,214 22,309,333 6,451

(*) When significant inputs become observable market data, the financial instruments are transferred to (from) other

levels.

(iii) Changes in deferred day one profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Beginning balance
Amortization
Ending balance

2021 2020

W 4,375 4,763
(386) (388)

W 3,989 4,375
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45. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

(iv) Details of valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as

follows:

Securities measured at FVTPL and
financial assets held for trading:
Equity securities
Debt securities

Securities measured at FVOCI and

available-for-sale financial assets:

Equity securities
Debt securities

Derivatives financial assets:
Interest rate swaps
Currency forwards and swaps
Currency options
Commodities options

Financial liabilities measured at
FVTPL:
Debentures

Valuation technique

Input

Net asset value approach
Discounted cash flow method

Net asset value approach
Discounted cash flow method

Discounted cash flow method,
Black-Scholes model, Modified
Black model, Formula model

Discounted cash flow method

100

Underlying asset price
Discount rate

Underlying asset price
Discount rate

Discount rate, exchange rate,
volatility, commodity index,
etc.

Discount rate
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45. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

(v) Details of valuation technique and quantitative information about unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement categorized within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair
value as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Securities measured at FVTPL
Equity securities

Securities measured at FVOCI
Equity securities

Loans measured at FVTPL
" Convertible bonds, etc.
Derivatives financial assets
Interest rate swaps

Interest rate options
Stock index options
Equity options

Securities measured at FVTPL
Equity securities

Securities measured at FVOCI
Equity securities

Loans measured at FVTPL
Convertible bonds, etc.

Derivatives financial assets
Interest rate swaps

Interest rate options
Stock index options
Equity options

December 31, 2021
Valuation technique Unobservable input Range (%)
Discounted cash flow Discount rate 6.52 ~13.22
method, Relative value  Rate of increase in -
approach, Net asset liquidation value
value approach Rate of increase in -
property disposal price
Volatility 17.89 ~41.50
Discounted cash flow Discount rate 7.70 ~17.56
method, Relative value ~ Growth rate -
approach, Net asset Volatility 19.48 ~ 33.20
value approach
Binomial model, LSMC  Volatility 17.89 ~ 34.16
Discounted cash flow Volatility 38.23 ~49.07
Correlation coefficient 0.43 ~0.87
Modified Black model Volatility 38.23 ~49.07
Black-Scholes model Volatility 5.40~71.40
Discounted cash flow _ Volatility 18.87 ~2549 .
method and others
December 31, 2020
Valuation technique Unobservable input Range (%)
Discounted cash flow Discount rate 0.72 ~19.05
method, Relative value  Rate of increase in
approach, Net asset liquidation value -
value approach Rate of increase in
property disposal price -
Volatility 17.53 ~33.00
Discounted cash flow Discount rate 0.195 ~19.05
method, Relative value ~ Growth rate -
approach, Net asset Volatility 18.49 ~ 26.45
value approach
Binomial model, LSMC  Volatility 17.53 ~32.59
Discounted cash flow Volatility 36.02 ~ 44.87
. Correlation coefficient 0.83 ~0.91
Modified Black model Volatility 36.02 ~ 44.87
Black-Scholes model Volatility 17.20 ~27.30
Discounted cash flow Volatility 18.49 ~33.00

"method and others
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45. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

(vi) The sensitivity analysis on changes in unobservable inputs for financial instruments categorized within level 3
of the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value as of December 31, 2021 and 2020

are as follows:

Securities measured at FVTPL (*1)
Securities measured at FVOCI (*1)
Loans measured at FVTPL (*2)
Derivative financial assets (*2)

Securities measured at FVTPL (*1)
Securities measured at FVOCI (*1)
Loans measured at FVTPI, (*2)
Derivative financial assets (*2)

December 31, 2021
Profit(loss) for the year Other comprehensive income(loss)
Favorable Unfavorable Favorable Unfavorable
change change change change
W 8,690 (6,723) - -
- - 43,861 (31,587)
9,041 (8,029) - -
3,745 (3,728) - -
W 21,476 (18,480) 43,861 (31,587
December 31, 2020
Profit(loss) for the year Other comprehensive income(loss)
Favorable Unfavorable Favorable Unfavorable
change change change change
W 8,478 (7,355) - -
- - 45231 (75,780)
11,203 - (14,532) - -
4,364 (1,846) - -
W 24,045 (23,733) 45,231 (75,780)

=+ (*1) Sensitivity amounts of equity securities are calculated by increasing and decreasing the correlations between
the discount rates and the growth rates (0~1%) or the rate of increase in liquidation value (-1~1%) which are
significant unobservable inputs. Sensitivity amounts for beneficiary certificates are calculated by increasing
-and decreasing the correlations between the discount rate of rent cash flow (-1~1%) and the rate of increase in

" property disposal price (-1~1%), only when they consist of real properties. Other than that, it is difficult to
“measure the sensitivity amounts of beneficiary certificates for practical reasons. Also, for financial instruments
categorized within level 3 in 2021 and 2020, W17,718,595 million and W-20,500,366 million, respectively, are
excluded from the sensitivity disclosure because it is impossible to calculate the sensitivity due to changes in
unobservable variables for practical reasons. '
(*2) Sensitivity amounts of loans measured at FVTPL and derivatives financial instruments are calculated by
increasing and decreasing the correlation coefficient and volatility (-10~10%) which are significant

unobservable inputs.
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45. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

(2) Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at amortized cost
(i) The Bank’s policies for measuring fair value of financial instruments at amortized costs are as follows:

- Cash and due from banks: Fair value of cash is considered equivalent to the carrying amount. In the case of
due from banks on demand, which do not have a set maturity and can be realized instantly, the carrying
amount is a close estimate of the fair value and is assumed so. In the case of other ordinary due from banks,
the cash flow discount method is used to estimate the fair value.

- Securities measured at amortized cost: The fair value of securities measured at amortized cost is computed
by widely-accepted appraisal agencies upon request.

- Loans measured at amortized cost: The fair value of loans measured at amortized cost is the expected future
cash flows, reflecting premature redemption ratio, discounted by the market interest rate, adjusted by a spread
sheet considering the probability of default. Exceptions to this method include loans with credit line facilities,
loans with a maturity of three months or less left and impaired loans, which the Bank assumes the carrying
amount as the fair value. '

- Deposits: The fair value of deposits is computed using the discounted cash flow method. However, for
deposits, whose cash flows cannot be estimated reasonably, the Bank assumes the carrying amount as the fair
value.

- Borrowings: The fair value of industrial financial debentures is computed using the discounted cash flow

-method by the Bank’s Fair Value Evaluation System. However, for borrowings including call money whose
contractual maturity is three months or less, the Bank assumes the carrying amount as the fair value.

- Debentures: The fair value of industrial financial debentures is computed using the discounted cash flow
method by the Bank’s Fair Value Evaluation System.

- Other financial assets and liabilities: The fair value of other financial assets and liabilities is computed using
the discounted cash flow method. However, in cases cash flow cannot be estimated reasonably, the Bank
assumes the carrying amount as the fair value.

(ii) The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at amortized cost as of December 31, 2021 and
2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets: :
Cash and due from banks (*) W 4,178,897 7,796,870 - 11,975,767
Securities measured at amortized
cost 1,437,496 1,531,381 - 2,968,877
Loans measured at amortized cost
*) - 653,340 170,486,002 171,139,342
Other financial assets (*) - 5,097,270 738,178 5,835,448
W 5,616,393 15,078,861 171,224,180 191,919,434
Financial liabilities:
Deposits (*) W - 2,294,155 50,441,274 52,735,429
Borrowings (*) - 861,402 21,183,763 22,045,165
Debentures - 146,446,618 - 146,446,618
Other financial liabilities (*) - 3,920,770 2,886,692 6,807,462
W - 153,522,945 74,511,729 228,034,674
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45. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

December 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Cash and due from banks (*) W 4,904,584 5,624,394 - 10,528,978
Securities measured at amortized
cost 665,183 120,081 - 785,264
Loans measured at amortized cost
* - 465,485 155,354,001 155,819,486
Other financial assets (*) - 3,831,087 630,030 4,461,117
W 5,569,767 10,041,047 155,984,031 171,594,845
Financial liabilities:
Deposits (*) W - 2,249,420 43,624,163 45,873,583
Borrowings (*) - 1,008,635 17,865,518 18,874,153
Debentures - 140,088,033 - 140,088,033
Other financial liabilities (*) - 3,104,887 3,784,488 6,889,375
W - 146,450,975 65,274,169 211,725,144

(*) For financial instruments categorized as level 2, the carrying amount is considered as a reasonable approximation

of the fair value and is thus, disclosed by fair value.
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45. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

(iii) Details of valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within level 2 and
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at amortized cost as of December 31,
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Level 2
Financial assets:
Securities measured at
amortized cost
Financial liabilities:
Debentures
Level 3
Financial assets:

Loans measured at amortized

cost
Other financial assets
Financial liabilities:

Valuation technique

Input

Discounted cash flow method

Discounted cash flow method

Discounted cash flow method

Discounted cash flow method

Discount rate

Discount rate

Credit spread, Other spread,
Prepayment rate
Other spread

Deposits Discounted cash flow method Other spread, Prepayment rate
Borrowings Discounted cash flow method Other spread
Other financial liabilities Discounted cash flow method Other spread
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46. Categories of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Categories of financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021
Financial Financial Financial Financial Financial Hedging
instruments instruments  instruments  instruments  instruments purpose
Cash and cash  measured at  designated at measured at designated at measuredat  derivative
equivalents FVTPL FVTPL FVOCI FVOCI  amortized cost _instruments Total
Financial assets:
Cash and due from
banks W 4,178,897 - - : - - 7,796,870 - 11,975,767
Securities measured )
at FVTPL - 9,818,811 - - - - - 9,818,811
Securities measured
at FVOCI - - - 18,994,503 18,880,633 - - 37,875,136
Securities measured
at amortized cost - - - - - 2,968,877 - 2,968,877
Loans measured at :
FVTPL - 644,412 - - - - - 644,412
Loans measured at
amortized cost 887,238 - - - - 169,876,156 - 170,763,394
Derivative financial
assets - 4,776,872 - - - - 528,700 5,305,572
Other financial
assets - - - - - 5,836,048 - 5,836,048
W 5,066,135 15,240,095 - 18,994,503 18,880,633 186,477,951 528,700 245,188,017
Financial liabilities: ‘
Financial liabilities
measured at
FVTPL W - - 2,067,144 - - - - 2,067,144
Deposits - - - - - 52,792,121 - 52,792,121
Borrowings - - - - - 22,063,777 - 22,063,777
Debentures - - - - - 145,365,330 - 145,365,330
Derivative financial
liabilities - 4,501,378 - - - - 256,463 4,757,841
Other financial
liabilities - - - - - 6,817,630 - 6,817,630
W - 4,501,378 2,067,144 - - 227,038,858 256,463 233,863,843
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46. Categories of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

December 31, 2020
Financial Financial Financial Financial Financial Hedging
instruments  instruments  instruments  instruments  instruments purpose
Cashand cash measured at designatedat measuredat designated at measuredat  derivative
equivalents FVTPL FVTPL FVOCI FVOCI amortized cost _instruments Total
Financial assets:
Cash and due from
banks W 4,904,584 - - - - 5,624,394 - 10,528,978
Securities measured
at FVTPL - 8,320,631 - - - - - 8,320,631
Securities measured
at FVOCI - - - 19,276,210 14,865,115 - - 34,141,325
Securities measured
at amortized cost - - - - - 785,264 - 785,264
Loans measured at
FVTPL - 1,434,514 - - - - - 1,434,514
Loans measured at
amortized cost 824,610’ - - - - 154,475,568 - 155,300,178
Derivative financial
assets - 6,880,971 - - - - 1,448,405 8,329,376
Other financial
assets - - - - - 4,463,726 - 4,463,726
W 5,729,194 16,636,116 - 19,276,210 14,865,115 165,348,952 1,448,405 223,303,992
Financial liabilities: :
Financial liabilities
measured at
FVTPL W - - 1,694,957 - - - - 1,694,957
Deposits - - - - - 45,879,419 - 45,879,419
Borrowings - - - - - 18,887,611 - 18,887,611
Debentures - - - - - 138,318,728 - 138,318,728
Derivative financial
liabilities - 6,206,902 - - - - 98,385 6,305,287
Other financial
liabilities - - - - - 6,896,581 - 6,896,581
W - 6,206,902 1,694,957 - - 209,982,339 98,385 217,982,583
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47. Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Details of financial instruments subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting agreements or similar agreements

as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021

Gross amounts of

recognized Net amounts of Related amounts not set off in the
financial liabilities financial assets statement of financial position
Gross amounts of set off in the presented in the
recognized statement of statement of Financial Cash collateral
financial asset financial position financial position instruments received Net amounts

Derivative financial ’

assets (*) W 5,305,572 - 5,305,572 3,485,084 19,412 1,801,076
Unsettled spot

exchange

receivables (*) 3,302,464 - 3,302,464 3,300,991 ’ - 1,473
Unsettled domestic

exchange

receivables 3,502,263 1,707,457 1,794,806 - - 1,794,806
Security pledged as

collateral for

repurchase

agreements 3,349,080 - 3,349,080 1,307,268 - 2,041,812
Reverse repurchase

agreements 790,000 - 790,000 790,000 - -
Loaned securities 417,640 - 417,640 417,640 - -
Receivables from -

securities

transaction 12,553 - 12,553 12,553 - -

W 16,679,572 1,707,457 14,972,115 9,313,536 19,412 5,639,167
December 31, 2021
Gross amounts of
recognized Net amounts of Related amounts not set off in the
financial assets set financial liabilities statement of financial position
Gross amounts of off in the statement  presented in the
recognized of financial statement of Financial Cash collateral
financial liabilities position financial position instruments pledged Net amounts

Derivative

financial

liabilities (*) W 4,757,841 - 4,757,841 2,988,272 105,989 1,663,580
Unsettled spot .

exchange

payables (*) 3,303,324 . - 3,303,324 3,300,991 - 2,333
Unsettled domestic .

exchange

payables 2,324,903 1,707,457 617,446 - - 617,446
Repurchase

agreements 1,307,268 - 1,307,268 1,307,268 - -
Payables from

securities

transaction 10,036 - 10,036 10,036 - -

W 11,703,372 1,707,457 9,995,915 7,606,567 105,989 2,283,359
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47. Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

December 31, 2020

Gross amounts of

recognized Net amounts of Related amounts not set off in the
financial liabilities  financial assets statement of financial position
Gross amounts of set off in the presented in the
recognized statement of statement of Financial Cash collateral
financial asset financial position _financial position instruments received Net amounts

Derivative financial

assets (*) W 8,329,376 - 8,329,376 5,414,190 526,608 2,388,578
Unsettled spot

exchange

receivables (*) 2,517,129 - 2,517,129 2,516,540 - 589
Unsettled domestic

exchange

receivables 2,731,336 1,417,378 1,313,958 - - 1,313,958
Security pledged as

collateral for

repurchase

agreements 2,762,065 - 2,762,065 1,875,504 - 886,561
Reverse repurchase

agreements 1,440,000 - 1,440,000 1,440,000 - -
Loaned securities 289,806 - 289,806 289,806 - -
Receivables from

securities

transaction 18,519 - 18,519 18,519 - -

W 18,088,231 1,417,378 16,670,853 11,554,559 526,608 4,589,686
December 31, 2020
Gross amounts of
recognized Net amounts of Related amounts not set off in the
financial assets set financial liabilities statement of financial position
Gross amounts of off in the statement  presented in the
recognized of financial statement of Financial Cash collateral
financial liabilities position financial position instruments pledged Net amounts

Derivative

financial

liabilities (*) W 6,305,287 - 6,305,287 4,261,659 40,158 2,003,470
Unsettled spot

exchange

payables (*) 2,517,693 - 2,517,693 2,516,540 - 1,153
Unsettled domestic

exchange

payables 2,004,572 1,417,378 587,194 - - 587,194
Repurchase

agreements 1,875,504 - 1,875,504 1,875,504 - -
Payables from

securities

transaction 14,766 - 14,766 14,766 - -

W 12,717,822 1,417,378 11,300,444 8,668,469 40,158 2,591,817

(*) For the derivatives covered by the ISDA derivative contracts, all contracts are settled and the net amount of
derivative contracts is measured and paid based on the liquidation value if the counterparty files for bankruptcy

or has any credit issues.

109



PO

Korea Development Bank
Notes to the Separate Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020
(In millions of won)

48.

]

Operating Segments

(1) The Bank has four reportable segments, as described below, which are the Bank’s strategic business units. They
are managed separately because each business requires different technology and marketing strategies. The
following summary describes general information about each of the Bank’s reportable segments:

Segments

General information

Corporate finance
Investment finance
Asset management
Others

Provides trade finance and loans to corporate customers

Provides consulting services to corporate such as capital finance, restructuring, etc.
Provides asset management services to individual and corporate customers

Any other segment not mentioned above

(2) Operating income (loss) from external customers and among operating segments for the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Operating income (loss)
from external customers

Operating income (loss)
from intersegment sales

Operating income (loss)
from external customers

Operating income (loss)
from intersegment sales

2021
Corporate Investment Asset
finance finance management Others Total
W (65,255) 1,848,863 20,821 1,745,727 | 3,550,156
5,536 754,438 - (759,974) -
W (59,719 2,603,301 20,821 985,753 3,550,156
2020
Corporate Investment Asset
finance finance management Others Total
"4 (103,776) 1,276,401 20,683 - (298,796) 894,512
(91,113) (350,835) - 441,948 -
W (194,889) 925,566 20,683 143,152 894,512
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Operating Segments, Continued

(3) Details of segment results for the Bank’s reportable segments for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
are as follows: .

2021
Corporate Investment Asset :
finance finance * management Others Total
Net interest income W 1,181,060 (158,369) 2,328 633,590 1,658,609
Non-interest income -
Income related to
securities (*1) 63,729 17,194 - 26,604 107,527
Other non-interest
income 602,798 2,807,533 36,448 (23,092) 3,423,687
666,527 2,824,727 36,448 3,512 3,531,214
Provision for loan losses and |
others (*2) (924,878) 95,316 - 5,641 (823,921)
General and administrative
" expenses (982,428) (158,373) (17,955) 343,010 (815,746)
Operating income W (59,719) 2,603,301 20,821 985,753 3,550,156
2020
Corporate Investment Asset
finance finance management Others Total
Net interest income W 1,215,271 45,289 (825) 19,838 1,279,573
Non-interest income '
Income related to -
- securities (*1) (9,932) 116,096 - 28,705 134,869
Other non-interest :
income 352,061 439910 34,534 111,843 938,348
342,129 556,006 34,534 140,548 1,073,217
Provision for loan losses and
others (*2) (1,095,754) 431,878 - (5,065) (668,941)
General and administrative
expenses (656,535) (107,607) (13,026) - (12,169) (789,337)
Operating income W (194,889) 925,566 20,683 143,152 894,512

(*1) Income related to securities is composed of net gain (loss) on securities measured at FVTPL, securities
measured at FVOCI and securities measured at amortized cost.

(*2) Provision for loan losses and others comprises of provision for loan losses, provision for derivative credit risks,
gains (losses) on sales of loans, and increase (reversal) of provision.

(4) Geographical revenue information about the Bank’s operating segments for the years ended December 31, 2021
and 2020 and the geographical non-current asset information as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Revenues (*1) Non-current assets (*2)
December 31, December 31,

2021 2020 2021 2020
Domestic W 31,511,510 31,206,147 29,704,702 26,606,309
Overseas ' 776,644 739,560 108,076 28,116
W 32,288,154 31,945,707 29,812,778 26,634,425

(*1) Revenues consist of interest income, fees and commission income, dividend income, income related to
securities, gain on derivatives, foreign currency transaction gain, other operating income and provision for loan
losses. .

(*2) Non-current assets consist of investments in subsidiaries and associates, property and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets. '
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Risk Management

(1) Introduction

(i) Objectives and principles

The Bank’s risk management aims to maintain financial soundness and effectively manage various risks pertinent
to the nature of the Bank’s business. The Bank has set up and fulfilled policies to manage risks timely and
effectively. Pursuant to the policies, the Bank’s risks shall be

- managed comprehensively and independently,

- recognized timely, evaluated exactly and managed effectively,

- maintained to the extent that the risks balance with profit,

- diversified appropriately to avoid concentration on specific segments,

- managed to prevent excessive exposure by the setting up and managing of tolerance limits and guidelines.

(ii) Risk management strategy and process :
The Bank’s risk management business is separated into two different stages; the ‘metrification stage,” in which
risks are estimated and monitored, and the ‘integration stage,” in which information gained during the risk
management process is integrated and used in management strategies. Risk management is recognized as a key
component of the Bank’s management and seeks to change from its previously adaptive and limited role to more
leading and comprehensive role. :

Furthermore, the Bank focuses on consistent communication among different departments to establish a progressive
consensus on risk management.

(iii) Risk management governance

Risk Management Committee

The Bank’s Risk Management Committee (the “Committee™) is composed of the President of the committee (an
outside director), and three other commissioners. The Committee functions to establish policies of risk
management, evaluate the capital adequacy of the Bank, discuss material issues relating to risk management, and
present preliminary decisions on such matters.

The CEO of the Bank and the head of Risk Management Segment

The CEO of the Bank, according to the policies of risk management, performs his or her role to manage and direct
risk management to sustain efficiency and internal control. The head of the Risk Management Segment is
responsible for supervising the overall administration of the Bank’s risk management business and providing risk-
related information to members of the board of directors and the Bank’s management.

Risk Management Policy Committee

The Bank’s Risk Management Policy Committee is composed of the leaders of all business segments. and exercises
its role to decide important matters relating to the Bank’s portfolio including allocating internal capital limits by
segment and setting exposure limits by industry within the scope that Risk Management Committee regulated.

t
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(iv) Performance of risk management committee

The Risk Management Committee performs comprehensive reviews of all the affairs related to risk management
and deliberates the decisions of the board of directors. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the key activities of
the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

- Major decision
* Risk management plan for 2021
- Setting and managing exposure limits by country for 2021
* Contingency funding plan for 2021
- Changing the management standard of BIS ratio for 2021
- Changing the management standard of internal capital related with HMM

- Major reporting

+ Result of integrated crisis analysis for the second half of 2020

+ Result of assessment of suitability for internal capital for 2020
+ Resolution of Credit Committee for the fourth quarter of 2020
- Result of ex-post validation of credit rating system and default rates, and verification of risk measurement

factors for internal purposes

+ Setting management limit of credit portfolios of 2021

+ Allocation of internal capital limits of 2021

+ Resolution of Credit Committee for the first quarter of 2021
* Result of operation of corporate credit rating system in 2021
+ Result of integrated crisis analysis for the first half of 2021

Resolution of Credit Committee for the second quarter of 2021

* Verification of risk-weighted assets for BIS ratio as of December 31, 2020
+ Result of assessment of suitability for internal capital for 2021

* Result of BCP training for 2021

+ Resolution of Credit Committee for the third quarter of 2021

(v) Improvement of risk management system )
For the continuous improvement of risk management, financial soundness and capital adequacy, the Bank performs
the following:

- Continuous improvement of Basel
- Improvements in the internal capital adequacy assessment system, in line with the guidelines set by the

Financial Supervisory Service (FSS) in 2008, to manage capital adequacy more effectively

- Improvements in the credit assessment system on Low Default Portfolio (LDP)

+ Elaboration of risk measuring criteria including credit risk parameters and measurement logics -

- Development of the application system for timely calculation of LCR and NSFR

» Rebuilding the Corporate Credit Rating System (approved by Financial Supervisory Services on October 26,

2017)

+ Establishment of the system to calculate Basel Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book coming to domestic in

September 2018

- Establishment of the system to comply with the amended regulation relating to risk-weighted assets under

Basel I in December 2020

- Expansion of risk management infrastructure
- Establishment of the RAPM system to reflect risks to the Bank’s business and support decision-making upon

management, and application of performance assessment at the branch level since 2010

» Enforcement of risk management related to irregular compound derivatives and validation of the derivative

pricing model developed by the Bank’s Front Office

« Establishment of IFRS 9 accounting system to calculate a loan loss allowances under IFRS 9 in March 2017

and, since then, run of IFRS 9 accounting system in January 2018
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(vi) Risk management reporting and measuring system

The Bank endeavours consistently to objectively and rationally measure and manage all significant risks
considering the characteristics of operational areas, assets and risks. In relation to reporting and measurement, the
Bank has developed application systems as follows:

Application system Approach Completion date Major function
Corporate Credit Rating Logit Model Oct. 2017 Rebuilding the Corporate Credit Rating
System : System
Market Risk Management Risk Watch Jun. 2002 Summarize position, manage exposure
System Feb. 2019 limits and calculate Market VaR
RS Model Sep. 2012 Calculate regulatory capital by
Standardized Approach
Murex M/O Apr. 2013 Supplement of RiskWatch to calculate
VaR
Interest/Liquidity Risk In-house May. 2019 Calculation of interest risk, liquidity
Management System risk, etc.
Operational Risk Standardized Approach May. 2006 Manage process and calculate CSA, KRI
Management System and OP VaR, etc.
AMA May. 2009 Measure by Advanced Measurement
- Approach
BIS Capital Ratio Fermat Sep. 2006 Calculate equity, credit risk-weighted
Calculation/Credit Risk RaY (*) Dec. 2013 assets and credit risk, etc.
Measurement System
Loan Loss Allowance IFRS Jan. 2011 Incurred loss model
Calculation System IFRS 9 Mar. 2017 Expected loss model

(*) To comply with the amended regulation relating to risk-weighted assets under Basel III, the upgrade of relevant
systems was completed in March 2021.

(vii) Response to Basel
The Korean financial authorities have implemented Basel II since January 2008, and the Standardized Approach
and the Foundation Internal Ratings-Based Approach for calculating credit risk are applicable.

In conformity with the implementation roadmap of Basel II, the Bank obtained the approval to use the Foundation
Internal Ratings-Based Approach on credit risk from the FSS in July 2008 and has applied the approach since late
June 2008. The Bank applies the Standardized Approach on market risks and operational risks.

The Bank completed the Basel ITI standard risk management system in preparation of the adoption of the Basel I1I
regulations announced on December 1, 2013. Starting from 2013 year-end, the BIS capital adequacy ratio has been
measured in accordance to the Basel III regulations.

Responding to the requirements of the financial authorities, the Bank recognizes interest rate risk, liquidity risk,
credit bias risk and reputation risk besides Pillar I risks (credit risk, market risk and operational risk). The Bank
has actively responded to the Pillar 2 regulation, including additional capital requirements based on comprehensive
assessment of risk management levels since 2015. In addition, from the end of 2015, the Bank has applied the
uniform standards for the public announcement of financial business for Basel compliance.

The Bank completed revised standards such as capital requirements for banks’ investments in funds in 2017, capital
requirements for securitization in 2018, and the Standardised Approach for measuring counterparty credit risk (SA-
CCR) in 2019.

To comply with the amended regulation relating to risk-weighted assets under Basel I, the Bank completed the

consultation and the development of the relevant systems and the amended regulation has been applied since the
calculation of the BIS ratio at the end of 2020.
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(viii) Internal capital adequacy assessment process

Internal capital adequacy assessment process is defined as the process that the Bank aggregates significant risks,
calculates its internal capital, compares the internal capital with the available capital and assesses its internal capital
adequacy. The internal capital adequacy report including the assessment results at the end of the year is prepared
and reported to the Risk Management Policy Committee.

- Internal capital adequacy assessment
For the internal capital adequacy assessment, the Bank calculates its aggregated internal capital by evaluating all
significant risks and available capital considering the quality and components of capital, and then assesses the
internal capital adequacy by comparing the aggregated internal capital with the available capital.

In addition, the Bank conducts periodic stress tests more than once every six months to assess potential weakness
in crisis situations and uses its results to assess the internal capital adequacy. The Bank assumes the
macroeconomic situation as three stages of ‘normal- pessimistic-serious’ and is preparing countermeasures such
as checking the adequacy of capital by each stage.

- Goal setting of internal capital management
The Bank sets up and manages an internal capital limit on an annual basis, through the approval of the Risk
Management Committee, to maintain internal capital adequacy by managing internal capital (integrated risks)
within the extent of available capital.

The prior year’s internal capital, analysis of domestic and foreign environment changes in the current year, and
the direction and size of operations are all reflected in the goal setting of internal capital management to calculate
the integrated internal capital scale. Moreover, Bank for International Settlements(BIS) capital adequacy ratio and
risk appetite are taken into consideration in the goal setting of internal capital management.

- Allocation of internal capital
The Bank’s Risk Management Committee approves entire internal capital and the Risk Management Policy
Committee allocates the capital to each segment and department, considering the extent of possible risk faced and
size of operations. The allocated internal capital is monitored regularly and managed using various management
methods. The results of monitoring and managing the allocated internal capital are reported to the Risk
Management Committee. In case of any material changes in the Bank’s business plan or risk operation strategy,
the Bank adjusts the allocations elastically.

- Composition of internal capital
Internal capital comprises all the significant risks of the Bank and is composed of quantifiable and non-quantifiable
risks. Quantifiable risks are composed of credit risk, market risk, interest rate risk, operational risk and credit
concentration risk, foreign currency settlement risk, and are risks measured quantitatively by applying reasonable
methodology using objective data. Non-quantifiable risks are composed of strategy risk, reputation risk, residual
risk on asset securitization and furthermore. Non-quantifiable risks are those risks that cannot be measured
quantitatively because of lack of data or the absence of appropriate measuring methodologies.

(2) Credit Risk
(i) Concept
Credit risk can be defined as potential loss resulting from the refusal to perform obligations or default of

counterparties. More generally, it is used to refer to the possibility of loss from engaged bonds that cannot be
redeemed properly or from substitute payments.
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(ii) Approach to credit risk management

Summary of credit risk management

The Bank regards credit risk as the most significant risk area in its business operations, and accordingly, closely
monitors its credit risk exposure. The Bank manages both credit risks at portfolio level and at individual credit
level. At portfolio level, the Bank reduces credit concentration and restructures the portfolio in such a way to

- maximize profitability considering the risk level. To avoid credit concentration on a particular sector, the Bank

manages credit limits by client, group, and industry. The Bank also resets exposure management directives for each
industry by conducting an industry credit evaluation twice a year.

At the individual credit level, the relationship manager (RM), the credit officer (CO) and the Credit Review
Committee manage each borrower’s credit risk.

Post management and insolvent borrower management

The Bank monitors the borrower’s credit rating from the date of the loan to the date of the final collection of debt
consistently and inspects the borrower’s status frequently to prevent the generation of new bad debts and to stabilize
the number of debt recoveries.

In addition, an early warning system is operated to spot borrowers that are highly likely to be insolvent. The early
warning system provides financial information, financial transaction information, public information and market
information of the borrower, and such information is used by the RM and the CO to monitor and manage changes
in the borrower’s credit rating.

A borrower that is likely to be insolvent is classified as an early warning borrower, depending on the level of
insolvency risk. The Bank sets up a specific and applicable stabilization plan for such a borrower considering the
borrower’s characteristics. Furthermore, sub-standard borrowers are classified as insolvent borrowers, and are
managed intensively by the Bank, which takes legal proceedings, disposals or corporate turnaround measures if
necessary.

Classification of asset soundness and provision of allowance for loss

Classification of asset soundness is fulfilled by the analysis and assessment of credit risk. The classification is used
to provide an appropriate allowance, prevent further occurrences of insolvent assets and promote the normalization
of existing insolvent assets to enhance the stabilization of asset operations.

Based on the Financial Supervisory Regulations of the Republic of Korea, the Bank has established standards and
guidelines on the classification of asset soundness, according to the Forward-Looking Criteria, which reflects not
only the borrower’s past records of repayment but also their future debt repayment capability.

In conformity with these standards, the Bank classifies the soundness of its assets as “normal”, “precautionary”,
“substandard”, “doubtful”, or “estimated loss” and differentiates the coverage ratio by the level of classification.

Details of loans by credit rating as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

< Corporate >
December 31, 2021
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Carrying amounts credit loss impaired impaired
AAA ~BBBI1 W 138,451,664 123,087,995 15,363,669 -
BBB2 ~ CCC 34,125,651 11,317,394 21,134,914 1,673,343
Below CC 2,133,285 - 12,670 2,120,615
W 174,710,600 134,405,389 36,511,253 3,793,958
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December 31, 2020
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Carrying amounts credit loss impaired impaired
AAA ~BBBl1 4 119,275,121 116,563,480 2,711,641 -
BBB2 ~ CCC 36,638,249 22,365,102 14,262,908 10,239
Below CC 2,932,191 - 85,070 2,847,121
W 158,845,561 138,928,582 17,059,619 2,857,360
< Retail >
December 31, 2021
Lifetime' expected credit losses
12-month expected Non credit- Credit-
Carrying amounts credit loss impaired impaired
Grade 1~ Grade 6 W 203,299 192,455 10,838 6
Grade 7~ Grade 8 2,709 - 2,701 8
Grade 9~ Grade 10 572 - - 572
W 206,580 192,455 13,539 586
December 31, 2020
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month expected Non credit- Credit-
Carrying amounts credit loss impaired impaired
Grade 1~ Grade 6 W 234,096 223,180 10,623 293
Grade 7~ Grade 8 3,561 - 3,444 117
Grade 9~ Grade 10 354 - - 354
4 238,011 223,180 14,067 764

Details of payment guarantees (including financial guarantees) and unused commitments by credit rating as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

< Corporate >

December 31, 2021
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Exposures credit loss impaired impaired
Unused commitments:
AAA ~BBBI W 37,276,730 34,822,879 2,453,851 -
BBB2 ~ CCC 9,237,945 5,814,835 3,369,595 53,515
Below CC - - - -
W 46,514,675 40,637,714 5,823,446 53,515
Payment guarantees
(including financial
guarantees):
AAA ~BBBI W 6,396,425 5,700,522 695,903 -
BBB2 ~ CCC 6,890,993 3,303,869 3,064,270 522,854
Below CC 665,845 - - 665,845
W 13,953,263 9,004,391 3,760,173 1,188,699
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Unused commitments:
AAA ~BBB1 ' W
BBB2 ~ CCC |
Below CC

Payment guarantees
(including financial
guarantees):
AAA ~BBB1 W
BBB2 ~CCC
Below CC

< Retail >

- Unused commitments:

Grade 1~ Grade 6 h1.74
Grade 7~ Grade 8
Grade 9~ Grade 10

Unused commitments:
Grade 1~ Grade 6 W
Grade 7~ Grade 8 ]
Grade 9~ Grade 10

December 31, 2020
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Exposures credit loss impaired impaired
32,811,121 32,391,593 419,528 -
9,970,279 6,922,824 3,047,455
97 - 97 -
42,781,497 39,314,417 3,467,080 -
4,743,686 4,412,348 331,338 -
4,665,561 2,814,897 1,846,293 4,371
689,858 - 1,351 688,507
10,099,105 7,227,245 2,178,982 692,878
December 31, 2021
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Exposures credit loss impaired impaired
76,448 75,950 498 -
9 - 9 -
76,457 75,950 507 -
December 31, 2020
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Exposures credit loss impaired impaired
60,583 59,203 1,380 -
59 - 59 -
60,642 59,203 1,439 -
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(iii) Measurement methodology of credit risk o
Pursuant to Basel III, the Bank selects the measurement methodology of credit risk considering the complexity of

measurement, measurement factors, estimating methods and others. Measurement approaches are divided into
Standardized Approach and Internal Ratings-Based Approach.

Standardized Approach (“SA”)
In the case of the Standardized Approach, the risk weights are applied according to the credit rating assessed by

External Credit Assessment Institution (“ECAI”). Risk weights in each credit rating are as follows:

Credit rating Corporate : Country Bank

AAA ~ AA- 20.0% 0.0% : 20.0%

A+~ A- 50.0% 20.0% 30.0%

BBB+ ~ BBB- 75.0% : 50.0% ' 50.0%
BB+ ~BB- 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
B+ ~B- 150.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Below B- 150.0% 150.0% 150.0%

Unrated - 100.0% (*) 100.0% Rating based on due
diligence

(*) In case of small and medium-sized business, 85.0% is applied.

The OECD is designated as foreign ECAI and Korea Investrors Service Co., Ltd., NICE Investors Services Co.,
Ltd. and the Korea Ratings Co., Ltd. are designated as domestic ECAIL

The Bank applies the credit rating based on the corresponding loan and same borrower’s unsecured senior loans.
In the case the borrower’s risk weight is higher than the unrated exposure’s risk weight (100%), the higher weight
is applied. In the case the borrower has more than one rating, the higher weight of the two lowest weights (Second

Best Criteria) is applied.
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Internal Ratings-Based Approach (IRB) .
To use the Internal Ratings-Based Approach, a bank must be approved by the FSS and should also meet the
requirement pre-set by the FSS.

In relation to Basel II that has been adopted domestically as of January 2008, the Bank gained approval from the
FSS to use the Foundation Internal Ratings-Based Approach in July 2008. The Bank has calculated credit risk-
welghted assets using the approach since late June 2008. .

. Measurement method of credit risk-weighted asset

The Bank calculates credit risk-weighted assets of corporate exposures and asset securitization exposures using the
Foundation Internal Ratings-Based Approach as of December 31, 2021.

The Standardized Approach is applied to country .exposures, public institution exposures and bank exposures
permanently and applied to overseas subsidiary and the Bank’s branch pursuant to prior consultation with the FSS.

<Approved measurement method>

Measurement method Exposure
Standardized Approach Permanent SA - Countries, public institutions, banks, equity
SA - Overseas subsidiaries and branches, and other assets,
retail, residential mortgage, commercial properties
Foundation Internal Ratings-Based Approach - Corporate, small and medium enterprises, asset
] securitization (at each credit level)
Application of IRB by phase - Special lending, non-residence and others

The mitigated effect of credit risks reflects the related policies which consider eligible collateral and guarantees.
The Bank calculates the credit risk-weighted assets using the capital adequacy ratio.

Upon the calculation of credit risk-weighted assets for derivatives, the Bank takes into consideration the set-off
effects of transactions under legally enforceable rights to set-off to calculate exposures.
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Credit rating model

The results of credit rating are presented as grades through an assessment of the debt repayment capacity that the
principal and interest of debt securities or loans are redeemed while complying with contractual redemption
schedule.

Using the Bank’s internal credit rating model, the Bank classifies debtors’ credit rating into 14 grades (AAA~D).
To distinguish the difference between credits in the same grade, the Bank uses 20 stages as auxiliaries to 14 grades.

The Bank’s regular credit rating process is carried out once a year and in the case of the change of debtor’s credit
condition, the credit rating is frequently adjusted as necessary to retain the adequacy of credit rating.

The results of credit rating are applied to various areas such as discrimination of loan processes, loan limit, loan
interest rate, post loan management standard process, credit risk measurement, and allowance for loan losses
assessment.

Credit rating process control structure
According to the Principle of Checks and Balances, the Bank has established the credit rating process control
structure by which the credit rating system operates appropriately.

- Independent assessment of credit rating: The Bank’s business segment (RM) and credit rating assessment
segment (SRO) are independently operated.

- Independent control of credit rating system: The control of credit rating system including the development of
credit rating model is independently implemented by the Bank’s Risk Management Department.

- Independent verification of credit rating system: Credit rating system is independently verified by Risk
Validation Team of the Financial Planning Department.

- Internal audit of credit rating process: Credit rating process is audited by the Bank’s internal audit department.

- Role of the Board of Directors and the Bank’s management: Major issues relating to credit process are approved
by the Board of Directors and are regularly monitored by the Bank’s top management.

The Bank reviews debt serviceability based on a credit analysis when handling loans. Depending on the results,
credit loan preservation is adjusted as necessary using such methods as interest rate preservation due to credit risk.

The Bank evaluates the value of the collateral, performing ability and legal validity of the guarantee at the initial
acquisition. The Bank re-evaluates the provided collateral and guarantees regularly for them to be reasonably
preserved.

For guarantees, the Bank demands a corresponding written guarantee according to loan handling standards and the
guarantor’s credit rating is independently calculated when in conformance with the credit rating endowment
method.

The quantification of the extent to which collateral and other credit enhancements mitigate credit risk of impaired
financial assets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Securities measured at FVOCI W 71,668 70,397
Loans measured at amortized cost 3,849,967 3,009,118
Other assets 26,488 21,817

121



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(In millions of won)

49. Risk Management, Continued
(iv) Credit exposilre

Geographical information of credit exposure as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

'

December 31, 2021
Korea Hong Kong . Ireland Uzbekistan Brazil Hungary UK USA Ohers Total
Due from banks :
(excluding due
trom BOK) W 749,525 1,402,014 - - 59,275 353,577 82,528 2,898,169 640,657 6,185,745
Securities : .
measured at
FVOCI:
Bonds
(excluding
government ' E
bonds) 8,109,726 302,189 21,711 - - - 266,248 3,862,898 2,297,025 14,859,797
Loans 135,447,184 1,301,443 . 941,965 536,160 312,567 433,149 999,688 2,322,372 28,337,321 170,631,849
Derivative
financial assets 174,859 - 45,847 - - - - 3,922 80,543 223,656 528,827
Other assets 5,803,336 - - - - - - ) - 121422 5,924,758
150,284,630 3,051,493 963,676 536,160 371,842 786,726 1,352,386 9,163,982 31,620,081 198,130,976
Guarantees
(including
financial
guarantees) 13,270,467 - - - - 45,169 - 347,919 289,708 13,953,263
Commitments 39,836,375 85,880 148,185 - - - 11,902 774,783 979,541 4,754,466 46,591,132
53,106,842 85,880 148,185 - - 57,071 774,783 1,327,460 5,044,174 60,544,395
- o W 203,391,472 3,137,373 1,111,861 536,160 371,842 843,797 2,127,169 10,491,442 36,664,255 258,675,371
2 3
~ December 31, 2020
. Korea Hong Kong Ireland Uzbekistan Brazil Hungary UK USA Ohers Total
. Due from banks
5 (cxcluding due
2‘3 from BOK) W 814,103 833,132 - - 48,960 264,699 58,700 3,873,912 401,686 6,295,192
: Securities
. measured at
I3 FVOCIL:
= Bonds
N (excluding
government
bonds) 7,237,276 106,101 11,628 - - - 175,196 3,387,631 1,371,072 12,288,904
Loans 126,428,406 1,200,448 881,481 575,432 170,901 184,802 683,497 1,745,004 23,409,292 155,279,263
Derivative
financial assets 643,935 131,153 - - - - 7,240 85,603 580,975 1,448,906
Other assets 4,450,309 - - - - - - - 99,276 4,549,585
139,574,029 2,270,834 893,109 575,432 219,861 449,501 . 924,633 9,092,150 25,862,301 179,861,850
Guarantees
(including
financial
guarantees) 9,257,520 - - - - 510,710 330,875 10,099,105

Commitments 36,741,563 - 30,740 - - - 550,767 177213 5,341,856 _ 42,842,139
45,999,083 - 30,740 N - - 550,767 687923 _ 5,672,731 _ 52,941,244
W__185573,112 2,270,834 923,849 575,432 219,861 449,501 _ 1475400 _ 9,780,073 _ 31,535,032 232,803,094

122



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(In millions of won)

49. Risk Management, Continued

Industry information of credit exposure as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021
Manufacturing Service Others Total
Due from banks (excluding
due from BOK) W - 5,529,904 655,841 6,185,745
Securities measured at
FVOCI:
Bonds (excluding :
government bonds) 2,597,917 9,614,360 2,647,520 14,859,797
Loans 73,076,518 82,852,716 14,702,615 170,631,849
Derivative financial assets - 528,827 - 528,827
Other assets 121,251 227,172 5,576,335 5,924,758
75,795,686 98,752,979 23,582,311 198,130,976
Guarantees (including
financial guarantees) 10,588,505 3,012,831 351,927 13,953,263
Commitments 21,238,777 22,162,715 3,189,640 46,591,132
31,827,282 25,175,546 3,541,567 60,544,395
W 107,622,968 123,928,525 27,123,878 258,675,371
December 31, 2020
Manufacturing Service Others Total
Due from banks (excluding
due from BOK) W - 5,903,300 391,892 6,295,192
Securities measured at
FVOCL:
Bonds (excluding
government bonds) 2,508,927 7,297,813 2,482,164 12,288,904
Loans 69,396,487 74,482,961 11,399,815 155,279,263
Derivative financial assets - 1,448,906 - 1,448,906
Other assets 113,595 170,217 4,265,773 4,549,585
72,019,009 89,303,197 18,539,644 179,861,850
Guarantees (including
financial guarantees) 7,621,524 2,195,768 281,813 ° 10,099,105
Commitments 18,463,610 21,238,733 3,139,796 42,842,139
26,085,134 23,434,501 3,421,609 52,941,244
W 98,104,143 112,737,698 21,961,253 232,803,094
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49.

Risk Management, Continued

The detail of credit exposures by industry affected by the pandemic of COVID-19 as of December 31, 2021 and
2020 are as follows and the exposures by industries could be changed according to economic fluctuations.

December 31, 2021
Securities
measured at
FVOCI
Due from Bonds Guarantees
banks (excluding Derivative (including
(excluding due government financial financial Commit-
from BOK) bonds) Loans assets Other assets Subtotal guarantees) ments Subtotal Total
Manufacturing:
Display W - - 730,259 - 2,917 733,176 1,641 267,574 269,215 1,002,391
Semiconductor
/Mobile phone - 204,679 5,059,874 - 7,958 5,272,511 115,211 365,071 480,282 5,752,793
Automotive - 231,343 10,721,833 - 15286 10,968,462 435,597 1,685,997 2,121,594 13,090,056
Refinery/Chemical
/Energy - 620,186 13,875,360 - 27,904 14,523,450 150,371 5,520,913 5,671,284 20,194,734
Steel/Metal - 146,239 9,985,811 - 13,814 10,145,864 617,066 2,343,478 2,960,544 13,106,408
Others - 1,395,470 32,703,381 - 53372 34,152223 9,268,619 11,055,744 20324363 _ 54,476,586
- 2,597,917 73,076,518 - 121,251 75,795,686 10,588,505 21238777 31,827,282 107,622,968
Service:
Air transportation - 5,844 3,200,683 - 9,284 3,215,811 291,880 21,000 312,880 3,528,691
Sea transportation - - 2,083,099 - 21,353 2,104,452 74,721 751,613 826,334 2,930,786
Other
transportation - 140,164 6,261,103 - 12,895 6,414,162 9,110 3,576,532 3,585,642 9,999,804
Leisure/Travel
industry - - 59,072 - 66 59,138 - 1,700 1,700 60,838
Food/Accommoda
-tion - 72,427 1,990,730 - 3,651 2,066,808 36,674 318,921 355,595 2,422,403
Automotive- '
related - - 513,522 - 876 514,398 12,322 84,891 97,213 611,611
Finance/Insurance
and others 5,529,904 9,395,925 68,744,507 528,827 179,047 84378210 2,588,124 17,408,058 19,996,182 104,374,392
5,529,904 9,614,360 82,852,716 528,827 227,172 98,752,979 3,012,831 22,162,715 25,175,546 123,928,525
Other:
Construction - 236,235 2,640,398 - 3,628 2,880,261 195,956 1,640,764 1,836,720 4,716,981
Others 655,841 2411285 12,062,217 - 5,572,707 _ 20,702,050 155971 1,548,876 1704847 _ 22,406,897
655,841 2,647,520 14,702,615 - 5576335 23,582,311 351,927 _ 3,189,640 _ 3,541,567 27,123,878
W 6,185,745 14,859,797 170,631,849 528,827 _ 5924,758 198,130976 13953263 46,591,132 _ 60,544,395 258,675,371

Responding to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank recalculates the forward-looking information and recognises
additional allowance for loan losses and provisions amounting to W924,176 million for the year ended December

31, 2021.
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49. Risk Management, Continued

December 31, 2020
Securities
measured at
FVOCI .
Due from Bonds Guarantees
banks (excluding Derivative (including
(excluding due government financial financial Commit-
from BOK) bonds) Loans assets Other assets Subtotal guarantees) ments Subtotal Total
Manufacturing:
Display w - - 739,944 - 3,016 742,960 168,168 240,421 408,589 1,151,549
Semiconductor
/Mobile phone - 146,790 4,403,204 - 8,850 4,558,844 104,489 432,332 536,821 5,095,665
Automotive - 176,401 10,535,236 - 13,720 10,725,357 314,583 1,500,394 1,814,977 12,540,334
Refinery/Chemical
[Energy - 572,692 10,993,035 - 19,996 11,585,723 158,665 4873382 5,032,047 16,617,770
Steel/Metal - 165,476 10,240,907 - 14,610 10,420,993 684,582 2,195,283 2,879,865 13,300,858
Others - 1,447,568 32,484,161 - 53403 33,985,132 _ 6,191,037 9221798 _ 15,412,835 _ 49,397,967
- T 2508927 69,396,487 - 113,595 _ 72,019,009 _ 7,621,524 __ 18,463,610 _ 26,085,134 _ 98,104,143
Service:
Air transportation - 3,156 3,413,670 - 7,963 3,424,789 287,309 28,000 315,309 3,740,098
Sea transportation - - 2,296,434 - 16,658 2,313,092 28,297 421,189 449,486 2,762,578
Other
transportation - 90,643 5,499,923 - 9,172 5,599,738 32,136 4,461,668 4,493,804 10,093,542
Leisure/Travel
industry - - 136,698 - 385 137,083 - 3,315 3,315 140,398
Food/Accommoda :
-tion - 104,057 2,092,630 - 3916 2,200,603 48226 354,676 402,902 2,603,505
Automotive-
related - - 434,075 - 647 434,722 18,174 45,945 64,119 498,841
Finance/Insurance
and others 5903300 7,099,957 _ 60,609,531 _ 1,448,906 131476 75,193,170 _ 1,781,626 _ 15923,940 _ 17,705,566 _ 92,898,736
5903300 7,297,813 74,482,961 _ 1,448,906 170217 _ 89,303,197 __ 2,195,768 _ 21,238,733 _ 23,434,501 _112,737,698
Other:
Construction - 210,744 2,448,144 - 3,726 2,662,614 160,829 1,137,048 1,297,877 3,960,491
Others 391,892 2,271,420 8,951,671 - 4262047 15,877,030 120,984 2,002,748 2,123,732 18,000,762

391,892 _ 2482,164 _ 11,399,815 - 4,265,713 _ 18,539,644 281,813 3,139,796 __ 3.421,609 _ 21,961,253
W 6295192 12,288,904 155279,263 1,448,906 _ 4,549,585 179,861,850 _ 10,099,105 _ 42,842,139 _ 52,941,244 232,803,094

Responding to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank recalculates the forward-looking information and recognises
additional allowance for loan losses and provisions amounting to W948,225 million for the year ended December
31, 2020.
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49. Risk Management, Continued

Credit exposures of debt securities by credit rating as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Carrying amounts credit loss impaired impaired
AAA ~BBBI1 W 21,929,738 21,600,109 329,629 -
BBB2 ~CCC 33,800 33,800 - -
Below CC - - - -
W 21,963,538 21,633,909 329,629 -
December 31, 2020
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Carrying amounts credit loss impaired impaired
AAA ~BBB1 W 20,015,223 19,837,158 178,065 -
BBB2 ~ CCC 46,251 36,205 10,046 -
Below CC - - - -
W 20,061,474 19,873,363 188,111 -

(3) Capital management activities

(i) Capital adequacy

The FSS approved the Bank’s use of the Foundation Internal Ratings-Based Approach in July 2008. The Bank has

been using the same approach when calculating credit risk-weighted assets since the end of June 2008. The equity
1, capital ratio and equity capital according to the standards of the Bank for International Settlements are calculated
for such disclosure. The equity capital ratio and equity capital are calculated on a consolidated basis. In conformity
. with the Banking Act, which is based on the implementation of Basel Il on December 1, 2013, the regulatory
y capital is divided into the following two categories.

Tier I capital

- Common Equity Tier 1 .

Regulatory capital that represents the most subordinated claim in liquidation of the Bank, takes the first and
proportionately greatest share of any losses as they occur, and which principal is never repaid outside of liquidation
meets the criteria for classification as common equity, including capital stock, capital surplus, retained earnings
and accumulated other comprehensive income as common equity Tier 1.

- Additional Tier 1 capital

Capital stock and capital surplus related to issuance of capital securities that are subordinated, have non-cumulative
and conditional dividends or interests, and have no maturity or step-up conditions.
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49, Risk Management, Continued

Tier 2 capital (Supplementary Tier 2 capital)

Regulatory capital that fulfills supplementary capital adequacy requirements, and includes subordinated debt with
maturities over 5 years and allowance for loan losses in conformity with external regulatory standards and internal

standards.

The BIS capital adequacy ratio and capital in accordance to Basel III standards as of December 31, 2021 and 2020

are as follows:

BIS capital adequacy ratio

Equity capital based on BIS (A):
Tier 1 capital:
Common Equity Tier 1
Additional Tier 1 capital

Tier 2 capital

Risk-weighted assets (B):
Credit risk-weighted assets
Market risk-weighted assets
Operational risk-weighted assets

BIS capital adequacy ratio (A/B):
Tier 1 capital ratio:
Common Equity Tier 1 ratio
Additional Tier 1 capital ratio
Tier 2 capital ratio

Equity capital based on BIS

Tier 1 capital (A):
Common Equity Tier 1
Capital stock
Capital surplus, etc.
Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Common stock deductibles

Tier 2 capital (B):
Allowance for doubtful accounts, etc.
Qualified capital securities
Non-qualified capital securities
Additional stock deductibles

Equity capital (A+B)

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
41,131,484 36,021,786
41,131,484 36,021,786

3,454,548 4,312,476
44,586,032 40,334,262
291,238,386 246,279,611
1,692,127 1,490,013
6,750,345 4,880,008
299,680,858 252,649,632
14.88% 15.96%
13.73% 14.26%
13.73% 14.26%
1.15% 1.71%

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

21,886,559 20,765,729

738,802 1,036,196
14,226,652 12,326,526
5,289,110 2,324,417
(1,009,639) (431,082)
41,131,484 36,021,786
924,935 1,057,559
2,312,000 2,780,000
258,060 516,119
(40,447) (41,202)
3,454,548 4,312,476
44,586,032 40,334,262
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49, Risk Management, Continued

(4) Market risk

(i) Concept

Market risk is defined as the possibility of potential loss resulting from fluctuations in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates and the price of stocks and commodities. Trading position is exposed to risks, such as interest rate,
stock price, and foreign exchange rate, etc. Non-trading position is mostly exposed to interest rates. Accordingly,
the Bank classifies market risks into those exposed from trading position or those exposed from non-trading
position.

(ii) Market risks of trading positions

Management method on market risks arising from trading positions

In estimating market risk, the Standardized Approach and the internal model are used. The Standardized Approach
is used to calculate the required capital from market risk and the internal model is used to manage risks internally.
Since July 2007, the Bank has measured one-day VaR through the historical simulation method using the time series
data of past 250 days under a 99% confidence level. The calculated VaR is monitored daily.

The Bank sets total limit of market risk based on annual business plan, risk appetite and others and monitors VaR
limit of each department on a daily basis.

Capital Requirements for Market risk
The Bank’s Capital Requirements for Market risk as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
- Interest rate risk 87,830 45,739
Equity risk A 3 -
Foreign exchange (FX) risk 21,964 © 32,118
. Option risk . 20,262 30,055

Total 130,059 107,912

(iii) Market risks of non-trading positions

Management method on market risks arising from non-trading positions

The most critical market risk that arises in non-trading position is the interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is defined
as the likely loss resulting from the unfavorable fluctuation of interest rate in the Bank’s financial condition and is
measured by IRRBB (Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book), AEVE (change in Economic Value of Equity) and
ANII (change in Net Interest Income).

AEVE represents fluctuations in the economic value of equity capital that may occur due to changes in interest
rates affecting the present values of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items. ANII represents changes in net

interest income that may occur over a certain period of time (e.g. one year) in the future due to changes in interest
rates.

The Bank’s Risk Management Committee sets and manages interest rate risk limits on a yearly basis and interest
rate risk is monthly measured and monitored.

AEVE and ANII of the Bank's non-trading positions as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
AEVE w 792,049 461,158
ANI 135,018 90,081
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49.

Risk Management, Continued

(iv) Foreign currency risk

Outstanding balances by currency with significant exposure as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021
KRW USD EUR JPY GBP Others Total
Financial assets:
Cash and due from banks W 6,046,893 5,652,467 30,847 52,579 17,370 175,611 11,975,767
Securities measured at
FVTPL 9,030,109 693,919 - 1,101 - 93,682 9,818,811
Securities measured at
FVOCI 30,609,818 6,639,366 25 311,838 - 314,089 37,875,136
Securities measured at
amortized cost 2,968,877 - - - - - 2,968,877
Loans measured at FVTPL 644,412 - - - - - 644,412
Loans measured at amortized ’
cost 123,311,272 40,714,606 3,103,077 1,457,553 789,280 1,387,606 170,763,394
Derivative financial assets 4,092,050 1,117,750 44,940 2,464 30,077 18,291 5,305,572
Other financial assets 3,589,931 1,880,512 290,095 25,864 8,011 41,635 5,836,048
180,293,362 56,698,620 3,468,984 1,851,399 844,738 2,030,914 245,188,017
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured )
at FVTPL 1,811,241 255,903 - - - - 2,067,144
Deposits 41,469,942 10,949,203 44,634 327,145 91 1,106 52,792,121
Borrowings 5,637,556 14,709,344 20,683 1,037,799 - 658,395 22,063,777
Debentures 109,615,309 26,463,222 1,704,147 259,501 791,815 6,531,336 145,365,330
Derivative financial .
liabilities 3,988,813 728,275 4,569 4,296 16,166 15,722 4,757,841
Other financial liabilities 4,458,827 2,214,186 13,293 18,398 1,119 111,807 6,817,630
166,981,688 55,320,133 1,787,326 1,647,139 809,191 7,318,366 233,863,843
Net financial position W 13,311,674 1,378,487 1,681,658 204,260 35,547 (5,287,452) 11,324,174
December 31, 2020
KRW USD EUR JPY GBP Others Total
Financial assets:
Cash and due from banks W 4,523,911 5,783,607 34,968 71,912 17,964 96,616 10,528,978
Securities measured at
FVTPL 7,779,699 488,359 - 316 - 52,257 8,320,631
Securities measured at
FVOCI 28,868,837 5,018,056 25 206,249 - 48,158 34,141,325
Securities measured at
amortized cost 785,264 - - - - - 785,264
Loans measured at FVTPL 1,429,258 5,256 - - - - 1,434,514
Loans measured at amortized
cost 117,661,851 32,590,755 1,977,320 1,281,467 434,845 1,353,940 155,300,178
Derivative financial assets 6,395,927 1,736,642 86,654 353 72,523 37,277 8,329,376
Other financial assets 3,034,997 877,574 230,329 12,274 32,848 275,704 4,463,726
170,479,744 46,500,249 2,329,296 1,572,571 558,180 1,863,952 223,303,992
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured
at FVTPL 1,578,544 116,413 - - - - 1,694,957
Deposits 37,674,768 7,870,846 26,068 305,890 85 1,762 45,879,419
Borrowings 6,092,647 11,794,352 160,347 679,535 - 160,730 18,887,611
Debentures 107,496,854 21,485,451 1,923,888 674,748 818,290 5,919,497 138,318,728
Derivative financial
liabilities 5,103,794 1,122,091 10,475 6,639 32,574 29,714 6,305,287
Other financial liabilities 3,831,466 2,630,783 73,055 13,336 26,678 321,263 6,896,581
161,778,073 45,019,936 2,193,833 1,680,148 877,627 6,432,966 217,982,583
Net financial position W 8,701,671 1,480,313 135,463 (107,577) (319,447) (4,569,014) 5,321,409
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49. Risk Management, Continued

(V) Interest rate risk management

The Bank is closely monitoring the outputs prepared by the industrial working groups which is managing the
transition to alternative benchmark rates and the markets related the rates. The outputs include the information
published by regulatory authorities related to IBORs. The authorities have made it clear that after the end of 2021,
they will no longer persuade or force banks to submit IBORs. Responding the transition, the Bank organized a task
force led by the head of the risk management division and the task force has established the LIBOR transition plan
that consists of work flows such as alternative interest rate determination, application development, customer
communication management, risk management, taxation, finance, legal, and accounting system establishment. The
important progress of the plan is reported to the management and may also be reported to the board of directors if
necessary. The purpose of the task force is to review where exposure to IBOR occurs within the Bank’s business,
and to develop and implement the plan to transit to the alternative benchmark rates. As of December 31, 2021, the
Bank has completed the transition and the application of the alternative benchmark rates and plans to complete the
transition to the alternative benchmark rates related to the contracts that are contracted in US dollar and are expired
after June 2023 before June 2023.

The financial instruments that have yet to transition to alternative benchmark rates as of December 31, 2021 are as
follows. The amounts of the non-derivative financial instruments are the carrying amounts and the amounts of the
derivatives, the commitments and the guarantees are the nominal amounts.

USD GBP Total
Non-derivative financial assets:
Financial assets measured
at FVOCI W 109,601 - 109,601
Financial assets measured .
at amortized cost 11,304,144 373,323 11,677,467
_Privately placed corporate
- bonds 27,262 - 27,262
' ) 11,441,007 373,323 11,814,330
. Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured )
at amortized cost 707,744 - 707,744
Derivative:

Trading purpose: .
Interest rate 60,032,707 71,024 60,103,731
Currency " 41,663,977 - 41,663,977

Hedging purpose:

Interest rate 15,078,608 . - - 15,078,608
Currency 4,701,218 - 4,701,218
121,476,510 71,024 121,547,534

Commitments and guarantees W 1,796,199 25,620 1,821,819
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Risk Management, Continued
(5) Liquidity risk management

(i) Concept

Liquidity risk is defined as the possibility of potential loss due to a temporary shortage in funds caused by a maturity
mismatch or an unexpected capital outlay. Liquidity risk soars when funding rates rise, assets are sold below a
normal price, or a good investment opportunity is missed.

(ii) Approach to liquidity risk management
The Bank manages its liquidity risks as follows:

Allowable limit for liquidity risk

* The allowable limit for liquidity risk sets LCR, NSFR and Mid- to long-term foreign currency fund management
ratio

- The management standards with regards to the allowable limit for liquidity risk should be set using separate and
stringent set ratios in accordance with the FSS guidelines.

<Measurement Methodology>

+ LCR: (High quality liquid assets / Total net cash outflows over the next 30 calendar days) X 100

» NSFR: Available Stable Funding / Required Stabte Funding X 100

» Mid- to long-term foreign currency fund management ratio: Foreign currency funding being repaid after 1 year /
Foreign currency lending being collected after 1 year X 100

Early warning indicator

To identify prematurely and cope with worsening liquidity risk trends, the Bank has set up 15 indexes such as the
“Foreign Exchange Stabilization Bond CDS Premium,” and measures the trend monthly as a means for establishing
the allowable liquidity risk limit complementary measures.

Stress-Test analysis and contingency plan

- The Bank evaluates the effects on the liquidity risk and identifies the inherent flaws. In the case where an
unpredictable and significant liquidity crisis occurs, the Bank executes risk situation analysis quarterly based on
crisis specific to the Bank, market risk and complex emergency, and reports to the Risk Management Committee
for the Bank’s solvency securitization.

-+ The Bank established detailed contingency plan to manage the liquidity risks at every risk situations.

131



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(In millions of won)

49. Risk Management, Continued

(iii) Analysis on remaining contractual maturity of financial instruments
Remaining contractual maturity analysis of non-derivative financial instruments including interest payment as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5 Over 5
month months months years years Total
Financial assets:

Cash and due from

banks W 9,612,371 515,608 550,680 1,029,287 - 11,707,946
Securities measured at

FVTPL 46,621 25,023 1,050,540 1,149,972 7,506,684 9,778,840
Securities measured at

FVOCI 361,611 1,207,439 4,133,965 10,816,960 15,093,228 31,613,203
Securities measured at )

amortized cost 10,000 340,486 1,113,529 1,505,020 - 2,969,035
Loans 10,042,137 14,241,774 61,880,066 67,500,212 15,813,164 169,477,353
Other financial assets 5,097,270 - 803,773 5,901,043

W 25,170,010 16,330,330 68,728,780 82,001,451 39,216,849 231,447,420

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities

measured at FVTPL W 8,854 125,618 682,882 348,104 214,802 1,380,260
Deposits 25,608,016 8,124,580 16,519,769 2,418,409 118,943 52,789,717
Borrowings 3,140,265 4,398,427 10,504,484 2,932,717 1,025,321 22,001,214
Debentures 4,648,419 11,697,892 47,013,584 76,093,647 6,148,738 - 145,602,280
Other financial liabilities 5,008,883 1,572,656 - - 359,118 6,940,657

W 38,414,437 25,919,173 74,720,719 - 81,792,877 7,866,922 228,714,128
. December 31, 2020 .
i Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5 Over 5
a8 month months months years years Total
Financial assets: .
Cash and due from

banks W 9,137,776 91,051 464,395 760,273 21,263 10,474,758
Securities measured at

FVTPL . 136,016 124,287 915,490 1,883,117 8,107,999 11,166,909
Securities measured at

FVOCI 553,784 1,025,117 4,845,370 11,070,430 13,737,878 31,232,579
Securities measured at

amortized cost - . - 210,000 570,000 - 780,000
Loans 9,232,537 13,540,396 56,829,822 60,814,868 14,671,105 155,088,728
Other financial assets 3,831,145 - - - 705,630 4,536,775

W 22,891,258 14,780,851 63,265,077 75,098,688 37,243,875 213,279,749

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities

measured at FVTPL W 49,541 - 500,167 605,760 238,914 1,394,382
Deposits 22,271,587 6,814,661 12,791,098 3,881,550 109,333 45,868,229
Borrowings 3,873,926 3,441,014 7,757,486 2,688,791 1,125,536 18,886,753
Debentures 4,822,104 10,036,440 45,530,833 70,427,784 7,428,100 138,245,261
Other financial liabilities 4,110,621 1,766,297 1,074,478 6,951,396

W 35,127,779 22,058,412 66,579,584 77,603,885 9,976,361 211,346,021
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Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements R
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(In millions of won)

49. Risk Management, Continued

Remaining contractual maturity analysis of derivative financial instruments as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are
as follows:

Net settlement of derivative financial instruments

December 31, 2021
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5
month months months . years QOver 5 years Total
Trading purpose :
derivatives:
Currency . W 201 - - - - 201
Interest rate (11,805) (23,802) 8,326 (158,553) 535,474 349,640
Hedging purpose
derivatives:
Interest rate 33,896 115,454 180,557 631,338 687,222 1,648,467
W 22,292 91,652 188,883 472,785 1,222,696 1,998,308
December 31, 2020
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5
month months months years Over 5 years Total
Trading purpose :
. derivatives: ‘
Currency W (2,240) 259 - - - (1,981)
Interest rate (12,099) (8,965) (21,956) (154,170) 311,267 114,077
Hedging purpose
derivatives:
Interest rate - 60,484 118,050 397,587 679,232 596,098 ° 1,851,451
W 46,145 109,344 375,631 525,062 907,365 1,963,547
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(In millions of won)

49. Risk Management, Continued

Gross settlement of derivative financial instruments

Trading purpose
derivatives:
Currency
Inflow
Outflow
Hedging purpose
derivatives:
Currency
Inflow
Outflow
Total inflow
Total outflow

Trading purpose
derivatives:
Currency
Inflow
Outflow
Hedging purpose
derivatives:
Currency
Inflow
Outflow
Total inflow
Total outflow

December 31, 2021
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5
month months months years Over 5 years Total
W 56,066,208 34,469,849 99,529,773 89,932,702 8,452,901 288,451,433
56,009,986 34,338,644 99,195,857 90,326,262 8,476,594 288,347,343
16,920 76,028 4,791,344 14,245,183 4,727,452 23,856,927
16,786 79,183 6,083,666 14,902,210 4,624,965 25,706,810
W_56,083,128 34,545,877 104,321,117 104,177,885 13,180,353 312,308,360
W 56,026,772 34,417,827 105,279,523 105,228,472 13,101,559 314,054,153
December 31, 2020
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5
month months months years Over 5 years Total
W 41,628,937 28,120,676 70,926,683 68,814,581 7,423,977 216,914,854
41,747,705 28,165,683 71,251,634 68,700,868 7,415,793 217,281,683
126,703 743,865 5,321,106 15,865,301 1,175,969 23,232,944
235,842 868,872 5,398,633 16,129,256 1,162,943 23,795,546
W 41,755,640 28,864,541 76,247,789 84,679,882 8,599,946 240,147,798
W 41,983,547 29,034,555 76,650,267 84,830,124 8,578,736 241,077,229

Remaining contractual maturity analysis of guarantees and commitments as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as

follows:

Guarantees
Commitments

Guarantees
Commitments

December 31, 2021
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5 Over 5
month months months years years Total
W 1,431,023 1,358,214 3,660,638 6,720,569 782,819 13,953,263
227,768 21,982 715,958 2,765,040 44,880,979 48,611,727
W 1,658,791 1,380,196 4,376,596 9,485,609 45,663,798 62,564,990
December 31, 2020
Within 1 1-3. 3~12 1~5 Over 5
month months months years years Total
W 1,289,198 981,555 2,624,952 4,693,645 509,755 10,099,105 -
73,583 79,569 762,853 1,751,963 42,194,766 44,862,734
W 1,362,781 1,061,124 3,387,805 6,445,608 42,704,521 54,961,839
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Independent Auditors’ Review Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Based on a report originally issued in Korean

The Chief Executive Officer
Korea Development Bank

We have reviewed the accompanying report on the operations of the Internal Control over Financial Reporting (“ICFR”)
of Korea Development Bank (the “Bank”) as of December 31,2021. The Bank's management is responsible for designing
and operating ICFR and for its assessment of the effectiveness of ICFR. Our responsibility is to review management's
assessment of ICFR and issue a report based on our review. In the accompanying report of management’s assessment of
ICFR, the Bank’s management stated: “Based on the assessment of the operations of the ICFR, no material weakness
existed and the Bank’s ICFR has been effectively designed and operated as of December 31, 2021 in accordance with
the ICFR standards”

We conducted our review in accordance with ICFR Review Standards, issued by the Korean Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform, in all material respects, the review of management’s
report on the operations of the ICFR to obtain a lower level of assurance than an audit. Our review consists principally
of obtaining an understanding of the Bank’s ICFR, inquiries of Bank personnel about the details of the report, and tracing
to related documents we considered necessary in the circumstances.

The Bank’s ICFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with K-IFRS. Because of its inherent
limitations, however, ICFR may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness
to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate:

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that report on the operations of ICFR as
of December 31, 2021 is not prepared in all material respects, in accordance with ICFR standards issued by the Internal
Accounting Control System Operation Committee.

This report applies to the Bank’s ICFR in existence as of December 31, 2021. We did not review the Bank’s ICFR
subsequent to December 31, 2021.

Aéu‘a W

Seoul, Korea
March 29, 2022
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L KDB Bank

IR Operating Status Report by (B0 and ICFR Officer

To the Shareholders, Board of Directors and Audit Committee

As the CEO and the ICFR Officer of KDB, assessed operating status
of KDB’s ICFR for the year ending December 31, 2021.

Design and operation of ICFR is the responsibility of KDB's
management including CEO and ICFR Officer. We evaluated whether the
company effectively designed and operated its ICFR to prevent and detect
errors or frauds which may cause a misstatement in financial statements to
ensure preparation and disclosure of reliable financial information. We used
the “Conceptual Framework for Designing and Operating Internal Control
over Financial Reporting in Korea as the criteria for design and operation
of the company’s ICFR. And we concluded that an evaluation of ICFR

~ based on the 'Management Guideline for Evaluating and Reporting
Effectiveness of Internal Control over Financial Reporting’ established by
the ICFR Committee.

©  Based on our assessment, we concluded that the company’s ICFR is
designed and operated effectively as of December 31, 2021 in accordance
with the ‘Conceptual Framework for Designing and Operating Internal
" Control over Financial Reporting’.

We certify that this report does not contain any false statements nor
omit to state a fact necessary to be presented herein. We also certify
that this report does not contain or present any statements which might
cause material misunderstandings of the readers and we have reviewed
and verified this report with sufficient care.

March 25 , 2022

Jof e Lo

Chairman & CEO

ﬁodc ey leon

Internal Control over Financial Reporting Officer
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*7) B7] F Aot H A TekA2E 7| AL AAAIREAA B3| AL] H3RAR &
Hylalo] ZtastALYT |

+8) B5 F¢ AAke] FAIA SFgoE A% £AMNNA FAE &
AZ B3 37)d 22009 9] E4aES AAdgen, g7 F
71 el A A= QAT |

(*x9) B% F9 Aare] TAIA sF o2 A EAATR FAS &4 ABH =
AT B1 97]e 6,086 TA(H): 28,054 Tre)e] EARES QA AS YT
(*10) QA ZTEE Hrlo W2 AMEILR] B4R F7]ol] 54,1949 A (A 7] 35,41
79 uhY £ARESY)Y EAES AL

*11) B7) 5 FAH 0] BAZ G A= Q&Y

*12) WP 252 AHo= A3 575 Z7h2 A7)l 21,5779 99 <]
EAAEBY S ANFAS YT

(*13) B 9 A4 2HAFTEE o3t A% S Frts el 2 s &4 A
M Z2A2 B3 D)o 328 TA(AY): 1,222 T)e] EES A4 SRS YT
(x14) o}FZ 2 Ao BAARER G5 A} 9 197] S|Ate] s 3]0l 16,4619 7

- o] EAAEE QA5 3, Aloju | A o] M| A FIRMEALEF A AL S| AL €] 19

L

7} BAtell thsl A7lol 29,503 WA S} EFAES AR FHH

w2 2712 A2 A4 Do) BAd AR dE FEY L BAVNY FAF
Aol AFA7IA] AR E oS3 2Eyh

(SH: uHOkRl)
AR a3
SIAIH
H67(h)| © Hies(&) 2| H67(2)| Xies(&)|

B2 HEZANZ) 4,668,209} 5,787,846 16,921,067 16,921,067
OJIOIX|IU(Z) 2,722,261 574,730 2,736,835 78,83%
(F)strizd 433,616 445,621 500,000 500,000
KGSEHE(ZF) 15,966 127,359 9,268 67,599
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(3) 97193} AT @A T 357G L BAVYY AR R AREL T

I ZsYt
<A67(F)71>
; (C1: woiR)
=2 2z 201 | s |zem| xe =3 e | gosel :g; §§;§g} X'(:f
Z201Y | M201F285EHBA == =238 128 3,958,732| 3,402,497 566,235 130,854 42,651 84,8684 100.00
KOB Bank Evrope =il | =239 | 128 | tnaze| ;o0 ne4z| 4e211| 4383  8,031100.00
A20I1UBESE(F (o 21121 = =289 128] 638,808 586,918 112,890 22,318 5,156 13,790 100.00
KDB Bank Uzbekistan X =89 128 838,100 755,286 82,814 28,400 10,340 16,928| 86.32
KB Eckd Hets =89 128 369,396 308,057 61,339 49,441 1,649 2,773/ 100.00
KDB indonesia PIZUIAIOH SEY 128 116,563 30,437 86,116 9,137 169 2,657 84.65
KDB Silicon Valley LLC 0= =84 128 119,648 1,669 117,979 24 (552) (552)100.00
ST TEmI= | MES | 128 | 10628210 8406,627| 2217.588| 4,486,596| (1,699,809)|(1.650,280)| 56.68
AT 2(F) (+1) Cherel= HIZE 128 253,430 240,028 13,402 87,589 (9,176) {(8,939)1100.00
CHBIZRE(ZR) (*1) tsel= HE 128 701,881 991,844| (280,963) 763,270 (136,391)| (135,624)( 70.04
A2ITIEH(F) = | amS2| 128 7,513,808 6,217,165] 1,296,644 565,801 23,376 183,742 9.92
g¢
BIRH|EIUUSESKIBIAL (+2) (et | 2SS | 0HED| 361,684 237 361,447 12,709 10,819 10,819| 41.67
BEACUSESNSIA (D) | Gelei= |3sSxe | ool 17830 1ol eem|  7.072|  se8| 3808 50.00
HEOSESNSA (+2) OERI= |2sex0|enl| | w96 o] oean| 38| 209 2089 5000
FAI0ICIHIQI TRIRR 2 R( S gl | Xpi2sd| 128 68,612 11,373 57,238 37,483 18,851 18,336| 84.16
FI0ICIHIIHIAEHE(F) tsto=2 =28Y 128 81,468 2,687 78,781 10,535 4,034 4,177(100.00
HOICIBIBI=(E CHsteI= | AMdlAY | 128 7.478 4,441 3,037 25,580 260 737(100.00
HOICIHIPIHIAEHENTS etoI1= | SSEN| 128 | 11,017,597] 8,043,123| 2,974,474, - 205,231 232,737 9.40
ANRETIBRISIA
HOICIHIRIAAS ueter=2 [2ssna| 128 | 1968078| 19633413 47,35 5| 14301| (385690 68.20
ANREXHSSIA
FOICIHIAIDDIHR SIS | (h8telR | 28X 12@ 629 12 617 K] (2,314) (2,314)| 60.00
NDEXHSEIA
KOB1P ACHZ Q= |2g=xel| 128 | 06| 5526 (189) - aza| (o509 B2
NBERHSEIA (+3)
HIOICIHIOIAIO} ez | 2SN | 128 130,757 102 130,655 - (2,669) 11,441 50.00
ANDEXESBIA (+3) -
HOICIHISASANIXH fjeel= | 2s8SEXY| 128 105,256 144 105,112 81,216 69,808 70,507| 66.67
NDERESSIA
JIYRs4XIRINF (iei= | 28X | 128 3,847,608 2915271 1,032,337 83,857 29,628 29,628| 100.00
SEATHIR0O] Uerei= | 2ssx9| 128 7% % 768 2| (56| (569 B3
NRERESSIA
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. (S+|: BHOIRI)
' ] = 9 |x=s
== = 3 CERE Rt = 20f
7 20 | e |zes| H e | oy o |zmasel to
2D [e=EABAE OEeim| waEe | 128 | 211,108.870| 145,797,021 | 65,311,849] 60,574,819] (5,315.065) | (4,754,046) | 2.90
SEBTTA ez | Ssrwan| 128 | 1130031 s1258| 817.438| 465281 (71,016) (59.751)| 43.58
a4y
* B =20IZ2 0|1 BE 8K Ueei= | 2s=xel| 122 | e11s3|  5L177| 7og7e| 70185  awse1]  40801] %67
RN BAL UEei=| =289 | 128 | 15.00750| 5645002 9195697 5490512 4.187.673| 4,207,601| 2211
sEesMR o= | 2mEore | 123 || osaa7| 53405 21952 1989%0| 9517 12646 0.60
S2TA(Z) (+4) eei=| MEel | 128 | 501390 3496807 1517002 6973800 (166,475 (166.475)| 17.02
OIOIRIZA(E) (+5) ez | ergrsr=e | 123 | 17.876.100] 7,517.806| 10,358,204] 13,704,148 5,337,056| 5,606,643| 20.69
&9
(Z)BHEIZS (x4) GEei=| N=BIAr | 128 | 3754742 100524 teeazis| amsome| 17| 46260 10.66
AZLE(F) (+6) nee=| oer | 123 | esroos| 1,000785| (362870)] 100586 (235,161)| (235161)| 10.98
E2031H KRN mee= | 2sexe | 128 5,745 1471 438 266 118 18| 5494
NSETHESIAL (+7)
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<A 66(A)7]>

(Stg): woR

- - . o = @ |x=s
2= 2s 2o | sy |ze| ww 25 e | gyae se; snmno '(%
Z201Y [AIR20IF28R8tSAl £3 =239 128 2,603,388| 2,222,081 471,367 132,319 12,608 (18,151)( 100.00
KDB Bank Europe &kl =238Y%Y 128 1,191,023 1,079,628 111,385 55,804 (15,780) (26,356) { 100.00
A20IUESE(F o= E%g 128 468,754 360,654 99,100 23,062 4,572 (1,828) | 100.00
KDB Bank Uzbekistan L ES =89 128 628,874 562,988 65,886 24,028 8,401 (4,776)| 8.3
KO8 =Scial 2o =8d 128 315,666 257,100 58,566 96,007 1,917 (19,812)( 100.00
KOB Indonesia QITLYIAIOH 238Y 128 87,891 57,456 30,436 12,345 1,831 1,831 84.65
CHRZHBHHF) sl HIZ=S 128 | 10,320,775 6,451,804 3,868,971 7,080,175 86,573 114,107 55.68
ASETH(F) () UEe= | WEY | 128 | 2673 2014  223m| 1see|  1087]  1.104{10000
CHBIE(F) (+1) Hgtel= HIZES 128 636,255 790,594 (154,339) 765,204 (5,518 (5,704)| 70.04
A2IHIIEH CHerei= | olaIES3| 128 6,607,724| 5,518,8838| 1,088,836 431,72 173,681 171,657 99.92
59
BH2HIEIHUSESXIBIAL (2) ez | 285X | oieD| 395,038 29 364,779 14,120 6,822 6,822 41.67
IR TASESNZIAL (»2) eI | 28X | R0 190,706 9 190,697 9,681 9,201 9,201| 50.00
B2 NKESXIB|AH*2) istel= SEXI | 0HED) 108,666 7 108,649 7,275 6,94 6,994| 50.00
AOICIH I TR tsrel= | Xink2EY | 128 58,818 10,715 49,108 35,072 17,972 17,951| 84.16
HIOICIBIIHIAEHE(F) CHerel= =84 128 77,601 2,997 74,604 8,420 3,042 3,054 100.00
HOICIHIBI=(E Weei= | MoiAgl | 128 8207 5907 230 25468 1,140 608] 100.00
BRoITAISSXIBIA U= |2ssxe| 128 2777 2| 27 191 ) @ .00
HIOICIBIQIHIAEHERN S el= | SBEN | 128 9,701,074] 7,233,3W| 2,467,681 8,361,79% 58,745 23,799 99.40
ADEXBIXIBIA 4
HOICHIZ AL DERI= | 28=1e| 128 | 19568528 19015550 532,978 8| (140,754| (172013 e8.20
ANDETREBIA
HOICIHAIOHRE) S HSeHs | Glelel= | 28SKe| 128 | 294 | ae431| 5lees| 51466 52715 60.00
NDERTSEIAL
HOICIHIESHES Uelei= | =sexel| 128 || 2729 w| 2212 78| (54| (58] 5000
ANSEXESSIA (+3)
KOBAP QN UEei= |2ssxel| 128 | neesr| 437 7030 -1 (w9)| (80| B2
ANDEXESSIA (+3)
S0ICIBIOFAIOH Qeei= |2sEnel| 128 | 680 | w672 | ag0] (5608 50.00
NDETHSZIAL (+3)
HOICIHEASAURIL! tele= |2gexel| 128 | 1206 7| 10315 9418 (4740 (56%)| 66.67
ANREXESSIAL
e Hem= |2seng| 128 | 2w0%6| 1,990.277] 1002708 20419 2709  2.709100.00
B ATIRHOIO] U= |2s=xg| 128 o] ter| (51 2 13 (19| s
ANRETTISEIAL
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(el wpiR)
_ _ » R 5 o1 |=s
£ 2 200 | s (zss| e 5 e | gese é_; %Eg%é‘l! )
AN [BREFIBALE Oedi=2t ¢4y 128 | 208,142,111| 132,475,265| 70,666,846| 58,560,314 1,091,347| 1,802,824| 32.90
P Gelo= | Sowma| 123 | 1351779  seeec|  w20ms| 488285 (%6712 (60819 4358
x
BI2OIT 0| S EEAIBIA ez | SsEXY | 128 874,470 31,518 842,952 68,022 47,318 47,318 26.67
BEMYRIEZAL tigreiz2l 288 128 8,806,068 3842127 4,983,941 3,507,882 2,680,659| 2,690,496 2.33
RS AR (F) =LA CHstol= | 201 | 128 263,862 52,438 211,414 177,955 5,540 3,093| 30.60
B XIA(ZF) (»4) ez RM=EY |28 5,415322| 3739,500| 1,675813] 8504,588| (302,847) (302,847)| 17.02
OlOIXI U ZE) (+5) sz | esgise| 128 0,373,360| 7,684,812| 1,688,548| 6,413,270 123,889 (33,766)| 12.61
e
(F)EHEIZL (»4) CHEreI2 | XIZ=SIAL | 128 3,488569| 1,824,304] 1,664,265 408,827| (269,846)| (222,157)| 10.66
SEINAIBAISELSIAEXSIAL |(BI2I2 | SBEA | 128 70,913 213 70,700 36,330 36,218 36,218 50.00
ASYE(F) (6) Chsral= pii=s 128 679,176 999,8%5| (320,810) 76,427 (50,329) (50,329)| 10.88
E201310H2l KIRIOHe ez | S8 | 128 5,496 1,286 4,210 312 (131) (131)] .94
ANDREXIESEIAL (+7)

1) 57192 H$ZAHFF)7F BR32 de AFA7Igely, A7) o)A 7
3 7199 FAFLYA TS BBz e AR Fol /HAIH T3 7]
Aol et AT L IAAYL AAY F A= F AT AT J& EA/8HA
o] Zgo] AF st FHE MAHAAFTHUT

- (x2) Bo] FABIL Aoltr|AZ A I & (F )7t T8 AFFAVNTEAN T
ol qFAL FH o] HASIL A X3k, B FE 23| ALe] A Tl thE WE o]
o foHo g &5 Ju AHE AAse P& T3 WFoIJdl FFE WA
2 FE79 ez BRI :

T (x3) AP X Ego] 50% ooy, AF R YL G F 3= B
- AT 3 LS BREm 3, BFold FYHoR mEFHo| glen, o]
FFL EF UAZE S AET 5o JoBR FHIYPLE BRI
(+4) A F&o] 20% vtolut, Faho] FFA3|ALY oA PAE EASHIL Y28
2§93 9L YA F vhn viHo AAVIYLE EFIIAFTHE

(+5) A7)l R E&0) 20% vlHolH, FaPo] AAFE7| AP FAAL Y=
Fo JFH S PAY 5 itk wuHo BAVIYLeR ERSILH, B7] T E
f 9 AgAA Y A PALZ A 2] 20% ol Fe] HAJFU

(+6) 3&71gol B/ BANDY AL ES 18T A5, AREC] 20% o802
Z 430 9FHo) sy

(7) 3] A EE0) 50% 5 27} FTHAFHIANLLZN G502
2 AT F Y= & BREHA otUsty BAVIYLE ERSIFASTHS

o]
2l
=S

H 2%

rJ

_64_




12. AT

97] 2 A7) F f 944 WENG L thed TEUT

<A67(F)71>
(94 BHOHR))
22 Ji= FS/20H=24 HE - HAHFUES 2Serst XH01 pli=
FSR0t
£X 305,8%6 - (62) (2,815) - 302,959
ASUIRS 600,627 3,024 (633) 25,435 - 628,38
URETA LS 42,180 3,206 (5,614) 54 71 40,637
X2p 734 - - - 35 769
JIRHIE 54,528 6,966 (2.653) 851 120 59,812
HESOIT A 13,615 15,068 - (28,630) - <
ASATHH RS 81,208 113,480 (24,847) - (7,747) 162,089
ASAXH ) 5,989 2,106 (705) - 57 7,447
ASAXHHIIED 27 - - - 2 29
JIEIARE R0 179,100 7,977 (33,238) - 204 154,052
2 1,283,848 151,907 (67,812 (5.114) (6,608) 1,356,221
2RI
AUSUREZ (») 200,349 18,077 (289) (1,110) - 217,027
AXEZAILS 36,025 3,080 (5,085) - 651 34,621
g2y 53 64 - - 19 616
J1HIE 44,197 3178 (2,125) - 145 45,35
ASATHHESHY) 39,51 27,208 (18,667) - 427 48,501
ASATHH XHE) 2,604 2,087 (447) - 35 4,279
ASAXHKIIED 24 4 - - 1 2
JIEIIRE Rt 143817 17,212 (.984) - 167 128,212
A 467,082 70,860 (59,597) (1,110) 1,445 478,690
EARRETH Y
&XI 3,023 - - - - 3,023
HSUAISE 2,361 - - - - 2,361
2 5,384 - - - - 5,334
XY 811,382 81,047 (8.215) (4,004) (8,053) 872,157

() ARRZFo] TFH JFUT
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o

fa—

=

<A 66(4)71>

2= JIE FS/AI2 e AZUER Qs X10]

SR}

£X 318,940 537 (186) {13,456) - 305,86
dEuass 607,036 5,739 {1,062) (11,09) - " 600,627
UM EAILS 43,058 2,336 (4,151) - 07 42,180
b 740 - (126) - 120 734
A= 53,170 3779 (2,607 - 186 54,528
HESOIT A 1,588 16,546 - (4,519) - 13,615
AFBRTHH RS 7472 . 28162 (19,954) - (1,790 81,28
ANSATHH X 5,007 3337 (2.624) - 29 5,989
AERTHH T |EN 2 - - - )] 27
JIELI RS XK 165,08 14,447 (890) - 520 179,109
A 1,209,392 74,883 (31,590) (&3,010) 233 1,283,848
2T o

ASUTES (x) 191,473 16,500 (2n) (7.443) - 200,349
AURMHIALS 36,078 2,930 (3,124) - 14 36,005
b= el 5%6 58 k) - )] 533
JAI= 43,348 2,964 (2,006) - (99) 44,197
ANBATHHREN) 29,059 29,153 (18,139) - (540) 39,583
ASRATHK 1) 1.997 - 2,083 (1,462) - 3% 2,604
ASRXIAHIIED 13 13 - - ] 24
JIEIIS S RItt 128,513 15,042 (256) - (462) 143,817
A 431,157 69,673 (25,371) (7,443) (934) 467,082

- | eAREE Y

£X 3,023 - - - - 3,023
ASURES 2,361 - - - - 2,361
B 5,384 - - - - 5,384
EES 832,851 5,210 (6,219 (21,627) 1,167 811,382

Ty AFREF] EFEA AsHH
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13, $A5-54

371 2 27 &

<A67(>F)71>

o Msude e 24U

g pJES s AE=R oI

=201

X 51,778 2,815 60,558

AguTss 56,080 2,29 55,368

0 113,867 5:114 118,91
2Dt |

e 29,607 1,110 3,146
EATIEH

X 1197 - 1,197

dEuTas 1,778 - 1,778

0 2,975 - 2,975
cE=l 81,065 2,004 82,060
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<A66()71>

(S191: woie)
s oIt B HEW= Jler
ey
EN 49,913 - 7,865 57,778
Asu=s 40,474 - 15,615 56,080
A7) 90,367 - 23,480 113,867
ETp TP eI
Neyas 21,008 1,381 7,443 29,807
EATIEE o |
EX 1,197 - - 1,197
Aeyras 1,778 - - 1,778
A 2,975 - . - 2,975
Sl 66,409 (1,381) 16,087 81,085
F7)e @A) FARFA FAAE 97,983 WA (A7) D 96,959 D)ol M F
CBAAAE FAB SURAEA 5] £98 Prlol 7123t} BAASUT
T, SAREA] BAZAE 4 45 $2E FAMA ERIIEA wa 2E 3
A3 U
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14. g A}4t

37] 2 A7) F 2P A5 gL oen 2&Uh

<A67(F)71>
(CH|: SHOHR)
e pJES 3= = A2t Qltetat X0 e
He| 155,479 8,23 - (44,011) 14 119,775
HARR | - - - (45) 35 472
oA 11,940 818 (858) - 2 11,922
pl[= - 20,516 4,772 - (9,781) 23 15,530
Bl 188,417 13,883 (858) (53,837) 94 147,699
<A 66(A)71>
) (SH|: BHOHR)
e JNE s e A2 Q3teta XHO pli=l;
JHeH| 194,680 - 4,883 - (44,213) 119 155,479
HAR2 553 - - (46) (25) 482
HoR2 10,984 1,728 (764) - ) 11,940
J\€E 24,712 5,36 - (9,718) - 196 20,516
Bl 230,929 11,947 (764) (53,977) 324 188,417
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15. 71EkAMAE

grlas Aol @A JEAAe) e e et gEy

(S BHOKR)
e Hi67(2) 71 ’ HIB6(=) 21

IE==X 3,460,334 - 2662879
W[SESIES s , 1,794,806 - 1,31398
Olg=4=2) 408,168 343,901
BE2 | 217,682 | 193,003
=P, 20,127 22,982
HSHIE 15,969 14,121
== : 8,839 7,953
ek 29,635 182,484
A ' 5,955,610 | 4,741,281
Ealzea (80,071) , (79,474)
=N PN (1,632) (1,522)
=y 5,873,907 . 4860,285

A7) ZJEAAF 2= gAY FEILe 5836 048 (M) 4,463,726 7
)olm BAIIX = 5,835,448 2k (A 7)1 2 4,461,11797H)d U )
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16. vzt A 22k

G712 2 A7)T @A el ALY e et gEyh

<A67(F)71>

(SH9): BHOIRY)
g HS0t E2HINR| 3ol EARIE(Ee)
E27|9) SXIFA! (+1) 2,244,664 1,371,062 1,371,052 | 258,428
2HDIY XA (+2) - - - @n
I 2,244,664 1,371,052 1,371,052 258,401
<A66(H)7]>
(49 BHOKR)
g SR} £DHIIK I3 EARIE(2R)
F2|Q EXIFA! (+1) 2,244,664 1,629,479 1,629,479 25,926
201 EXI=A! (+2) 78,278 78,278 78,278 -
[T 5,590 5,590 5,500 -
& 238532 | . 1,713,347 1,713,347 25,96

1) P RS2 ANLFE) 0 e AFA EXE §2517] A5t RWFFLE)
o} 2019 39 8ol AEEA L Tt AlSKolst "B Ak)E AAste wztAAE
At et 25719 PSR ANEGE) BE AEANAGS Wizt G At L
Bz BEIIASUT. Ru7]|7E Ald o= 2022d 19 13Y9) F2 A& WF)
ot B¢ 2 A FE) /12 RA N KLY A A5 AN A AT
2slz @gso], oy PR 59 B3 52 A A dagzo ABHo=
F=9x @eol utet 3T FF2AHFE)E 20229 39 8 B AdS &l
Ast &Y o _ v

+2) FRHE DAY FBAE LY A2 L B F % EHAEYT

_71._



17. B71&9]-F

W 2T AT AA BNEY-FAAN 54 FERA Wl B B
gyg.

(19 wotRy)

k== Re7(=)21 Hie6(&) 2|

AXH - 1,636,163 1,510,793
Oil===2xH 430,981 184, 164
A 2,067,144 1,694,957
Tz A B 5T WE S92 Bes) AT HALEL BRI
gou, Ads 3 AE a%%}xl ool HARAA HASE B3 o1 F H25)

ol SF AR L 5

@ 27123 A7 A Z71EY
of Aol the g&Uh

A7 54 34

=2
e 9rE-347 M 54 FRo2 ARSI

1o
o
1
ald
12
[
rl:l
N
alt
12

o)

2 xi67(4)2| Ri66(2)3|
ST 2,067,144 1,694,957
00|32 2,110,965 1,580,800
X012 (43,811) 114,157
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18. ol =53}

27123 A7 A4 ASERA) WAL e ZEyh

(S )

’ Qg ARUZ2D} SEIXI
HB7(=)1 Ri66(&) 1 Hie7(=)71 Hies(&) 21

2El+==

2FEM=S 86,428 109,570 86,428 109,570

HEdo=2 41,041,409 37,097,869 41,005,081 37,110,866

2THUSS 342,105 467,329 341,901 467,342

2H 41,469,942 37,674,768 41,433,410 37,687,778
2istoll==

27202 1,536,950 1,534,717 1,536,980 1,534,717

HE40= 4,411,690 2,775,180 4,410,697 2,774,425

2-HUSSA 4,341,640 3,288,651 4,322,711 3,271,530

2H 10,290,280 7,599,518 10,270,358 7,880,672
202

2IE0S 670,777 605,133 670,777 605,133

LHUSE 361,122 - 360,884 -

AN 1,031,899 605,133 1,031,661 605,133
Bl 52,792,121 45,879,419 52,735,429 45,873,583
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e,

19. A=A

D) %3 A7) @4 AGFEA YL 2% s

<A67(F)71>
(SH9): BHoI)
- 2N 2D . -
ey Oﬁsv?'-_ ooj
N OIXIE (% OIRIE (% ot l
BRI - 315 4,329,798 4,318,860
QBRI - 5.31 13,265,326 13,060,468
QI RFR Y - 335 2,300,131 2,298,068
JIE} 001 3.29 2,168,670 2,167,736
A 20,063,925
Ol IRFRISTHECHE D! (148) ‘
1] 22,063,777 22,045,165
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JIEF=R 237 4
JIE} N5 1,454 -
CHETHA N 445,904 803,266
g&sg3 (8,250) (365,141)
JIEFKr At 6,900 6.390
RS 470,808 43,113
JIEF=H 2,307 2,169
JEEYEM 76,500 60,070 |

) B7) 3 ARz Qe S5BAANA AYHAEFUh
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)27 2 A7 F A SEFBAALGY AR AT Fo 59 - HEY WY
oo 24 :
(SHS): W)
2 SLHX AR Ri67()21 Ries(&) 71

209 SENTS(F) OIXt$! @ 137
= S]] 27,956 " 4286

esgase) - 1

242 U J|EHRO! 6,018 4,165

OIXIHI2 (#17) (148)

CHE A2t , ‘ (33 _

' JIEISAHIS (513 (7.78)

FI0ICIHIQI ZRIRHAHR () =2l 9,08 12,287

OIXIHIS (121) (331)

H20IYUEDB(F) OIXte 1,186 3506

248 U J|EH2! 5,176 9,662

oIXIHI ¢ (49

CHzsak2t| (57 (61)

JIEFEHIR (8,028) (2,859

KDB Bank Europe . oIxta2! nz 5,008

' Hesgaey - 12

242 U J|EH2! 2,760 45

oIXIHIS (1) -

JIEFSHIS (596) (2,281)

KDB 218 OIXp42! 1,016 2,50

WES ] (45) @)

KDB Indonesia 0[Xt4=<! 160 12

CHE42tH) (1) (8

KDB Silicon Valley LLC OIXHHIZ (2 -
MSOIFZEREHRA | OIRt=2! 8,258 11,910

242 U J|EH4 2,386 3983

OIXHIZ (426) (50)

CHesak2H| (57 (49

JlEH IR (6,412 (760)

FoICiHIIHAEHE OlXH4=2 2,780 " 2853
RBAREXIBIRIBIAL - arz o J|ErAD 2 567 12,201

OIXIHIR (230) (386)

JIEIHAHIR (4,809) (3.499)
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(E491: i)

= SAAX HEDS HE7()3| Ries( &) 7!
E20190  |JHOICIBIZMAYR OIR4 1600 | 1,600
: ADE XTSI PUTETEEe 21 087 806
olXtH|I2 (6) (10)

JIEIESBIS (1,004 (15,887)

HIRELHS(Z) Ol 21,470 30,083

Hesgase - 47,914

243 9 J|EIA 696,230 20,474

E (4,58 (5.%9)

CH&42tI (117,849 -

IR (247,919) (380,130)

PISEER) EVE OIXI4et 19,880 4,482

243 U JIER! B -

WS (7,226 (2,847)

iRt (78 (69

JIEIRIHIS ™ (169)

JIE} OIXt42t 44,048 23,280

L= Eesel] 74,548 103,474

Uesgsel 72,674 28,870

a42 U J|EHLO 196,228 148,144

OIXHdI (639) (914

CHEAR2LH| (118,800) (80,030)

JIErSSHIS (216,839 (153,704

TAINY | EBRRBANE oIt 2,994 4,125
gt 4ol 256,862 -

Uesg8Y 351 -

243 o |EHS 19,28 178,140

OIXHIZ (1,006) (2,180)

T ALt - (934)

JIEIAHIR (254,043) (46,160)
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(S5t BiBke)

2 S4HK HFY DS His7()| Hies(&®)2!
21 KGSSRIZ(F) OIXt2! 11,8689 12,687
i= el 1,101 -
Uesg3sy 51,28 62,06
442 U JIEHS 27,840 3,704
OIXIHIR (13 (41)
JIEIG IS (10,886) (14,044)
OHIO| X1 URU( ) OIXt42! £330 41,080
Hesga8e 62,402 4,761
242 U IIER 1,8%0,5% 558,067
OIRIS (3.377) (2,107)
JIErSHIS (85,660) (11,339)
(F)BRSTY(x) OIRt42 2,962 5,704
242 U IIEHR 133,190 1226 |
OIXIIS ) (346)
WEPSEITT (3514) -
JEIHIS (2.930) (22,460)
) (F)armiz OIXt4=2 7,012 -
242 9 JIERNS! 58,39 -
BIRHL TS TA OIXt42! 213 380
242 U IIEM 1,38 3
OIXHHIR (237) (19
CHe=as 24| - (1)
. JIEIH IS - (969)
E I 0lR42! 20,066 13,863
. B 0! 606,017 243,044
Hesg3ae 38,053 360,524
248 U JIEH 23,38 73,20
ETES (23 (3.481)
Che A2 - (641) (3,320)
JIEIS LIS (31,566) (17,09%)

() B2 F ARZoz st EFBANA Aol EFBA A AAA Y &
S ERVEDISIES
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@ B2 A7 A EFBARS Az A AFET R FUAL B

I ZEY
: , (S): wioigl)
Ig S4B HEUS H67(2)21 HI68(&) |
F201 P H=TES) oy 250,000 320,000
HoICIBIIHAENE DIHEXSEE 4,386 7,854
M1 B AR ERIBHRIS| At orm prepey B
PEEHY(Z) NS 1,457,948 1,206,351
EEIEEES 1,818,741 567,377
o " 4,047,4% 5,084,798
JYRELRIRIIT oy 560,000 780,000
JlE L INELES . 464,300 307,604
EP IS 122,627 175,716
oy 501,800 178,200
20101 KGSERIZ(F) OIZEXSEE 2,487 20,265
oy 186,021 330,88
OOl XIRY( ) I, - 13,05
(FerEEaY e INELES - 414,630
EEIEEES - 337
orm - 2,614
JlE NS - 76,628
EEEEES - 28,431
o8 21,182 244,384
& 3 10,150,851 10,120,774
(6) #2490 thg 14
D7) 2 A7) F FRAGN i ARG LS theH 2L
(S wioHR))
HYUS He7()2! Ri6s( &)1
1201 1,213 1,130
E1X1304 B )
& 1,246 1,172

6) 37143 A71L A SFBARNA AFFHAY AL FRE YsHS
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@ ‘:‘7] R A7 T

43. IFZER
L2712 A7 &4 AFTERY AT R AL FH_ L=t 2
s4yoh
(E19): WEIR)
o HMe7()2 Hi66()2|
B2 U 0IXI2
23 2 A==s 56,083 52,240
SRS 6,007,684 4,487,351
3H/HAUKIZ 5,913,000 5,989,367
A 11,975,767 10,528,978
K2 ARRO| HIBHE 0IXI2 S (7,796,870) (5,624,394)
Jtak HSAI B0 DHE OlLHQ! SSAE
ARIERDL 28 HEI
z= 653,340 465,485
SN0 233,898 350,125
ES 887,238 | 824,610
(& 5,066,135 5,729,194

43 #97 $50) 9 A9 T gL g THUT

y (S eHoMR)

T E He7()2| Hies(&)|
JHRIZH0I 2f 8t ChEA 33,671 158,616
EaXe SOz gt IE}EQ&‘-N—L”D}II Z3 |RIBE34 B0t 146,183 13,714
EXHNg SO 018t E40|8 ¥ 2ADIY EXFAS| SOt 2,668,000 -
KISH HILZ QI8 J|EHE 2 HA| ED} 3,616,681 3,005,909
SIS BOIR 018t O|HHIA &1 (994,587) (826,625)
S| Y 2AHDIY SXFA0A DRI RAICZ2 HENEF - 78,278
SEXNRSHNM FERCZO] HEHER - 16,037
SETHIA EXRSUZS] HEMER 4,004 ' 5,500
ASAXI & 2|ARTHO| Q1A 115,586 31,499
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4. AAZA0l F5HA F& FF

B71%3 A7 E A =4F

AL ¥

ARz 55X e Bujz7

A7t5d B AL - FA WAL e 2FY

FAANE 2

-2 -

== HIB7(Z) 31 Hi66(H) 2|
Hepols= T E Tl ADoK | BRSO HEIN | UCE KAtO] REDH | BRSO RN
SEASTIRNE 3,349,080 1,307,268 2,762,065 1,875,504
oo 417,640 - 289,806 ' -
& 3,766,720 1,307,268 3,051,871 1,875,504
45. FEFEFL F5E TAHIHA
3L FEAEFY FANXE thL9 7K FFEL 2 BEFSIH FAIFUH.
- FF 10 SN A 51/*]5] AL FARANAR A= FEAEFY A, 5
FEAEY FANMA = FE 12 EF3T dFUH. ‘
-FF 2 JIHE A}%O}Cﬂ FEAEY FAVNXE EHGE=E FF, FYHA F
QQEFTE AFNA BE3 AR XA H F FEAEFY TR FE LR
BEF33 sy .
- & 3 PG HE ALt FEAEY FAVNNE SAHEE S, AU =
A4t Ao A BEEISES AR 7|23 F FEAFY FHNMR = T
307 BEF/3 AsYT



¥
s

i

'
.

(D) FANMN = EH% e 3 5F

1) 27123 A7 A4 FANXNZ st FEAEFY £5E IAMNE TS
3} ZEych
<A67(F)71> .
(&9} woiR)
2= 3 A=2 £Z3 p.|
28X |
S|Eol-BHIIX BF SIISA 606,008 1,348,367 7,864,436 9,818,811
JIEFE R0 DE IR EF SIS 1819791 | 17419641 | 18635704 | 37,875,1%
S|&o-DHIIX| EF SR - - 644,412 644,412
MY AR RO 1 5,295,504 10,067 5,305,572
81 2425800 | 24083512| 27,154619| 5364391
285
S |&0-BHIIX| &F 2T - 2,067,144 - 2,067,144
YA 2 4,746,616 11,223 4,757,841
= 2 6,813,760 11,223 6,824,985
<A66(H)71>
| (et5k mpi)
2= £Z 1 =¥ £=3 B
ST
ciy|ao-BEIIX X RIIEA 1,023,738 1,064,829 6,232,064 8,320,631
JIEIERAC-ZEIIX £ QIIEA 0430145| 17,067,639 | 14634541 | 34,141,325
S |&l-DEIIX| SF IEMHA - - 1,434,514 1,434,514
TIHAHARE R - 8,321,162 8214 8,329,376
& 3460883 | 26453630 | 2230933 | 52225846
2851 ‘
S|2o-BHIIX| BF 289 - 1,694,957 - 1,604,957
AN - 6,298,836 © 6,451 6,305,287 |.
B - 7,998,796 6,451 8,000,244
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2) %71 2 A7) F AR S FEHEY AR E £F 39 i 3H
A MEWge oS3 ZEY
<A67(3)71>
(Et94: HHpIRY)
28Xt 2823

= R A e S e | masETe el THSAESR
J= 6,232,064 14,634,541 1,434,514 8214 22,309,333 6,451
= plEnel 172,327 - 79,411 8,547 260,285 4,772
JIEtE 2L - 3,691,901 - - 3,691,901 -
OHel /e 1,857,647 494,015 52,450 - 2,404,112 -
OH/Z R (397,602) (157,861) (921,969) (6.634) (1,484,120) -
£ 301K T2 & : - (26.892) - - (26,89) -
OF HYE 2 (+) '
G2 £Z00H =3 - - - - - -
OF AT 2% (»)
Jlg 7,864,436 18,635,704 644,412 10,067 27,154,619 11,223
<A66(H)71> '

(E19): w4DIRY)
28Xt ==L

=& 8;§&§§;xl J|ﬂ§%§—é—§3m agz&a{—gggﬂ DAAETIA - A
=y 4,804,158 10,865,012 604,330 10,007 16,283,557 75
=plr=el] (10,627 - 649,450 (1,73) 637,030 6,376
JIEtER=S) - 2,944,874 - - 2,944,874 -
OHel/e 1,899,130 990,310 349,940 = 3,239,380 -
DH/Z N (476,804) (168,778) (169,256) - (814,928) -
£Z 30IM CI2 25 - (24,556) - - (24,556) -
OF HMZPE JU ()
[ 2Z0IM =3 16,297 27,679 - - 43,976 -
OF B 2N ()
Jl 6,232,064 14,634,541 1,434,514 8214 22,309,333 6,451

) A FELEN i BZ/sT AF A89 o8 b AF 7 A mE

FE2k o) o] AL
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NP7 R A7 =T 3237}5<1i ZQ3te FEEF

| ) H67(2)2 H66(Z) 3|

pIES 4,375 4,763
|20 0IAl (386)| (388)
J|er 3,089 4,375

27129 172 AR FAANE S5
AAFAZE B FLEFE e 2o

rr

F4AE 5 5722 BRI S

28 JHXIEORI Soipi

S -TEIIX N2 EXHAIRIZO ZA, JA S JIEXH O
=2 RIS RS s3ss80IR8 a0l

J|EHE 22 -BEIMK N2z ERAIIRIZO} ZA, Y S IR IH
52 RS Hes szsszony gog

IHYNE oIXIE AR aizssR0I0Y, golg, B8, HSs
' SSHE Y A Black-Scholes 2, MEXS S

sa186 Modified Black 2,

] AE8H Formula model

Slel-BRIIX & AL sassg0y ol

2s=

4 29
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5) 27123 A7lE @A) FAH/AZ S5 FEIE T FE 3R BRI IE
o AAFIE D W RS FANS N FH AuE B B
<A67(F)71>
e JIXIZII Hi2 S IS 2EHS (%9
|- DRIIX| &F 2sd - | #25ss0108, atoig 6.52~13.22
=yl - %AD|@_H|E§, SSA DI HES _
STHROIXIEIL S ——
s HHADIXI -
. S 17.89~ 41,50
JIEIEZE2 —BHIIX| ez s35Ss0108, T HEE -
s #isa fﬁg'}%‘;gﬁ"‘: goig 7.70~17.56
= S 19.48 ~ 33.20
S |2 EIIX| TSAN S | LSMC, 0132 - EE 17.80~34.16
=X SN
THAE olxigAg | solE s38= GE 38.23 ~ 49.07
AR 0.43~0.87
OIXi82® | Modfied Black 2! S 38.23 ~ 49.07
FIIX42E | Blak-Scholes 2! S 5.40 ~ 71.40
FASH Dores S S 18.87 ~ 25.49
<A66(4)71>
g JIRIEID 1Y Hi@=ps HlZSeA 25 (%
SI|EU-BEIIX| & XesA 255010, golg 0.72~19.05
L=y | SARISH I LY, SEA {2012 HES _
. STHOIXIEIL S ———
SARR -
S 17.53 ~33.00
JIEIE R ~BEIIX| T #252801908, HSzs -
s fﬁg%:g;?é oI 0.20~19.05
= BSH 18.49 ~ 26.45
S)|E-BEIX| HBARHS | LSMC, 01828 BISH 17.53 ~32.59
&3 a2
HYALE olxisAg | goE @zss EE! 36.02 ~ 44.87
A4 0.83~0.91
OIIBSHE | Modfied Black 22! EEL! 36.02 ~ 44.87
FIIX48E | Bak-Scholes 2! S 17.20 ~ 27.30
FAsH DOFRE S S 18.49 ~ 33.00
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L

e

6) I/ AT A FANANZE SHs= B
o) ml@S ] WA @ NPEE G TEUh
<A6T@)71> '

(S9i: sipie)
|22l 0IAl JIEHTR ] 014l

= = 2iet v 218t Bis solst s
YIIE-BEDIR| &5 SIS (1) 8,690 (6,723 - -
JIEIEAC-DHIIK B QIIEA (+1) 1 - 43,861 (31,587)
oI|Eo-DEIIX| &5 (S () 9,041 (8029) - ' -
THAEALE (x2) ‘ 3,745 (3729) - - -
& ' . 21,476 (18,480) 43,861 (31,587)

<A66(A)7]>
(SH9): atR)
_ 2ol oIA] JlErmEael oAl

= SoistHs 218 ms Sels ss 2|8t Bis
e a2mm =5 22153 (+1) 8,478 (7,355) - -
JIEIEZEC- DRI B QUISA (+1) - - 45,231 (75,780)
gl BEIIX| B (HEMH (+2) 11,208 (14,532) - -
THEARE (+2) 4364 (1,846) - -
8l 24,045 (23,733) 45,231  (75,780)

1) NEZAL Fo BE2EISS FTYIFA AFEO0~19)F EAE T F4

SR 1~1%)9} EAE Aol ABAAS Z7} Ex FAANO2ZH TAAA BE
L& Aestm glon], £92AL FYUSe] UFd BE WUPE AFo) ATHoz
“esleay AEREAoz 2HE Ao @8 JUATESY BAL(-1~1%) 2

BEA 271 HEE(1~1%)9 ABBA Y BE WSS ASHASUT BT

9 AL A £F 3082 BEFE FHAE F17,718,5959 vk 2 20,500,366

YL N BE WS W] e AT A2o] AFHO T BiSE AREFA

A A9 &yt

(+2) B7)£-FA7N] 24 dEAE € AYAEL FHUY FL ASENFIF

Quael Zrja0)E ABAS B 72N BEHL 10% BF Z7F EE B2A

Ro=H AN WEL AEsT d&UT.
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(2 4AFUE FA%E FEAE FEY I
DAAER 24 FEF FAVHA 2L e 2H T

1

- &=

G NF: dF L FRFAH FAIAE TLsHA 2o, 7 EC4AFH
A o R =

X“
ol £

2

[e)

oX, &

2
1129 A9 w7 AA A ohstn FA @23 & 5 A oA
24, FRF o) FHIA S TAA | BT FRIAe FA/AZ ARSI §
o A2 FA/A Y A AFEERA/YE o] 83t TAIINE 428
& |
_R7nEAA 2R 47129 AAEA 34 SRR YN E FAAR
Brb7) Bl gFste A FAJUY
- 477} 24 REAA: ALEA 23 BEAEY FANNE 2HBES
Mg 7)Y MY PTEES REGE0 24 ALATY=ES AT @ Aol
Az g FAYUT OF, AT559) 40| Brl5d BEA &, YA
St 2854 23 ANzt 4L oWl dEAA 2 £48 gEAA S
FRFae AN /P T AUt
_ oan: daBae FANE d2EE $9L selstd FH AP 2T
N B2EETAYML o] §3td 2428 FAYUD ©, 2785 L AFEE
270 Bb5e AGAABY A FRIAL TA/A 2 AT AFUh
- RYRA: ALY BANMAE BFEE $3& Foretd FAANFAA 2T
AH BFESTA/PL ol &5t AW FAYUT. T, Aoketr]z 3744 o]
W AR A ZH)e] A e FRITAL FAAAZ AT ASU
- AA: AEAS) FAMAE AB5E $8 S volelo] FAAXNAAN 2NN @
Z3EYA/HE o] g3t AEW FAYU T,
- JgE R 2 JBF SR B 2 78T
B2PUAEE ol g3t A2FUT &, dF5EL A
Aod= FRFAL FA/A2 AP

L

A=
2
H
3

Rl

32,
i

239 FAANE A

&
A UA AFEs7] AEHE
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2 $/8H AT A BAFANE SRhE FEAE

o %24 ¥

R7R & o

3 254
- <A67(R)7]>
(EEHETTEIE)
e 21 $E2 2%3 H
28X
SILOIXIZ (%) 4,178,897 7,796,870 - 11,975,767
MERDLEF QIISA 1,437,496 1,531,381 - 2,968,877
ARSI = HEHA (%) - 653,340 170,486,002 171,139,342
JIEF2 SR (%) - 5,097,270 738,178 5,835,448
= 5,616,383 15,078,861 171,224,180 191,919,434
28554 ‘ '
Ofl4=52H (%) - 2,294,155 50,441,274 52,735,429
RIS (%) - 861,402 21,183,763 22,045,165
ARH - 146,446,618 - 146,446,618
JIERESEM (+) - 3,920,770 2,886,692 6,807,462
= - 153,522,945 74,511,729 208,034,674
<A66(H)71>
(E+9): BHpIR))
R SZ 1 =D £%=3 p.]
=y
SHILOXIZ (%) 4,904,584 5,624,3%4 - 10,528,978
ARERD &8 QIISA 665,183 120,081 - 785,264
AZSR0F X HETHA (+) - 465,485 155,354,001 155,819,486
JIEF2SRH (%) - 3,831,087 630,030 4,461,117
& 5,569,767 10,041,047 155,984,081 171,594,845
=8
Oll4=527H (%) - 2,249,420 43,624,163 45,873,583
IR (%) - 1,008,635 17,865,518 18,874,153
ALY - 140,088,033 - 140,088,033
JIEF2SER () - 3,104,887 3,784,488 6,880,375
B - 146,450,975 65,274,169 211,725,144

() AP B £F 22 EFH FYL FFFdo] FA/A S FHA 2AAA
3]

=L
L= S |
Aoz Hol FEFAL FHNE FAFASIL.
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46. FEAN R BA) HFL R
' {
=] [o) = i B o 2~
7% A D @A FEAT 2 FAY HFE EFE v 2t
<A67(F)71>
i A (@5 mpr)
sz goieel- | eoieel | DEIEERS- | DEEBES-| oo, | FEEN
. »E soana | SEMNEE | T AR | I | BWMET | oo | S2IRE H
= 2sME | NZ284E | Sz3sNE | XZ3SME| C°T -0 | IMuE
SEX
B3 0%I2 4,178,897 - - - -1 - 779870 - 1197787
HIIEA-BHIIX -|  osisel - - -l - -1 . gsiB8N
=3 0152
JIEFE T H IR - - -| 189045m| 18880633 - -| aremix
=3 o1EA
AIBRI} & - - - - -l 2gser -| 298877
SN2
gIIeol-BHIIX - 644,412 - - - - - 644,412
& HEH
HABAL & 887,238 - - - -| 160,876,156 -| 170,763,304
CHERHR .
THAAIE TR -|  amesre - - - - 58700| 5306572
JIER2S R - - - - -|  se®08 -] 58608
2 5,066,135 |~ 15240,06 -| 18ooa5m| 18880633 | 18647751 58,700 | 245,188,017
28/ ' A ~
YIE-BHIIA| - -| 2067144 - - - -| 206714
&3 285/
Oll4= 2 - - - - -| s -l =2
RIS - - - - - 20777 -| =0
AL - - - - -| 145,366,330 -] 145,365,3%
THAAERS -| 4501378 - - - - 26463 4757841
JIERZSM - - - - - -1 687,60 -|  eg17.6%
2 -|  aso13| 206714 - -| 227,058,868 256,463 | 233,863,843
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<A66(A)71>

.

sz w wiee- | e | JEEEEe- | JEEEES-| o aqy | FEE
I somny | ZPWEB | BB AY | DWW | BWRED | oo, | HAES A
= SS4E | XN SS4E |53 384E | NZ388E| T ° THYALE
28X

83 2 X2 4,904,584 - - - -] seeam4 -| 105897
I|&e-BEIIR| -| 83063 - - - - -| 8363t
25 IR

JIEFEREL-BEIIR| - - -| 19ze20] 14865115 - NEEACE=
=3 152

yABROL B - - - - - 786,264 | - 785,264
SoIER

IEel-BEIIR -1 143451 - - - - -l 14514
=3 SR

Natse0L &Y 824,610 - - - -| 154,475,568 -| 156300178

DB
TRYAIETH -| e - - - -| 1aea5| 8323
JIEZSRH - - - - -| 4463726 -| 443726
i 5729,194|  16,6%,116 -| 19276210 14865115 1e5,348%52|  1.448.405| 2233089
2g=0 ’ »

SIlol-BEDIR - -l tesses - - - -1 1essesr
=3 384

o= - - - - -] 4s8m.419 -|  4s58m.419
R - - - - - 1sesreit -1 18sE6l
A - - - - -| 138,318,728 -| 138318728
THYAERT -1 seaw - - - - 8385| 6305287
JIER2SE - - - - -| 6858 -| 689581
i - e2e9@| 1694957 - -| 200,982,339 8385 | 217,958
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47. 2§07 Z4EA 4

i

$res 272 WA AWbs T ABAAGY EE ol fALE Yo HE

EFEAES gL g ZHYth

o

By

j ol

<A67(F)71>

(SH9): o)

THSAIERTEON THSAENE0N AHIEIKI
TE g;'(f"f%% géx;ﬂgﬂ 3?f9§ e B 3 a0
5 SEAHE =N 2sA= slagy
THYATERH (%) 5,306,572 - 5,306,572 3,485,084 19,412 1,801,076
0|4-giget (») 3,302,464 - 3,302,464 3,300,991 - 1,473
DISI-LAR SR 3,502,263 1,707,457 1,794,806 - - 1,794,806
BRZA=THRNE 3,349,080 - 3,349,080 1,307,268 - 2,041,812
SERIIEA :
N ESAL VR RS 790,000 - 790,000 790,000 - -
CHOIRIIS R 417,640 - 417,640 - 417,640 - -
SOIBANS0I22 12,563 - 12,553 12,563 - -
ol 16,679,572 1,707,457 | 14,972,115 9,313,536 19,412 5,639,167
L. (9l wor)
e ore T e ae o s
SBTH BY | TS B | o n T Eryw e

IHBATEET (+) 4,757,841 - 4,757,841 2,988,272 105,989 1,663,580
OIXISSSe (+) 3,308,324 - 3,303,324 -3,300,991 - 2,333
INET e 2,324,903 1,707,457 617,446 - - 617,446
SNZ AR AN 1,307,268 - 1,307,268 1,307,268 - -
RIS 10,086 - 10,086 10,086 - -
iNES
Sy 11,708,372 1,707,457 9,995,915 7,606,567 105,989 2,283,359
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<A66(H)71>

SAENE TS AEHEO AHEIXI
as RlalEl aiE XH:N é” = a2 et 2o ol
SN BA | ISEMEN | o o
St =24 2848 gi2gs
THYAETHA (%) 8,329,376 - 8,329,376 5,414,190 526,608 2,388,578
Ol4=BiSEt (%) 2,517,129 - 2,517,129 2,516,540 - 589
Ol8l=U=8h 2,731,336 1,417,378 1,313,958 - - 1,313,958
SHEALTHHNT 2,762,065 - 2,762,065 1,875,504 - 886,561
SHERIIEA

EIOHEHR WA= 1,440,000 - 1,440,000 1,440,000 - -
CHoIRY IS 289,806 - 280,806 269,806 - -
SIEEAME0I32 18,519 - 18,519 18,519, - -
A 18,088,231 1,417,378 16,670,853 11,554,559 526,608 4,589,686

(SH9): o))

THSRALEHZ0) HSAEREON AHEIX|
e i HE EAse e me 29 2o
~ 8= =Y | 3g4= siagy
THYAERT (%) 6,305,287 - 6,305,287 4,261,659 40,158 2,008,470
OIXSeSE () 2,517,698 - 2,517,608 2,516,540 - 1,153
DIXSUHDENSF 2,004,572 1,417,378 587,14 - = 587,194
BHNZHEHAME 1,875,504 - 1,875,504 1,875,504 - -
FISAHMY 14,766 - 14,766 14,766 - -
iNEE] ,

(2 12,717,822 1,417,378 11,300,444 8,668,469 40,158 2,591,817
(x) FAAE F AR = ISDA 23] HAFF Al kol ﬂléf—»l—tﬂ A g o] sk

3 2 NEAA BAA BE Ae FAHL, FAHH I} Grsle) edoz A
o the Adgegel A7 |

A "y
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48. YHFE

(1) B2 olefot 2ol ATFHQ FYTA 47/]9] BIREES 71X
FAREL a7 HE 7|&3 AR Ao gEEE FIH0 &3

F AAFEE A EE e EsUTh

B erye

138 D19, 4019 S JIYDVUS (A IS Y LTS S HaH MHIAS HB3H= Mg=e
=38 JIY DM VXY, AS NSAHIAS B2 JIYTEXE 2 ¥ DN SIS +85ks Agee
At JHO! & Jlef D2 2R KHtEiRl U 28 MHIAE RIBSI= AIRIFS

JIEH 0| YAS20 254K OHLIGHs £

2) 371 & 47

F4o
<A67()7]>

Z R a2 RES

Jde 2 FEL JYeYL e T

(S 240HR)

e PEES =x28 Te2s JIEH 8
URNAMO22H FHE (65,255) 1,848,863 20,821 1,745,727 3,560,156
22 d&0 5,536 754,438 - (759,974) -
A (59,719) 2,608,301 20,821 985,753 3,550,156
<A66(A)71>
(S5 WOIR)
g e Ex38 P JIEH B
e Mo R AL ’ (108,776) 1,276,401 20,683 (298,7%6) 894,512
H221 gl (91,113) (350,835) - 441,948 -
A (194,8%9) 925,566 20,653 143,152 894,512
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R 27 2 A7) F 4G8EE & gL g3 gE5UYg
<A67(F)71>
(CHH: eHak)
e g2 | sx=2s | wes | JE &
20(X2! 1,181,000 |  (158,369) 2,38 633,500 | 1,658,609
HIOIKf= ' -
QIISABC! (+1) 63729 17,194 - 26,604 107,527
J|EHI0IRI&2! 602,798 2,807,533 36,448 (23,092)| 3,423,687
IS 666,507 | 2,824,727 36,448 3512| 3,531,214
ABLASLTFY| S (+2) (924,878) %,316 - 5641 | (823921
Bk (@428  (158,373) (17,955) :3010|  (815,746)
ioizol (59,719)| 2,608,301 20,821 985,753 | 3,550,156
<AB6(D71>
| (Er51: i)
g Y2g | EX=28 | e\ JIE =y
20| K22 1,215,271 45,280 (825) 19838 | 1,279,573
HIOIKI&
SIIERDHE0! (+1) (9.9%) 116,006 - 28,705 134,860
JIEMI0IXIES! 352,061 439,910 34,534 111,843 938,348
27 2,129 556,006 34,534 140,548 | 1,073,217
ABLAZCDTO| S (+2) (1,095,754) 431,878 - (5065)|  (668,941)
Bk (656,5%)|  (107,607) (13,026) (12,169)|  (789,337)
foizol (194,8%9) 905,566 20,683 143,152 894,512
1) §7lEABAL L Pr129-2RA 24 #7154 BE &9, VBT TS

)-3H7A 54 47154

ach-lled

(x2) AEEHFIEAY T2
AEAFFTIENLAE@EDSY, 7

Kl

o &0 % BAF
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1%@@%&3%@@) CER L E
FRARY@ DA FHII

A0
=9,

7t 54 4713E B &0

4




@) 371 R W79 o], B71EH A7E A HfEAT A9E FRE e

&Y
(Sl oK)
_ 40! (x1) HISSRH (+2)
= RI67() 7| HIB8(&) 7| H67(2)7 HI66(Z) 7|
=0 31,511,510 31,206,147 29,704,702 26,606,309
=9| 776,644 739,560 108,076 | 28,116
21 32,288,154 31,945,707 29,812,778 06,634,425

(1) F8 & olASe), 255, MFEASY, §715 BAF, FALE B

o], @A eol9, 7t G A+, HESAZAHE FAHE Y.

¢2) Ml EALE F5719 B BAVY AT, FIRRL, FAR

o= FARYH.

- 140 -

%}\

&, YA




49. |28 g

NS

D) eaape 253 Y

Baapes 4985 $05E 2%F 2238 aRH oz Bt TP AA
e ASE AL 2oz 53 Y&t d2aBE LPRGLTY Fo F
oz 224e dd 7tn glow e 2e 45 o8 FAHT YFY

-Baat AYH, FEH, Yoz B} k.

B2zt Qs A4, 54, YrhHa, Y3 BeHejor drt.

~Blaat oo% 7Y olF & YA WAWAA fA S ojof B

-Baat ERRRC AFHA =S H 48| AT 0|0k Bk,

- Bopaidl Blade) =EHE AL P A% 922 HEIE BE sbol=g
Qo] A% - el s ook k.

2) gl == %e] Ak} A}

Z3e] garaB YR P238 A5, 2UHY 2 A7) A AR @
A2 AA faase AP AND RS TG AGAG ] S8t £%
g 9AZ olgstm Y& U daans 284G F4 NA=2A FA &5
A, ASH Qo AEH, TBY JA2 WeE BT JoH, BALRE A
2402 AAsT YU o}ed P2 Bed Y AP T} B3IA
2 98 B2 VYRET JYRED REF AL L 98 =Pt AFUT

3 2adY 239 Fx9 7T

@ Fx2aBgH L3

glaa s #e o]AH3] At Hu JAIEA VT EA, HLGRA AL olALE 27
3499 9o TN gaawy /|2 £, AL Frt R BYA
Aol #& ALg 5 gaade e BEd F A g JAs e 7e s FEEY
=3
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@ 3% H P23 BYFEF

gAe glagne 5 et G&HQ P28} W EATL o} FAXNES &
2 2 #=ste 98-S £33, 23 DR ETL T AA 2233 HFE
F3E A9V YYYAZA H22BGF Y TLH oA R B IR & B2
#E JHRE AT 94LE FEEUH

@ =3B F 3

J2a#PYsl= A(Z) FEZES Hde= F
7} A3 WEAE d= HY oA FEE uiE
e ALd Aelst 987 5e SR

0 B23BANR ) BF

Haapegss daaded qe 49 Jd7|F2A gaanes #dd
AurA 9l A gl tid WA F o gF AV S +A3T JFUh 3]
zQ 97 2 B ew geut

© T8 o AAME}

-'214 =33 7| 2AERD
Gae'21d F7PE Q23 A x4 Rb
P-1219 BAAE 2 AIE D
L -121d BISH| & #E7E ¥ A

- HMM #3d JEAE #eE7|E 8 A

- F8 B3AE
- 209 3] B/ RES A9
-'20Q WRAEH{AZY J7F 2
-'20Qd 4%7) A 8943 92 HE
- ALY A 2 RE g AAZHGHY, WEEHE B2 5384 AT A
-'21d AL X EEZEQ #EE AA
-21d WHEAE st w2
-21d 187 418943 o4 W&
-'213 7144 8337 28" &4 A
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- 213 vt BEA7EFEN A

S -'21d 2%7] 891438 92 U g
-'20d% 71 BIS 1 g7t A A5 A
-21d W AE AP 3o A
-21d Y94 AYBCP) ZEd A3
- 21 d 387 AE943 o2 &

5)elad Bl AA TES AT BF
Fge ARHYY 2 DAY FA % daABY AARES 95 e 2L ¥

& SRS

- wpAFA ) g A&H A
- 20084 BEAET|2 BE 5N ARAAN B S AT HEARH A
P A B2
- 228 = [ DP(LowDefault Portfolio)ol] ™ A&7} A 754
-1LGD 5 214223 HeuEe &4 22 AN 5 23 537)F Jus
- LCR 2 NSFRY] HA] A& 98 A28 7%
~ g E A 28 A 2 820179 104 262 SR WA £)
- upal A28 e ~3(RRBB) 24 71F £9& 98 A28 T%(20184d 99)
- H}ANL A Y BAFEAA ST E N E B A" 220209 12€)

- glaadE Qg & _
- g 235 29 999 A9IAEA LS Y93 RAPM A28 75& 98
&3 2010858 993 99 A34B7H 4 & ,
- Front Officedl| A 7§23 oA 4F Z2to]d 29 Validations AA 3= 5
H A B AAE Uik Al 23 e 243 A
-IFRS 9 7]1& S 2Z8= HEFFE A4E A2d 758 4520179 39)8tn
20184 1976 9% A4

4
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N EEE I P Rt PAPSC EE

S 7t 9EQY, A4 2 gage EAL Bty 25T BUEE BE
slazE Aol G A 71Fe ote] 574, Balsna =hetn Yo,
~3 27 9 wao BAste] Fyo] TEE B A2de e g

AIAE! J=wwE |, 289 Lhe
. S/HINSL2E DTS, ARSSHAHMNE S
| A S/HIHR2 :
JIHAIRBIIA| ALY Logt Modd! 01710 |3 o e m oA AR
_ 2002.6 '

RiskWatch —— LX|M, SICR2), Market VaR &HE S
AIERIATRIAIAEY :

RS Mods! 2012.9 AR E=Y) oS

Murex M/O 2013.4 VaR AHEEAIRiskWatch 2 28+
2o/SSHRIATBIAIAS  |In-house 2019.5 SelRlAT, |EMRIATME S

STz 2006.5 T2 AR, CSA KRI, OP VaR &HE S
SR ATVRIAIAL

. AVA 2009.5 In=ESE

BISXP|X=HIS AL Feret 2006.9 ROIRKE, ASYSIIIET Y
U AIBP|AT EFAJAL RaY (%) 01312 |Ag2IAT MES

IFRS 20111 S AAIDE(|L, Incured_oss) J1E
HESYSAIAE : (L )

RS 9 - 20173 OllAMEAIDS(EL, Expectedoss) J1E

(+) AT 4182123 HE712 ARl weh 20219 39 A2 0l =7h FBHANE
Y. < '

SR
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7) vt AT A g-s8 % ,
Savte F4AEGI L 20083 H HHALS A gstgion, Agel 2T dsiA
¥ 24P¥ (Standardized Approach)®} U]%5 3 ¥ (Internal Rating-Based Approach)
& AH&sta sy '

ol wal FPL 20083 7Y AlLgP2F9 JEYRSFH HL Ui FE5HF
d9] £91& =3 20083 6D EHE ALES glon, A 2 LT i
A= ¥ 599 (Standardized Approach)g €31 QA&H5YT.

o}£3 20139 129 1¥4%E Y =4 F vpAN Ao ol-§-8tx} vpAIll 7| 2
23BN 2HL 7= g8dtgon, 201332 7|2 E vpAIl 7] A &3 Bl
S A7) A EH] & &SR EFY T

Fae FEFRe uAsE old 5 glaane 28 27 sty " g
A AE - AF - 29 P23 oY) FE - F54 - ARIUF - BRY2A FTE
AYsta YHFYT. 20159 FE 289 238 FF FFH7M #E F71 AL
8T 59 2X& X B2 HANE AS S ey £, 20159
ZREE v E545 98 FEIAAITLTAIVIEE A& T d=HT

ob2d 2017'd BE Fxbol] & A 7FA JiH, 2018 AFFE8 J22H A&
A AE L 20199 5E AP T FAFEF TAANE FSEHRBSA-CCR) &
AN =& ?MM] et = A glol g3l ks sy

T3 upAll AL 87 A /}}gﬂf 7}}3:14 BEste AAY L Aj2E e
S 235le, 2020 T BISH] & A& A 2 E AHE UL£S HE Fo AFYTH
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8) WEAE AR Bot 2 Bl WA

WEAR B4 Fohe B F8 23S RS WRAEE2IFPL A
£33 o8 ARG AT T v matel P23 B wiAE) AP
B} e 9B FAL griste, A A=Y Wt Aot TP RRAR
4R RIAE FAske] 22398 R ok |

- WRARAHY BIA A

WEARARY HAE Hot] BAL Fo 23S B4, Yo WA
Eoi0) A7\ AL A} THUE 5L 7|22 HEARS AT F, B3
23 HEAR L Hmae] WRAEY WY $ES BHFUD
TGS 97 AGA e AAH AGAE B A FAH QR 1
3] ol4h) 9714 FEH Stress Testing)® AA 3kl TP WRAEHYA 7} 5

o 28T A&UTH ANBASFE VIE-wB-A2 A2 s 7} A

Geed ARAFYE AARE 5 AAA Ul oS Pg vhste 2aa
#ol B g 71T JAFYch

—fBARE #YrE A

FYPL YRALEYEE S=aB)g /MR 44 H9 HelA B2 st WFA
EHAPAYE fX37] A8, Wd elaade 943 e UL T3 WFAE =
F AAstn YUtk AR #r1E 4A4e d3l ddE WFAE TR, I8
Az el 84, 75X Lg% TR T& FL8 THHRFAE TEE
A3 BIS v & #2713 58 P4 F(Risk appetite)d] &S AFE 3 3lE4
ot

- WRAE R

o AA WEARE P2 B A48 UL A P2avelYE B F
9.8 P23y L JUFE 52 W93 SEEREE

g o Rz 3
AR BAZEE F7140 2UHY 52 5o 8=

#FYth.

_ el A B ES 32 Yo
2UEY dE P23 dsd nngvch 4% 29489 WA, g2ae
£ Mo Wy Sol WA WRARETY @233 4 WM nEd=s

- BEFHeE 2A3A dFHT.

- 146 -



LR R

WEARE G Fegrae TR lon AFe s AR T
Mol deUn AZEsaE QAT SRERAHA 28 5 5] 4BHA
Qolelol o8l AFH oz A= 238 oriae AgeaT, Age2I, 2
gelaz, 982, AgUTY2T, dBAANALAZ T4 A&t 1A
olazt AAY AE PUE EE NS0 R AAF HolH B 5O g
~3 522 ABHoz A8 #4717} olgle AF & PRe2, ANHE L
NEAY AA 2T Fo2 P4 dFUTh

@) Algax3

DA

Ageaas ARddEe 48 2 2AT Bolge] uE FAHA FAH &4
2 Roe & gy BE A9 AU AAH o2 s5eA ZaAY, AT 5
o wet 4L YA 2 4L gu gy |

2) &y
D AL 23 APy e

o] Agelaas TESeQ AA% Y ANALNA BN Be)H 2 glom
zEZeo Belt AYFES F25T 238 AAF FoYo] st HES
T2 ATFYUD. oo B SHFE Jalo] BEHE AL WA
dsted 7198, A 2 AR NSFF 52 1Y FES Ao} B
ow, A BaaE nAe] A8 Wolvt AW g AA st} AATF L

Aed 2T L HWFE ANGT AT
A eial Ao AE AAFAEACO), TADTARM), NG9 5 414
A 919812 AAMAL 2 dA/TE S ARG A8Y2AE BeHT A
.

@ 2% PAS AT A Y L RAjA e B |

FAe galo] AAZ APD ol FRE 35 ARAAA ARA Y ALFNE AS
Moz slelsled AAE tee Fo=A FA AW AF 24 FA L 44 3%
o AL ERHTA FAZ SHPFL AR AFYITh £F FAYF AL
274 % 2 AN AR & 959 27148 29 29T dgUch 2]
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AR ANx"L 71del dE AFAEE 2 FEANEE, TITHE, AGBE Fo2
FAH glen olE AHE &t uAHATHYE R AAAEA 0] 7Y A8
=9l ¥3E RUHPE D 7Y ALES AN BT F USUH. F4o| d3H=
71ge Rae g A5 e 27| FR7Go2 A AgHe F4o] #
ot FAHo| T AP e A4S WS FHstd APSHA HH, LA olst 7Y
e Aoz ERFH RAAGEANAN JF dejsty doA B 59 ¥H
Hx}, w7, 71988 FY T PEE A sy

5 Aggaae £4 9 PrHE T3k o] i
A 30 2L AYsta, FAR] d 2 71E AR 27 EE
ZA3le] AHakeE9 AASE =R5HE H s
& F§AETAN TASA 2AF9 A AT AL ERT ol v A
Ae58L 83 N9ty AAAALE EFste FLC(Forward Looking
Criteria)ell 9% AAAADA EF71FL vt - APt 23 sUH.
= 7|30 Wt B4 AAAL A, 8T, 2R, IrgR!, 'FAEAL
< s

o sHAE 2RT, £F AN deIeE AYES A% AE 5 AR
—L =]

@-1. 37127 A71D A A4 $3FE gL g4 25Utk
<l|daA>
<A 67(3)71>

- SHDRE IS
- R 20H J|CHAIR Al =3 Uia
=3 (et HiA &4 AEEa
AAA ~ BBBI 138,451,664 123,087,995 15,363,669 -
BBB2 ~CCC 34,125,651 11,317,344 - 21,134,914 1,673,343
CC Olot 2,133,285 - 12,670 2,120,615
29| 174,710,600 134,405,389 36,511,253 3,793,958

_1‘48_



<A66(A)7]>

(EERETISIE)
127 FHHDIRE JICHAI 24
7 23U p][WINE=EN s3Ug
=3 (ot IR WNEEDN
AAA ~ BBBH 119,275,121 116,563,480 2,711,641 -
BBB2 ~ 00C 36,638,249 22,365,102 14,262,908 10,239
oC 015} 2,932,191 - 85,070 2,847,121
=] 158,845,561 138,928,582 17,059,619 2,857,360
<14l >
<A67(H7)>
(SERTTE)
1274 D12 DICHA IR
2 Azl DI B A 53 U
=3 e A=A =
152 ~653 203,299 192,455 10,838 6
752 ~8s2 2,709 - 2,701 8
9s3 ~ 1052 572 - - 572
=] 206,580 199,455 13,539 586
<A66(1)71>
(SH2: BHOkR)
120 SR J|CHAISEA
e Ao Jlthalaal =3 OY
53 Uiy C[INERDN NEEDN
152 ~652 234,09 223,180 10,623 20
752 ~852 3,561 - 3,444 117
9= ~ 1053 354 - - 354
B 238,011 223,180 14,067 764
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@-2. 37123 A7g A AFRITE

o 534 YL 9o 2y

TRZ IH L US4y T A8EE I

- 150 -

<I|gdaa>
<A67(>3)71>
(S5l woIR)
OIESNE S ASu oF 225285 28
e - 124 HHDIZ I B & : 12 HHDIZICHAIBE
- ALRH 3% | o B3 Uy AAEH B | paigey 23
&3 BIASEA ey =3 e HIMISEA ABEY
AMA ~BBBI 3727670 3482287 2,453,851 - 6,396,425 5,700,522 695,903 -
BBR2 ~O0C 9,237,945 5,814,8% 3,369,5% 53,515 6,890,993 3,303,869 3,064,270 502,854
cc ol - - - - 665,845 - - 665,845
o2 46514675 40637714 5,823,446 53515 13,963,263 9,004,391 3,760,173 1,188,699
<A66(A)71>
(Sl HEIR)
HEAT 5 g 2 1S2E(E88s 28)
2 12248 FHOR I BN 1248 FHOR JICHAIBEA
N AATH BN | S|paiRes 53 Ot AAEH B | Jpjaigasl 23 Oe
' =3 Uy HI&IS AL AgEy =3 Y HIAIBEY A4
AAA ~ BBBI 2811,121 32,391,598 419,528 e 4,743,686 4,412,348 331,38 -
8882 ~O0C 9,970,279 6,922,824 3,047,455 - 4,665,561 2,814,897 1,846,298 4371
OC 0I5t 97 - a7 - 680,868 - 1,351 688,507
&2 781,497 | 39314417 3,467,080 -1 10,099,105 7,227,245 2,178,982 692,878
<1491 A>
<A67(F)71>
(S EHOHR)
HEAE S A8 o4
ag 12042 THDIZ JICHAIB&A
ALY 2H | JltHASEA =3 tie
3 U< GRS, plBEN
152 ~65= 76,448 75,950 498 -
s=~882 9 - 9 -
= __ 1 | e § - —_ - -
o ‘C> =
A 76,457 75,950 507 -




<A66(A)71>

(EHl: 240
SN S A2 &F
=y 12002 @iﬂ?l?{ JlchaIEEs
UATH BN | JAREA =3 (Hat
=8 Ue HIAIZ &4 Algzal

s2~6s2 60,583 59,203 1,380 -
=32 ~8s2 59 - 59 _
9s= ~1053 - - - -
=] 60,642 59,203 1,439 -

3) =4y A3}
Bl N E 249 YolE9t =Y s 2 So ulet Age23a SHEL
HA BT FePo] AU EE sl om, ol IA F2UEY PERSIYPoE FE

D F =" (SA: Standardized Approach)
EFUH e HE 9B AL 77 ECAL External Credit Assessment Institution)
o] Y713k A&5Fd wet Y @7FAE 250 ~ 150%) & g3t wrg gy,

XSS pll= 20} o
AAA ~ AA- 20.0% 0.0% 20.0%
At~ A-. 50.0% 20.0% 30.0%
BBB+ ~ BBB- 75.0% 50.0% 50.0%
BB+~ BB- 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
B+~B- 150.0% 100.0% 100.0%
B- 0/ot . 150.0% 150.0% 150.0%
fs= 100.0% (*) 100.0% AAISE g

) F2719 9 B+ 85.0%
282 OECDEF7HI &5 )5 dd F83590 AR ANE37178] &

21897}, NICEA 8371, 3719979 A1855¢ AH83ta syt B3l
He AEANE5TFS AT dA 25U 259 A FHE AN 7|02 483
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3 D ARER ALSEFE AYEAI F5F 22 A9 93775 21(100%)
B} 5L A% =2 YEXE H 45, B 85T S R 279 -r]“:”]
71EX F & P71FXE % &(Second Best Criteria)@d ot

® U ESFH(IRB: Internal Rating-Based Approach)
WREFHS ALelang) she 238 FEREFIo) A 20 FFsn 7
so2e) Al $92 ook Gt
olo wal Fae 2008 145E Iujo] A& upAlle #-ste 2008d 74 &

SHEQOoZRE 72 WESFHY AE5US 5o, T EE ol &3t
20083 692 o] F 2 %-r]féﬂwz}’&% '&%3}31 JFYT

® P Agel 23 APHEALL SHLY

9712 A g 1, T2 2 AHES J22A st R T
FPoE AEAINFRLL SHs 2 AF U

AR, L3, BF/R A2EAE 9TH EFPEE HE37 310, 89 A8}
2 A Sol thsted= SHTS A ARG E AH FEEH R A AHFA
Mg AEFHD JFU.

2z AE AGFAN HEE>

QBIIEKIA At UARKY P
SEepee oI Ho DTI|E S8, XA QAL
pr T :
—_— SHSl KISIAF L XIE, JIEFRHA, ADN/EHE FEASHD/ AR
= SRS AATR
Pl =t (DI, A, KHRISSEHAIRSIY) AUATT
CHN LI2S3Y e : C D1g aATr = S428 HIHE XS

a

Gae A AEE S FAS Bl A2 A YAEAL A2 BA A
mel B2 gn 9 23 AAE Age 23 FHEHE VST YFU
SAREA o et AL BIAEAN A& PP o2 FES BRI AAA F 3
o 1= Al AAME FAEAE DHA J2EAE FEFYT.
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@NESFYNEY N L 28

A4t B4 f715HECY H79 dFol B HAUR 382 /M54, S A
2z AFolRY5Yo) e P = AN 84S 2HHoZ A - PrlatE A
02X WHARE 57 Fu= BAFD Y&U

B YF NESF BIIRPE T AEBEES 1 %‘a AAA~D)L 2 27
a9, BUSFANNE A% AolE 7RI sl B2F5FE F83Hd F 20D
Az A% 2R d&YTh

o] 714897 @ 15 ANE 9HoE s, AePHY WFoz AR}
o gadel gk WeSE A¢ A2 AEAHE ANGD VST 4T
2 $A83 A&

FHS ANETEF S AZAE T JAEA 2, ANFE 4A, JAFE 2, dE
A, AAAZ Y 7E A, AsE2T 5 T HIFE dF EEstxn

® A EH7HA 2o tig BATE

G4e A8esa Ba 7550] AA9 FH(Check & Balance)d o] %o} 2143
AN 2Ee) Aol HHE F JAE ol T BATFZE &Yt AFUTH

- A85F 79 5848 IYFERMLZRE A ETF F4FF(SRO) =9

- AT EYA: ALHN 2T EALEEY % e dUAREH =
YHQ HE BA(FaapB )N =3

- AZYRY YA ALY A2 HFAHL SR Y3 SPHA EE 7
AAFNGER AZD)eA AZ 24X |

- WRZA AR ol@ 21897t 9F T2 A2 F713 33

C-olAlE] 2 AgRe] Ak AL A ¥R 5 BE FAG] tF o)A
@AY TP 5 L AGAY 23 A 59
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& ofag HFTl oA 1gAe] T AEEN A M PE
Aoz s, 1 Al o} 9 R HEE ASAAY AP mE F
A Se oz AR e =N H5z: Uik

e gR 2 B3 Az 5 Fr JHA, BnF oFeHA WAL F A
T4£9) 5¢ J7ietH, AFE 2R BFL FeHes Byl £ U=F VA
S AR ABZHE AN

£3] B39 B, 04*1%4271—’#11 2gd ME B35S FAT F
Bo] Axjel oAstY ERFH R BFR ALFTFE AESFTH

Srles AT A Aol £4E FEANT AU BASD Y= Ry
£ 502 AR ALNYY B2 TFE e TEY
(SH9): 2oIe)
= Her(&h)ol Hles(&) |
JEtEZE-SEIIX £F RIESH : 71,6688 : 70,397
ARISRDEE UEHA : 3,849,967 3,009,118
JIEFKIAE : 26,488 ' 21,817
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L

v
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HALJAETA F3F .
O BN2H A7 g @A AGE A E&J22A L2 &3 sy

(3

‘.

<A67()71>
(E491: mRHg)
22 eI ez olEE | exw s2 kel 2= 0= JlEt 2y

OIXIELSHO AL 749525 | 1,402,014 - - 59275 353577 @58 | 28M10| 640657 6185745
JIEEEEA-BHIR B

s

HAIB AL 8109726 | 302,189 21,71 - - -|  om2oa8| sseem| 2207.025| 14850797
CHETHRA 135,447,184 1,301,443 941,966 536,160 312,567 433,149 999,688 232372 | 28,337,321 | 170,631,849
S4BT 174,859 45,847 - - - - 3922 Q548 | 2366|  semE27
JIEFRI A 5,803,336 - - - - - - - 121,422 5,924,758
23 150,284,630 3,051,483 963,676 536,160 371,842 786,726 | - 1,352,386 916308 | 31,620,081 | 198,130,976
NS25(2825 1Y) 13,270,467 - - - - 45,169 - 347,919 289,708 | 13,953,263
&Y S SR RY 39,836,375 85,880 148,186 - - 11,902 774,783 979,541 4,754,466 | 46,591,132
A 53,106,842 e | 148185 - - 57071 |  7ra7e3| 1327460 | 5044174| 605443%
A 203,301,472 3,137,373 1,111,861 536,160 37,842 843,797 2,127,160 | 10491442 | 36,664,255 | 258675371
<A66(d)71>

(E91: oK)
g neeR 2 olreE | exm sera 2ot 22 0= JIEt e

XS SLSHUNZ KL 814103 | 831 - - 48960 | 264699 88700 | 3873912 401686 | 6205192
JEERE-BHIIN BT

K5

HARB A1) 7,237,276 106,101 | 11,628 - - - 175,196 3,387,631 1,371,072 | 12283904
&R 126,428,406 1,200,448 881,481 575,432 170,901 184,802 683,497 1,745,004 | 23,409,292 | 155,279,263
TSR 635 131153 - - - - 7,240 g6 |  s0grs| 1448906
JIELRS 4,450,309 - - - - - - - 99,276 4,540,585
27 139,574,029 2,270,834 893,108 575,432 219,861 449,501 924,633 9,092,150 | 25,862,301 | 179,861,850
2S5 Iy 9,257,520 - - - - - -]  s0710]  0875| 10089105
(@t S MEwe %E 36,741,563 - 2,740 - - -| sso7er| ime3| 5341886 | 42842139
A 45,990,083 - 30,740 - - -] sso7er|  esrem| seremi| s2ea1244
el 185,673,112 2,270,834 923,849 575,432 219,861 449,501 1,475,400 9,780,073 | 31,535,082 | 232,803,094
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@ 27197 A7)D A AFE AL 2XH %L g U
<A 67(F)71>
(ZERETRIE)
g RIxS ANHIAS JIEH B

IXIS(EL2#0IXI2 AL - 5,529,904 655,841 6,185,745
JIEFEREQ-TEIIK £H

=HIE

THA(2ZH ML) 2,507,917 9,614,350 2,647,520 14,859,797
WE(E 73,076,518 8,852,716 14,702,615 170,631,849

THYARZ A - 528,827 - - 528827
DIEFRHA 121,251 207,172 5,576,335 5,924,758
A2 75,795,686 98,752,979 23,582,311 198,130,976

SEE(E82s ¥8) 10,588,505 3,012,831 351,927 13,953,263
SR S ARV UF 21,238,777 22,162,715 3,189,640 46,591,132
A 31,827,282 25,175,546 3,541,567 60,544,395
= 107,622,968 123,928,525 27,123,878 258,675,371
<A 66(H)7]>

: (SH9Y: HOIR)

2 S ABIAY JIEH =y

OiIXIS(EL280XI2 xnsa) ‘ - 5,908,300 391,892 295,192
J|EFIRA-DE IR &F

=HIE \

FHA(2ZR ML) 2,508,927 7,297,813 2,482,164 12,288,904
e 69,396,487 74,482,961 11,399,815 155,279,263
YA XA - 1,448,906 - 1,448,906
JIEFRHA 113,595 170,217 4,265,773 4,549,585
A 72,019,009 89,303,197 18,539,644 179,861,850

2esEses 28 7,621,524 2,195,768 281,813 10,099,105
HSUE S ST 4F 18,463,610 21,238,733 3,139,7% 42,842,139
A 26,085,134 23,434,501 3,421,609 50,941,244
| 98,104,143 112,737,688 21,961,253 232,803,094
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@ 27123 A7]D @A) COVID-19 Fitel] wa} g ¢ & e AdE A&
A~XA L AL 1A R 2on, FF By et 9F T A4

o]
2 H5d syt

<A67(3)71>

(BH9): wei)

JEEEEY-

UAS | zmowm sy

ABTAEE ﬁi}? Fos BEHA | DHASTs | JETe ES| ggsgign c?g;a%fg ES | el
A2 i

(221 HI2)
QA0 - - 730,28 - 2917 73,176 1,641 267,574 280,215 1,002,301
B/ ROHESt - 204,679 5,050,874 - 7,98 5272511 115211 365,07 480,22 572,73
s - 231,343 10,721,633 - 15,286 10,968,462 435,597 1,686,997 2,121,594 13,090,056
REY  |Zs/seyoiux - 60186 | 1387530 - Z04| 1458450 150,371 5520913 567284 | 20,1947
#@A/E88 - 146,23 9,985,811 - 13814 10,145,864 617,066 2,343,478 2,960,544 13,106,408
JIEHIEY - 136470 | 270381 - B32| 341223 9268619 11085744 | 2034363 | 5447556
2 - 2,597,917 73,076,518 - 121,251 75,756,686 10,588,505 ‘21,238,777 31,827,282 107,622,968
g32s - 5,844 3,200,683 - 9,284 3215811 291,880 21,000 312,680 3,528,691
Ha2s - - 2,083,098 - 21,383 2,104,452 74,721 751,613 826,334 2,830,786
JlERR® - 140,164 6,261,103 - 128% 6414,162 9,110 3,578,522 3,586,642 9,998,804
MHIAS 2%/ ol g - - 59,072 - 66 59,138 - 1,70 1,700 .88
sl - 72427 1,990,730 - 3,651 2,066,808 36,674 318 35,585 2,422,408
s et - - 513.52 - 876 514,398 12,322 84,891 97,213 611,611
SBEHY S 5,529,904 9,355,925 68,744,507 se8e7 179,047 84,378,210 2,583,124 17,408,088 19,996,182 104,374,32
22 5,529,904 9,614,380 8,852,716 X224 27,172 98,752,979 3,012,831 2,162,715 25,175,546 123,928,525
fale:tes - 236,236 2,640,338 - 3628 2,880,261 195,956 1,640,764 1,836,720 4,716,981
e IERE 655,801 24|  R0R217 - 55707 | 2072050 155,971 1,548,876 1704847 | 22406897
EY ] 5,801 2,647,520 14,702,615 - 5,576,335 23,582,311 361,827 3,189,640 3,541,567 27,123,878
A 6,186,745 14,869,797 170,631,849 ss e 5,924,758 198,130,976 13,953,263 46,5911 60,544,385 258,675,371

Gae COVID-199] Hito] AA il vlAE JFS wHdste] nAAFYRE
ARERASUT olo] utet SFIETRA T 024,176W VAL B7] Foll F
7t AgadEvt

'
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<A 66(A)71>

(191 wipkR)
JlEE@ - ’
URS | zmom =y <
JuBBNER (iz‘? RIEA W EVE] THEAHE R JIELRA A g;'s;im ;‘:;fé A% 811
H) i
(22 RIL)

CiAazaiol - - 730,94 - 3,016 742,960 168,168 240,421 408,589 1,151,549
BIER/ OISt - 146,790 4,403,204 - 8,850 4,558,844 104,489 432,32 53,821 5,095,665
skt - 176,401 10,535,236 - 13,720 10,725,357 314,583 1.500,3%4 1,814,977 12,540,334
RIZ=2S e/ 818 0L XI - 572,652 10,993,036 - 19,936 11,585,723 158,665 4,873,382 5,082,047 16,617,770
yY/3% - 165,476 10,240,907 - 14,610 10,420,933 —684.582 216283 2,879,865 13,300,858
‘?IE}EIE‘Q - 1,447,568 .484. 161 - R am F,00,1 6,191,007 0,001,720 1542000 48,341,907
E ] - 2,508,927 609,396,487 - 113,586 72,019,009 7,621,524 18,463,610 26,086,134 98,104,143
84325 - 318 3,413,610 - 7.963 342478 287,309 28,000 315,309 3,740,098
Hazs - - 2,296,434 - 16,658 2313.02 28,297 421,18 449,486 2,782,578
JIERRS - 90,643 540,93 - 8172 5,500,738 2,16 4,461,688 4,493,804 10,083,542
e BIR/ 018 - - 136,68 - 386 137,088 - 3315 3315 140,38
Sal/ ey - 104,057 2,092,630 - 3916 240,608 48226 354,676 402,902 2,608,506
RSA 2t - - 434,075 - 647 oz’ 18,174 45,945 64,119 438,841
2828Y S 590&3'00 7,099,957 60,608,531 " 1,448906 131,476 75,193,170 1,781,626 15,923,940 17,706,566 X 88,76
AH 5,908,300 7,297,813 74,482,961 1,448 906 170,217 89,308,197 2,195,768 21,2873 23,434,501 112,737,68
Pk - 210,744 24814 - 3,726 2.662,614 160,829 1,137,088 1,297,877 3,960,491
JIEL JIERAS 301,82 2,271,420 8,951,671 - 4,262,047 . 15877.000 120,984 2,002,748 21387 18,000,762
Py 2N 391,882 2,482,164 11,399,815 - 4,256,773 18,539,644 281,813 313,78 3,421,608 21,961,253
B 6,256,192 12,288,904 155,279,263 1,448,906 4,549,565 178,861,850 10,099,105 4284210 52,941,244 232,808,004

o *

3L COVID-19¢

PX I

AR gEY .

BAlo] AA QA U= JEFL WYt u]aﬁ%ﬂugzéi%l
AdEstgFUn. old B2t FFFEFTFA E) 948,255 AU A7) Fol
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@ 27127 AT A AEEAFTT 44 oY iU SFY A AT

A dage o gy
<A67(F)71>

(SR )
124 FShs[pibd goliu P E=rs
T 3 Jlthelgsal =8 i
=3 Oy ISR, =R
AAA ~ BBB1 21,929,738 21,600,109 329,629 -
BBB2 ~OCC 33,800 33,800 - -
CC 015t - C- - -
2] 21,963,538 21,633,909 329,629 -
<A66(A)71>
(G RELT)
1201 D2 JICHAIREA
T A23 JlchaEeal =2 U
=3 O Hisl2aat WNI=EDN,
AAA ~ BBBT 20,015,223 19,837,158 178,065 -
BBB2 ~OCC 46,251 36,205 10,046 -
OC 0I5t - - - -
=5 - 20,061,474 19,873,363 188,111 -
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3) AHE 22

1) AFEHHA |
e 2008d 79 FHLEYORRE JEURSITH A 5L
o, 5 PHg o]t 20089 62 o] F ALY FEANL A& T
FA 2L YA 71 EYRSF Yl o BIS7IE A7 AR H S L A7 AR
AUt BIS7IE A7)0 & 4 A7 ARL AAATARE V1Fo2 3
Q& 20139 1295 AP HANE 7oz & LPARS7A o o
AARE I ol o) F BHE FEFHYT

5

o

¥, g -
y to g 39
b [o

o

i1k
.H.

!

@ Tier 1 A& C12AE: BEFAE + 7187 2A48)

- REZZE: FAAE ZHY BEFZ EFEH7) I dF8dozE I I
Al HEEYoln, 39 £4& 7MY 9A BAE F 3, FAAE Adstae A
BE S ARE gugiTh ARF, 4RYT, oA F, 7 EFEBE T
% o) REFAR TFYYT,

FEEAR: FANE BN GARe R BRE] A9 Aadons Fo
golojot shel, W EE o)AHE M T A Aol ABH Aol THs s WL 4
8.490] glojol BT o2 T JEIRARY B BAY ART, ARYoIF
S o) gol F|EIIRARE FATU,

@ Tier 2 A& (B AAE)

FAAE EA4 RAALOZ BFHY) 4% AA8A02E 2ARARRAE F
=30, ol 5 o4 FEAMATL EEPY L URSIHUOE A& de

£33 ol T¥HHYH.
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F7)%st 4712 A v Mol o @ BIS7IE A7) 42 ¢ R A7)ARe o

2 2T

- BIS7|& #7122 &

(E£191: 2I0IR)

—_—

2 HI67(2)71 Hie(F)3|

BIS XPIXHE (A) 44,586,032 40,334,262
=K 41,131,484 36,021,786
PEES] 41,131,484 36,021,786
JIED =R - -
Petxe 3,454,548 4,312,476
SIBIIIETHA (B) 209,680,858 050,649,632
AR BIIERIA 291,288,386 . 246,279,611
AIESIBIES A 1,692,127 1,490,013
SUSBIIEIA 6,750,345 4,880,008
BIS XDIXH=HIE (A/ B) 14.88 15.96
J|=RI=HIS (%) 13.73 14.26
BEEX=HIS (% 13.73 14.26
JIEDI=RI=HIS (9 - -
BA=HIS (% 1.15 1.71
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- BIS7|1& A7]1AHE

(SH9): eHpi2)
' 2 Hie7(=)2| Hiee(&) |
XD XK (A +B) 44,586,032 40,334,262
JI=XH= (A 41,131,484 136,021,786
BEFIH= 41,131,484 36,021,786 |
X2 21,886,559 20,765,729
X2 738,802 1,036,196
W= 14,226,652 12,326,506
OlefERdoel S 5,289,110 2,304,417
HEZTHES (1,009,639) (431,082)
22X (B) 3,454,548 4,312,476
WETS=r=g= 924,935 1,057,559
MAX =S 2,312,000 2,780,000
X=X =S 258,060 516,119
HAX=THES ' (40,447) (41,202)

129
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ORESEE] | b

D A | |

ANge23e F7h, 38, 38, FF T ARAY 2@ MEoR s £42 9
2 2 gle g232 gyt Edol"d XM (Trading Position) T7] uf of 3}
o] 2H o2 B{stE A715E, JFFIAAL, dAFELF Fol ddel HH, 54,
ZF7}, 38 53 B gdagd =&570 93, v EFeld XA AHNon-trading
Position)& H#E Fg23d =&d9 JdFUT. 22 ZIS ANZNE =
Efo|qd XA} vl EF oy EX| A LA g2AZ Yol 47 #Esta
AT ’

2) EFlo]g XXM AlgE A

@ &=

Feo] NP2 SAA EEYHY WERYHE BF AMSSHL JdsHH. BEE
WL A A7|AE A 5 FASHE, WEEHH(VaR)S HF-# 5=
HegdUg. EFWELe vpALdslel F8IFo] AAE Wyl R EERe
Z3jo] Aeagoln 2007 7RRE 99% ANIFFFE FtelA FA 250¢ A AE dHl
o]E| 2 o] &3 HALA A]E g o] M (Historical Simulation) HHES ALY 1 day
VaR 71202 o 43 Yyt |

AGAY, 4B 5 gt AF2A FRES HAT F E

Fae Az
o]x 2 VaR =S ¥jE 5] e—._la #8351 &Y

Z]

@ 27123 A7 A AF 2T 27 AR L e g

e Hi67(Z)21 RI66(&)2|
==l | 87,830 45,739
=S| 3 -
gs 21,94 32,118
= 20,262 30,055
=] 130,059 107,912
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3 HEo|gd EA A Al

O =

HEdgoly XA TS M FF AFAFL T 23 PuUn. B9
B33 Frt 3y AFAE B e of AT F e &4 A
& 9Jn}3l9, IRRBB(Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book) &%l ¢J§ AEVE"
(change in Economic Value of Equity) 2 ANIl(change in Net Interest Income)=

=434

A EVEE F8 ¥5o] A4k, 25 2 238 e AA7IK o) 48 vIA 24 5
Qe A7|ARY AAH 7HA WL vlsH, ANIE Fel ¥5e2 I8 FF
145 By = Qe £olA0ld ¥EE TP |

gge fd Paanaddss S Feadaa BEe A5t Besa g
o e Fegads 245d U YU

@' e A7 @A) vl Ed oY TXMY AEVE ¥ ANIE g3 24 Uth

"or
AR

- HI67(&) 2 HI65( &) 2|
ABVE 792,049 461,158
AN 135,018 90,081
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HeFARS Belaz
9o ge 472 4A) Fo8 =245 Y $ohE AHBY AL e 2

#Uch
<A67(3)71>
(S BHOHRI)
=28 st UsD EUR JPY GBP JIEt Sl
=2
83 L olIXI2 6,046,893 | 5,652,467 30,847 52,579 17,370 175,611 | 11,975,767
g2 & 9,030,109 693,919 - 1,101 - ke | 9818811
A=
JIEIE B&-BEII 30,609,818 | 6,639,36 25 311,838 - 314,080 | 37,875,136
= [IBEA
ARIZRD £ [OEA 2,968,877 - - - - - 2,968,877
@eA-BEIIXI &3 644,412 - - - - - 644,412
CHEA .
NS EX ESHR | 123311272 | 40714606 | 3108077 | 1,457,553 789,280 | 1,387,806 | 170,763,304
THYAEX A 4,002,050 | 1,117,750 44,940 2,464 30,077 18,291 5,305,572
JIEIZ 8 3,589,931 1,880,512 290,085 25,864 8,011 41,635 | 5836048
A 180,293,362 | 56,698620| 3468984 | 1,851,399 844,738 | 2,080,914 | 245,188,017
=82
D|E-BHIIX| BF 1,811,241 255,908 - - - -| 2067144
s
Oll4=2 74 41,469,942 | 10,949,203 44,634 307,145 91 1,106 | 52,792,121
P I 5,637,556 | 14,708,344 20,683 | 1,087,799 -1 65835 | 22083777
ALRH 109,615,300 | 26463222 | 1,704,147 259,501 791,815| 6,531,336 | 145,365,330
DM ES 3,988,813 728,275 4,569 4,29 16,166 15722 | 4,757,841
JErZERM 4,458,827 | 2,214,186 13,233 18,398 1,119 111,807 | 6,817,630
20 166,981,688 | 55,320,133 1,787,326 1,647,139 809,191 7,318,366 | 233,863,843
& 28EIXE 13,311,674 | 1,378487 | 1,681,658 35547 | (5,287,452)| 11,324,174

204,260
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<A 66(A)7]>

I 28} USD EUR JPY GaP JIEt 22
S8R
&2 ¥ XIS 4523911 | 5,783,607 34,968 71,912 17,964 9,616 | 10,528,978
SII2e-BEIX &F 7,779,699 488,359 - 316 - 52,257 | 8,320,631
K= ,
JIEHEBEA-BEIIX 28868837 | 5,018,086 25| 206249 - 48158 | 34,141,325
=3 QIS :
A2SR0} BF SIS 785,264 - - - - -| 7524
gII2o-BEIX 55 1,429,258 5,256 - - - -1 1434514
CHETHR
NASEOLEH IEUA | 117,661,851 | 2507865 | 1,97730| 1,281.467|  434845( 1,353,940 | 155,300,178
THYAERA 6395927 | 1,736,642 86,654 &3 72,523 37.217| 832376
JIEF2SRHY 3,084,997 877,574 | 230,39 12,274 R48|  275704| 4463726
294 170,479,744 | 46500249 | 2329296 | 1,572,571 558,180 | 1,863,952 | 223,308,992
2827
gII2o-BEIIX &5 1,578,544 116,413 - - - -| 1694957
281
Ol 37,674,768 | 7,870,846 26068 30580 & 1,762 | 45,879,419
xhR=x 6,092,647 | 11,794,352 160,347 | 679,53 - 160,730 | 18,887,611
AR 107,496,854 | 21485451 | 192388 |  674748|  818290| 5919497 | 138318728
THUAEST 5108794 | 1,122,001 10,475 6,639 574 20714 | 6,305,287
JIEI285 3831466 2,630,783 73,065 13,336 26678  21,263| 689581
A7) 161778073 | 45019936 | 219088 | 1,680148| 877627 | 6432966 | 217,982,563
& 282X 8701671 | 1,480,313 135463 | (107577)| (319447 (4569,014)|  5321,409
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5) olAH& 1P we]

G A2e oAENES WSS Peste YT A AT TFY HEEH
NAe W BUEAT glon, o7]eE BOR FAZZ 4EF HWEL T
Satx QeUt. FATZL 2021dT A= o o4 2=l Al BORE A%
FE= AERAY 2L5A @S AYS B APSUT ol LR g}
o e PraBeRELS TF 9302 st Ast TR tiAl 28 24, A
A A9 2 gand ARYAA B, @B, A%, AT, HE, A A2
B 7% 5o E5E 0% 7AY LIBOR ABALL $Usa U a2 Ao
we Ao Abere] mek AGHe] Basty 9o, WA o|AlsldE Bnud
2 9&Udh TFY 2A2 Al WolA IBORY tid w2 o] ojrjel A LAsEX
AEST, A AFo|AEE FEA AR + S ADL FY3k2 o Pt
AYUTh FHe 20219 A4 A 2 AT =YL geagon, ves)
= Aokd 7|ZAS Z ARz z} 20239 69 0] Aol @l 20239 647t
A PAEY £YL d2sts AL 2EE s3 Yeyth
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o 18 oft

712 @A LIBOR #& thA] A E oj4g2 ) Ago] ¢aHA|
g3 RHUTh M BT L E TAL B

o
T
$8% F9e B3I AgYh

H
BFdo

e FE4EY

19, SBFEFT Y R

e USD GBP =]

HIDHYS SR | |
J|EFLREIZ SR 109,601 - 109,601
ARISRDIZERI 11,304,144 373,323 11,677,467 |
AR ALY 27,262 - 27,262
A7) " 11,441,007 373,323 11,814,330
HITHE2 XA

AltS2I2 82 707,744 - 707,744
THYAE | C
OIKHS2HEA(OHOH) 60,032,707 71,024 60,103,731
S35} 2+24(0HOH) 41,663,977 - 41,663,977
OIRHSRRA(SI 5! T) 15,078,608 - 15,078,608
Ssia(Rs) 4,701,218 - 4,701,218
A7) 121,476,510 71,024 121,547,534
oy gl 2EE 1,796,199, 25,620 1,821,819
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6) e 23
D /i
FEHY2TT AFY 22 - 8§ V7Y BYUX B V)X 2 A 7E T
o2 AN AFEE A7t TASAY, AFHF H4AE A 1wy 2E, B
7t54e] BEd vz To2 &4o] T g A3 Y.

2) By
F3e ot} ZE P2 {EAHH2IE BYsta U

OEESEECREE L

- 5 8¥ 5= LCR, NSFR, £3719 8229142 44

- HEREd e BEIFL TEUEQLY BEF 7 FANEE $55T
AAHQ FENDES 93 FAN SR o Yo 26 &L Ao B

<& E>

- LCR: (@GFA A4/ 8% 30U7 P FHEH) X 100

- NSFR : (IZAS7H85 Y / A8 A= %%3%9‘4) X 100

- 27193 AFZ2EH & (FE77 13 23 g3zg / 48] 14 ol 93
&) X 100 :

@ %77 BA & (Early Warning Indicator) 23

- 452 o3} 24 2] AE 2 HA g$ 24| vlAL 98] WA CDS
ZPu|Y' F F 15709 AEE AA, FNHEY)LZE 5319 FreAd=2 318
= BaFIdoZ 8

@ 97142 A (Stress-Test) AA] & v] 423224 & (Contingency-Plan) 5%

- 52T A E IS Hrsle HFA S gotsta AR 2 A%
FE5AY7] TANAE FPo XFFYH FRE EHo=T 2Pu{FH7], A1ZHA,
B34S 7133 73RS BV ER AASt T 28 Yd] B

-zt 71aAE FE5A7Id deE) fHE TAH Avxg AL HAARATFE
A E FHEIA &
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3) FEAA B 2| o) AEA FT) B

O B2 BAL A N RAFSLEY FEA W) £ O 2HUT

<A67(3)71>
(CH9): eHorl)
e R0t | 1~3ME | 3~1200" | 1~5 015t | 54 ED 2y
28T
B2 Y KIXIZ 9,612,371 515,608 550,680 | 1,029,287 -1 11,707,946
IjeA-BEIIX & 46,621 05023| 1,050,540| 1,149972| 7.506684| 9778840
S1=A
JIEIEZEC-B R 361,611 1207439 | 4133965| 1081690 | 15083228| 31,613,208
=X QIIEA
AR &% OISR 10,000 340486 |  1,113529| 1,505,020 -1 290,05
CHERA 10,042,137 | 14241,774| 61,880,065 | 67,500212| 15813164 169,477,353
JIE2 SR 5,097,270 - - - 808,773 | 591,043
8| 25,170,010 | 16,330,330 | 68728780 | 82,001,451 | 39,216,849 | 231,447,420
2825
S)|eol-BHIIX| &X 8,854 125,618 682,882 348,104 o1480| 1,380,200
2855
VB 25608016 | 8124580 | 16519769| 2,418,409 118943 | 52,789,717
Xty 3140265 | 4398427 | 10504484| 290717 1025321 22001214 |
AFRH 4648419 | 11,697,892 | 47,013584| 76083647 | 6,148,738 | 145,602,280
pl[S=1=Cb 5008883 | 1,572,656 - - 350,118 | 6,940,657
| 8414437 | 25919173 | 74720719 | 81,792877] 7.86692| 228714128
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<A66(H)7]>

(S BHOIRI)

3~ 12048

2 142 0l8t | 1~3Me 1~5E 015t | 54 = 2%

ST

#3 Y ox3 9,137,776 91,051 464,395 760,273 21,263 | 10,474,758

S)|e-DEIIX| &F 136,016 124,287 915,490 1,883,117 8107999 11,168,909

FHEA

JIEHE =D HEIIR] 553784 | 1,025,117 | 4845370| 11,070,430 | 13,737,878| 31,232,579

=8 RIISH

M2 B8 QIEA - - 210,000 570,000 - 780,000

ES 920537 | 13540396 | 5682982| 60,814,868 | 14,671,105| 155088728

pl[S=10; 3,831,145 - ‘ - - 705,630 | 4,536,775
81 2891,258 | 14,780,851 | 63265077 | 75008688 | 37,243875| 213,279,749
281 ' :

S)|&-DEDIX| EF 49,541 - 500,167 605,760 238914 |  1,3%4,3%

289K

Ol =274 »o71587| 6814661 12791,08| 3881550 | . 109,333 | 4586829

pussIL by 387396 | 3441,014| 7757488 | 2,688,791 1,125,536 | 18,886,753

ARH 482104 | 10036440 | 45530833 | 70,427,784 | 7,428,100 | 138,245,261

JEr2sRH - 4,110,621 1,766,297 - -| 1074478 6951,396
&1 35,127,779 | 22058412 | 66579584 | 77,603,885 | 9,976,361 | 211,346,021
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Q@ FBEHEF
@-1. 3712 A7 12 A &9 24 A3

£o) BEAGW] L e 2

Futh
<A67(F)71>
(S4y: BHOHR)
ag 14 0I5t 1~30H2 | 3~12H8 | 1~54015t | 5H =D 2o
OHOHSH TiYALZ :
S5} 2A 201 - - - - 201
OlRtE & (11,805) (23,802) 8,326 (158,553) 535,474 349,640
S| THYAE
olxtE &t 33,8% 115,454 180,557 631,338 687,222 1,648,467
2| 22,202 91,652 188,883 472,785 1,222,696 1,998,308
<A66(H)71>
(S49: BHOHR)
e 14 0I5t 1~3M8 | 3~12M8 | 1~540l5t | 53 &N B
IHOHS = TMAE
st 2t (2,240) 259 - - - (1,881)
OIXrE & (12,099) (8,965) (21,956) (154,170) 311,267 114,077
SI8I5|0| THYALE
OIXIS 2@ 60,484 118,050 397,587 679,232 596,098 1,851,451
& 46,145 100,344 375,631 505,062 1,963,547

907,365
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@-2. 37123 AL A 59 2A FPFEFY FEAGW) 2L O 2

#Uth,
<A67(F)71>
(SH4: GHOHR)
e 1248 0I5t 1~3HE | 3~120H& | 1~5018 | 54 =D EL]
DHOHS = YA
S35 21
=Y 56,066,208 34,469,849 99,529,773 89,932,702 8,452,901 288,451,433
RE 56,009,986 34,338,644 99,195,857 90,326,262 8,476,594 288,347,343
SIS THYAE '
S35t o
= 16,920 76,028 4,791,344 14,245,183 4,727,452 23,856,927
RE 16,786 79,183 6,083,666 14,902,210 4,624,965 . 25,706,810 '
S A 56,083,128 34,545,877 104,321,117 104,177,885 13,180,353 312,308,360
2 8A 56,006,772 | 34,417,827 106,279,523 105,228,472 13,101,589 314,054,153
<A 66(H)71>
(E491: HOHR)
2E 1348 0I5t 1~ | 3~12048 | 1~50l8t | 58 =W &1l
OHOHS=! MHYAIE ‘
S35} 24 ,
e 41,628,937 28,120,676 70,926,683 68,814,581 7,423,977 216,914,854
fE 41,747,706 | 28165683 |  71,251,634| 68,700,868 7415798 | 217,281,683
QIBI5I0| THYAE
S35t o
e 126,703 743,865 5,321,106 15,865,301 1,175,969 23,232,944
RE 235,842 868,872 5,398,633 16,129,256 1,162,943 23,795,546
=2 A 41,755,640 28,864,541 76,247,789 84,679,882 8,589,946 240,147,798
|E 8 41,983,547 29,034,555 76,650,267 84,830,124 8,578,736 241,077,229
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@ Sl A7 B GO AR FEAur]) BAL e &y

T e *

e g ot
ab

<A67()71>
_ (E9: HHOIR)
e 17k o1t 1~3Hg 3~ 1248 1~5 0I5t 54 X1} B
2= 1,431,023 1,358,214 3,660,638 6,720,569 782,819 13,953,263
oLx) 27,768 21,982 715,968 2,765,040 44,880,979 48,611,727 |°
2R 1,658,791 1,380,196 4,376,596 9,485,609 45,663,798 62,564,990
<A66¢A)71>
, (SH9l: eHOH)
T 1248 oI5t 1~3M8 3~12048 | 1~54 0I5t 54 =1} 2]
RS 1,289,198 981,555, 2,624,962 4,693,645 500,755 10,099,105
or 73,583 79,569 762,853 1,751,963 42,194,766 44,862,734
B 1,362,781 1,061,124 3,387,805 6,445,608 42,704,521 54,961,839
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WEIABYAE AERINE 244239 20213 12¢¥ 31YAE FEHE -
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@ A3g A¥ss AU

431 =599 A0 YR ARAE AERTA
2. 2 YRAABAAET £FA8 BN

- 175 -



=Yg A0S WREABAAE HELTA

51 25t | 2P\ 32! 292

$2ls FEE 3L 20213 124 31Y @A RS ATHAESY 9
Ae Baxd didted HES AT WEIFARAAEE 44, I3t
To] B3 LIAHRIAE AT AL ALY FIAANA Y eH, 57
o AYL F BRago didtd FEES AN AEZARE Husted AFHTH
23] AdAe AFE WFABAE LILH BaAA "HF3 A BeA =
TAAH BrrEF, 2021 124 31Y @A B HFAdGAEE W73 A2
HAE ZRYTFEA 2AS B o, T2 BN aFH oz dAH £9H
3 otz dEts 7jesta sy |

S2e WRIAABHAE FEV T we AES NSRS o] 71FS ¢
7t 249 BRNA IR AN G WRIAABY A £ FAe) BuA | o3}
A HARARTGE Fe $E) FUL 4 F UES AEAAE AGstn 4A Y
Ae 278D JAFU AEE 299 WRIARYAEE o n FIA
PR AEe ¢GRI Weol e A7 % Dasithy wuHE 3 A
@3 g9 Wl B £M9 & 5o dAE TSI Yy

28 YR ARYAEE AHE = 3= JAFEY G H FAE AstA =
A A A7 E et AT AFARY A=A W FHHA FAe =+
A== AT JES AR TG o] & B - FFote 23S vty 234y
A AEs W AdAEY BAHY SAZ At AFARA R
T3 JFEAE ALAY detA] 8 5 Asyt. E=8, WRIAAAE
o $RANET HEL V)22 7|z WEE 37 AolE e Wzt L 3
2 FFo) EFHA FEo2M N IABYAETE FHHSA Hof vl 7]zt
A& B7F R FAHE €3t AP A  Jdv= s 1St oF U
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AR WRAAVAAE ¢34t RAA HF $219) FEDH, 47 ZIA
o $JUHRD Y &) 249 BHAM WRAAVIAE BTFZ FHol w
224 kT s s Hol AIA I sREU

289 AEE 20219 129 319 A WRIADYAEE oz o,
2021d 1249 319 o] E o] YR ARAEE AESA ks '

at B oz o B’

CEDAENEE R

a2
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{KDBAALY
WRIARYAE G He) B3A

FFAU LY FF, o418 B YA AF

B o8 o yRredigaabs 2021d 12€ 319 @4 F 9A=
ZFa%k= HAAs et P YRIATAUAEY 44 R &9
AHE HrlstAgUh

AR Ee] A R gl R YL B HY 2 A
FelAE X9 23] AP gt B 37 B yRsiAdeRe
geje] URSARe AT} A 4 ghe ASAEe) 2 9 FTAE SAsio]
qpAge] R 2YY 4 Y= 2FU FHUNS ousln Awg ¢
AEE T T AA 2 LY USAY o] sl HrIsigTt
£ 9% ¢ JESAgAT WRAABA Y] A 2 egud
H7hE A9 WA AS SYALddelA gES s AnIAE
wRFE e ARRSIEUh

£ 9z ¢ yRgAIAAe] WRAARUANE 94 WA,
20214 1249 31 VA Faye] WRAA LA Es WRgARA=
2Feol TAsl] B o, 844 AN mAFoz HAH
45 gta gagych

B sP 2 yiespiaeds Radge] AR FRIEAY EARA]
oRIBHT, ANASIAL EASol B A BT 91 oS ER
Sglgunt =ok B 3 2 yesATeAe Eadgel FU8 esiE
de7le ol JIAEAY BARR ohisithe AHE HRlsiglen,
FEF Fol8 Ut 23 o] ZIAAERS Ad 82l dESie

S 202 3% 259

3 R RO
uj 38 7 2 2] % 2% 7 (?1)7\),%),7

- 178 -




